Annual Report 2017

The SIMONA Group
Corporate profile
SIMONA is acknowledged as one of the leading producers and development partners in the field
of thermoplastics. We offer solutions developed primarily for the chemical process industry and
the water and energy utilities sector as well as the field of environmental technology, mobility,
construction and advertising. Our semi-finished products, piping systems and finished parts are
designed to help meet key challenges of the future. A team of 1,300 SIMONA employees ensures that each application is matched up with the perfect material, while also being fully focused on developing superior solutions and providing the best possible service. Thanks to the
diversity, quality and breadth of our product range as well as our process-specific expertise, we
are capable of handling just about any material imaginable and equipping it with the required
properties.

Global Thermoplastic Solutions

Superior process engineering

Boasting more than 35,000 items, our product range is probably
one of the most extensive worldwide. We use a wide selection of
premium-quality materials to manufacture our products. With
production facilities in Europe, the United States and Asia as well
as a global distribution and dealership network, we are able to
support our customers wherever they operate. Each site offers
process engineering and manufacturing expertise, complemented
by high-end technical consulting services.

Among our core competencies are the extrusion of sheets, rods
and pipes, injection moulding, pressing, press laminating and
calendering. Additionally, we have amassed considerable expert
ise with regard to various plastics processing methods. With a
view to improving our product portfolio as we move forward, we
also make a point of expanding the range of materials processed.
In this context, our focus is always on delivering customer value.
The knowledge we have acquired over the years is pooled within
our SIMONA Academy – and passed on to our customers and
business partners with the help of training programmes and
seminars.

Tailor-made solutions
Customising is one of SIMONA’s key strengths. This encompasses
individual formats, colours and dimensions tailored to high-end
requirements. At the same time, however, the ever increasing
range of applications for plastics has meant that customers are
also demanding specific properties from such products. Be it
antistatic, electrically conductive, resistant to chemicals,
anti-bacterial or non-slip, we manufacture plastic products
equipped with specially developed characteristics and of a consistently high quality.

“Global Thermoplastic Solutions” captures the
essence of what we do. At the same time, it
reflects our ambitions for the future. SIMONA is
well on the way to becoming a global company.
The US is our second-largest individual market
and Asia has been recording the strongest
growth rates within the Group.
As part of this annual report, we will be taking
a closer look at the three hemispheres in which
we intend to establish a significant market
position. You can look forward to fascinating
insights into the day-to-day work of people who
are employed by SIMONA around the globe.
In addition, our annual report includes details
of resources and assets that we are currently
looking to create and expand worldwide.
WOLFGANG MOYSES
CEO, Chairman of the Management Board
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SIMONA
Key Financials
SIMONA GROUP
2017

2016

2015

€m

394.1

366.7

360.3

%

7.5

1.8

7.1

Staff costs

€m

74.8

72.4

70.8

Earnings before taxes (EBT)

€m

24.6

28.2

24.8

Profit for the year

€m

17.5

19.5

17.3

Net cash from operating activities

€m

19.2

42.2

37.3

EBIT

€m

26.5

30.2

26.7

EBIT

%

6.7

8.2

7.4

EBITDA

€m

40.9

43.9

40.1

EBITDA

%

10.4

12.0

11.1

Revenue
Year-on-year change

Total assets

€m

363.4

363.0

318.4

Equity

€m

202.3

192.0

182.6

Property, plant and equipment

€m

114.4

116.7

113.8

Investments in property, plant and equipment

€m

Employees (annual average)

15.3

15.5

16.0

1,285

1,283

1,279

2017

2016

2015

On IFRS basis

STOCK PERFORMANCE

Earnings per share

€

29.08

32.48

28.78

Dividend

€

12.00

12.00

10.00

Dividend yield

%

2.1

2.7

2.7
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13.5

12.7
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365.00

P/E ratio*
based on year-end share price

€

* Calculated on Group basis
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,

SIMONA succeeded in meeting its growth targets in 2017. Sales revenue of €394 mil
lion was positioned at the upper end of our guidance range. This was attributable primarily to sustained buoyancy in the United States, strong growth in Asia and our ability
to capture an additional share of the industrial products market in Europe.
We are also satisfied with our earnings performance. While we progressed further at
an operational level, significant currency effects exerted downward pressure on earn
ings before interest and taxes. As a result of these factors, our EBIT margin was at
the lower end of the range initially targeted by the company.
We propose to the Annual General Meeting a dividend of €12 per share, unchanged on
the previous year. Indeed, we remain committed to the principle of offering you, as our
valued shareholders, an attractive return on your investment by allowing you to participate in our company’s financial success.
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As regards the Group’s strategic realignment, our focus was
on enhancing our production technology, expanding our
portfolio of materials and positioning ourselves effectively
in the area of pipes and fittings. Among the key measures
were the creation of new production and warehousing
space at our plant in Ringsheim, an investment offensive at
our facilities in the United States and the expansion of our
Technology Centre in Kirn to include a new extrusion line in
support of accelerated product development.
In 2017, the SIMONA Group recorded growth in all of the
regions covered. In the United States, for example, we benefited from sustained buoyancy in the aviation market. In
this context, our Boltaron subsidiary has been focusing
closely on the specific requirements associated with aircraft interiors. We also managed to strengthen our position
in the area of industrial products by bolstering our strategic
trading partnerships and raising the level of service provided. In Asia, meanwhile, we implemented a new organizational structure and created the position of CEO for this
region – a market with tremendous growth potential. Our
performance to date has been very encouraging. In fact,
Asia proved to be the fastest-growing sales region for the
Group in the financial year just ended. In Europe, we succeeded in recapturing market share in our core business of
chemical tank and equipment engineering, particularly in
the region covering Germany, Austria and Switzerland.
Business in Western Europe was dynamic in the year under
review, led in particular by the United Kingdom, Spain and
Italy. After a relatively sluggish first half, we also made up
ground in Eastern Europe.
As regards product categories, we recorded growth in both
Semi-Finished & Finished Parts and in Pipes & Fittings. In
the area of Semi-Finished & Finished Parts we managed to
further expand our market position within the chemical
process industry. Growth was particularly strong with
regard to sheets and solid rods made of PE and PP. Business also proved buoyant in the area of compact PVC
sheets, particularly due to a dynamic aviation market. We
were not quite able to match last year’s strong performance
in the market for PVC foam sheets, which is driven mainly
by price considerations. Business relating to the Pipes &
Fittings division also expanded, although growth in this
category fell short of expectations. The market for industrial
applications also generated growth for the Group. By con-

trast, business centred around civil engineering and lignite
processing was adversely affected by a lack of projects.
In 2018, we want to take advantage of the favourable economic climate in order to pursue growth and take profitability to the next level. The majority of target markets
served by SIMONA are developing well, although risks are
becoming more evident. We have pressed ahead with business development for new fields of application and expect
to reap initial rewards during the current financial year.
Embracing a new strategy for Pipes & Fittings, we are looking to expand revenue and maintain a solid level of profitability in this division. In Asia, we want to use last year’s
dynamic pace of growth as a springboard, the focus being
on the burgeoning premium market for safety- and eco-specific applications in the field of plastics. In the United
States, meanwhile, the chances of defending our strong
position within the expansive aviation market are considered to be good. The field of Industrial Products also offers
further potential, which we will be looking to leverage,
among other things, by expanding our product portfolio of
high-performance plastics.
Dear Shareholders,
“Global Thermoplastic Solutions” captures the essence of
what we do. At the same time, it reflects our ambitions for
the future. SIMONA is well on the way to becoming a global
company. The US is our second-largest individual market
and Asia has been recording the strongest growth rates
within the Group. As part of this annual report, we will be
taking a closer look at the three hemispheres in which we
intend to establish a significant market position. You can
look forward to fascinating insights into the day-to-day
work of people who are employed by SIMONA around the
globe. In addition, our annual report includes details of
resources and assets that we are currently looking to create and expand worldwide.
Kind regards,
Wolfgang Moyses

CEO, Chairman of the Management Board
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INTERVIEW

SIMONA in the US –
Scaling new heights
Following a targeted growth strategy after its acquisitions of Boltaron and
Laminations, the SIMONA Group has turned the US into its second-largest individual
market. Key to its success has been and continues to be a clear focus on the markets
for aircraft interiors and industrial market segments as well as giving staff a share in
this success via performance targets and an intensive coaching programme.
Mr. Schorr, please describe the strategic positioning of the
SIMONA AMERICA GROUP.
Lawrence Schorr: The SIMONA AMERICA GROUP (SAI) is
positioned as a leading plastic sheet manufacturer in the
aviation interiors market and a growing supplier of other
grades of plastic sheets in multiple industrial markets,
including the growing semiconductor market.
In what ways has the SIMONA AMERICA GROUP grown
since its acquisition of Boltaron and Laminations?
Lawrence Schorr: After the acquisition of Boltaron and
Laminations in early 2014, we focused on multiple object
ives including maintaining the entrepreneurial independence of Boltaron while at the same time figuring out how
to support Boltaron’s global growth with corporate technical, marketing and financial resources, and merging and
improving the separate operations of SIMONA AMERICA in
Hazleton, Pennsylvania and Laminations in Archbald,
Pennsylvania into a single operation in Archbald.

“As we have improved our operations and
our brand recognition, we have been able
to grow both revenue and profits.”
LAWRENCE SCHORR
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LAWRENCE J. SCHORR
CEO SIMONA AMERICA GROUP
Lawrence Schorr, CEO of the SIMONA AMERICA GROUP, has
been an industry leader in plastics manufacturing for over
20 years. In 2004, together with Dr. Dean Li, Mr. Schorr purchased the Boltaron business, transforming it over the next 10
years from a commodity calendaring sheet operation to a
specialized extrusion operation focusing on aircraft interiors.
He holds a Bachelors and Masters of Arts degree in English
Literature and an honor Juris Doctorate from Binghamton
University and a Doctor of Laws from Syracuse University.

Over the past four years we have been fortunate to have
been in an improving domestic and world economy, particularly in aviation interiors, semiconductor production,
and general industrial markets. As we have improved our
operations and improved our brand recognition, we have
been able to grow both revenue and profits.

The SIMONA AMERICA and Boltaron commercial sales team and business segment
managers gathered with distributors and
industry partners for a unique day of plastics training at the new Atlanta Braves
baseball stadium in Atlanta, GA.

Throughout the past year, SIMONA AMERICA has made significant investments to improve its extrusion capabilities, storage and material handling. These upgrades are aimed at
enhancing the company’s ability to service its customers and
at opening avenues for the introduction into new markets.
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How is the company investing in the well-being and
development of employees in the US?
Lawrence Schorr: We have focused on creating a unified
and flexible culture that tries to merge the best aspects of
the cultures of Boltaron, SIMONA AMERICA and SIMONA
AG. We also believe that culture must be supported by
incentive-based compensation plans that reward all levels
of the team when clear objectives are achieved. We are
also committed to coaching, meaning that we believe
when each one of us does well, we all do better.
What are the key manufacturing capabilities in the
US and what general investments have been made to
enhance them?
Lawrence Schorr: At Boltaron, our key manufacturing
capabilities are low-volume custom extrusion, thin-gauge
calendering and composite press laminating. We continue
to invest in each of these areas to increase capacity,
improve quality and reduce and reutilize scrap. At SAI, our
key capabilities are high-volume extrusion on our Polyolefines and PVC extruders as well as custom speciality
extrusion for linings and some semiconductor products.
We were able to justify a major capital investment in 2017
that resulted in substantial improvements for increased
capacity, quality and efficiency.
What are the market areas of focus for the company
today? For the future? How is the company looking to
succeed in these markets?
Lawrence Schorr: We don’t believe in dramatically changing our market focus but rather in enhancing our market
penetration in the markets we currently serve. Thus, we
are focused on further penetrating the aviation interior
market, the semiconductor market and various aspects of
the industrial markets such as playgrounds, mining,
marine and bathroom partitions. Success will be gained
from great production and great customer service. On the
latter, we have continued to grow our sales and marketing
capabilities with new team members as well as more
focus on exceeding our customers’ expectations.
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How is the company investing in providing unique services and technical resources?
Lawrence Schorr: At Boltaron, we have had great success
in developing a thermoforming consulting service for our
thermoforming customers. This service not only solves
customer problems, it enhances our knowledge of our
customers’ needs and expectations. We hope to expand
this capability in the near future. In general, our best sales

“We believe that when each one of us
does well, we all do better.”
LAWRENCE SCHORR, CEO SIMONA AMERICA GROUP

success comes when our sales force knows how to solve
our customers’ problems which means our sales force
needs continuous training and development on technical
issues. On the SAI side of the business we have implement
ed a SIMONA Academy training capability which helps our
distribution customers understand our capabilities and
products, enhancing their ability to sell our products.

Highlights 2017
SIMONA AMERICA
Boltaron at the Aircraft Interiors Expo 2017
At the 2017 Aircraft Interiors Expo in Hamburg, Germany,
Boltaron presented a bold, fresh face under the banner ‘Design
without Limits’. The focus was on three areas: technical expertise
and product development; quality and service; and the almost
infinite range of colours, patterns and textures that the company
offers its customers. Innovative products on display attracted a
great deal of interest from visitors to the show.

Design without Limits
Boltaron’s sales and engineering teams have gone to great
lengths to bring to life the inspired visions of aircraft interior
designers, seat manufacturers and airline brand managers to
challenge the traditional aesthetics of aircraft interiors.
The result is a portfolio of custom design capabilities that transcend the standards for opaque thermoplastic sheet with eyecatching textures, decorative prints and metallics.
Boltaron worked with innovative interior designers to develop a
new FAR-rated metallic and pearlescent sheet that offers an
exceptional combination of design freedom, aesthetics, thermoforming consistency and long service life for aircraft interiors.
Unlike monolithic metallic sheet, in which opaque color pigments
obscure a high percentage of metallic pigments, Boltaron metallic
sheet permanently fuses an opaque colour substrate with a
matching clear grade containing only metallic pigments. The
result: a unique and dramatically superior level of depth and
reflectivity.

SIMONA AMERICA Wins IAPD Excellence Awards
SIMONA AMERICA was thrilled to receive two awards from the
International Association of Plastics Distribution (IAPD) in 2017.
The first award, the Environmental Excellence Award, recognizes
the exemplary environmental responsibility by an IAPD member.
SIMONA was recognized for its innovative motion sensor warehouse lighting system, which regulates the lighting of the aisles
depending on their occupancy and has resulted in a 15% reduction of electrical consumption. In addition, the facility launched a
single stream recycling system, encouraging employee involvement in significantly reducing the amount of garbage sent to
local landfills.
The Marketing Excellence Award, which SIMONA AMERICA
received at the gold level, acknowledges the innovative or exemplary marketing initiatives by IAPD member firms. It is a special
recognition for those companies that promote the positive benefits of plastics and leverage all the marketing tools available to
them.
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SIMONA Academy Distributor School:
Ready for Sales Success
SIMONA AMERICA announced that it will host the first SIMONA
Academy Distributor School programme in 2018. As part of the
global SIMONA Academy curriculum, this US-based programme
will encompass the theme: ‘Ready for Sales Success’. This comprehensive training is intended to prepare distributors to be
selling ambassadors of SIMONA AMERICA and Boltaron products in the field. The programme will feature four key objectives.
“We don’t underestimate the value we can offer our distributors
by providing them with the knowledge tools, and hands-on experience that will set them up for SIMONA sales success,” said
Adam Mellen, CSO & VP Sales and Marketing at the SIMONA
AMERICA GROUP.

SIMONA AMERICA Celebrates Safety
SIMONA AMERICA continues to celebrate significant safety milestones. In an effort to thank employees for contributing to a safe
work environment, a safety celebration event was held, which
included safety sign-themed cookies from a local bakery. The
purpose was to sweeten the team’s enthusiasm for contributing
to a safe work environment.

Healthy Sales Team Means
Healthy Product Sales
The SIMONA AMERICA and Boltaron team made a big impact at
the 2017 IAPD Expo and Convention 5K fun run this year, showing up as a large group and proudly wearing SIMONA red. The
run, which took place along the Chicago Riverwalk, was a fun
way to encourage healthy habits, bring attention to the great
team and build excitement around our participation in the convention. After the run, the team enjoyed Chicago-style deep dish
pizza at the table top expo with industry partners and distributor
customers.
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Summer Fun
SIMONA AMERICA and Boltaron celebrated summer, family and
friendship at two company picnic events in July. Boltaron had a
party at Sluggers & Putters with 2 go-cart tracks, a driving range,
mini-golf, bumper boats and more. More than 200 Boltaron
teammates and family members attended. The SIMONA America
team had a company picnic at Knoebel’s Amusement Park and
Resort. The park was full of happy people wearing red t-shirts
sporting the SIMONA logo. Raffled off were prizes such as a
branded sports chair and a cooler full of summer essentials.
Later in the season, SIMONA AMERICA supported a local baseball summer camp by donating drawstring sports bags to school
age ‘baseball stars of tomorrow’.

Aviation Journalist Mary Kirby Visits Boltaron

Atlanta Plastics Charity Golf Tournament

Founder and editor Mary Kirby of
popular passenger experience
and aviation news website Runway Girl Network paid a special
visit to Boltaron at its Newcomerstown, Ohio facility. Mary was
keen to learn about Boltaron’s
unique manufacturing processes, as well as impressed with the
number of major airline programs Boltaron has participated in.
One of Mary’s favourite stops on the tour was in the specialist
parts production lab, where she got to see some custom airplane
lavatory shrouds, made with thermoformed Boltaron high heat
distortion material. In Mary’s words, she was ‘flushed’ with
excitement!

The Boltaron team is a proud participant of the annual Greg
Berry Atlanta Plastics Charity Golf Tournament, at Chateau Élan
in Braselton, GA. As in years past, Boltaron sponsored the Sunday evening welcome reception in 2017. A favourite activity at
the reception each year is the SIMONA putting contest – a battle
for bragging rights and the highest number of points shot
through a specially made SIMONA® HDPE Polytone putting board.
The event raised more than $1,000 through the putting contest
alone. This is just one of many industry charitable golf tournaments that SIMONA America and Boltaron support each year.

Women in Plastics

Engineer for a Day
Boltaron hosted area high school students for a day at the plant as
part of the Kent State University Engineer for a Day programme.
Taking place during National Engineers Week, this programme
allows local area high school juniors and seniors to spend part of
a day with an engineer, technologist or technician at their place
of work to gain exposure and a better understanding of the
duties and responsibilities involved in a profession prior to making the commitment to pursue the degree.

SIMONA AMERICA has been a proud sponsor of the International
Association of Plastics Distribution’s Women in Plastics (WIP)
programme since its inception. WIP is committed to supporting
women through mentoring, education and personal and professional development to attract, retain and advance women within
the plastics industry. WIP is open to members, plastics industry
professionals and students who are interested in supporting the
programʼs objectives. The programme’s initiatives include mentoring, personal and professional development, networking and
philanthropy.
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PORTRAIT

Production in the US –
Two high-profile sites
The SIMONA AMERICA Group runs two manufacturing plants in the US, where a programme of continuous investment guarantees exceptional product quality. The capacity
to offer technical consultancy, such as in the field of thermoforming, is being steadily
increased, while a training programme under the aegis of the SIMONA Academy is expanding the range of services available to customers, distributors and staff.
SIMONA AMERICA Inc.
Archbald, Pennsylvania

Boltaron Inc.
Newcomerstown, Ohio

SIMONA AMERICA Inc. offers an unmatched portfolio of
sheet and rod products for applications in virtually all
major markets served by plastic fabricators and distributors. Main application areas are the chemical processing
industry, environmental engineering and water management, marine and outdoor living, construction and advertising, food processing and agriculture as well as recreation and mobility.

Boltaron is a world leader in high-performance plastics for
demanding applications, specifically for the aircraft interiors industry. Rail/mass transit vehicles interiors as well as
commercial/industrial applications are other main application areas where Boltaron materials are used.

The company has made upgrades to many areas including
infrastructure, extrusion, storage, material handling, logistics, and technology for new product innovation and to
improve overall quality and service levels.
Products
 PE, PP, PVC, PVDF, ECTFE, PFA sheets
 PE, PP, PVC, PVDF, ECTFE, PFA welding rods
 PE, PP, PVC, PVDF solid rods
Production capabilities
 Extrusion
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No other film and sheet producer in the U.S. offers calendering, extrusion, and press lamination under one roof.
Each of these processes produces a range of film and
sheet products having distinct qualities.
Over 50 specialized grades offer a combination of fire
ratings, durability, colors, textures and gauges unavailable
from any other film and sheet producer. Boltaron’s aircraft
rated, PVC/Acrylic sheet products meet FAA requirements
for flame, heat release and smoke generation.
Products
 PVC/Acrylic sheets
Production capabilities:
 Extrusion
 Calendering
 Press lamination

€95m

revenue*

230

employees

Boltaron’s manufacturing plant in
Newcomerstown, Ohio, which mainly
makes semi-finished parts for fitting
out aircraft interiors.
Boltaron combines three different
production methods under one roof:
extruding individual plastic sheets,
calendering and vacuum-laminating.
At its plant in Archbald, Pennsylvania, SIMONA AMERICA focuses on
extruding semi-finished parts for
industrial market segments such as
tank and equipment construction,
semiconductor production and boatbuilding.

REVENUE PERFORMANCE* (in €m)

94.7
90.1

81.7

* Allocated acc. to place of registered office of revenue-generating business unit
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INTERVIEW

SIMONA in Asia –
Systematic growth
SIMONA significantly strengthened its market position in the Asia-Pacific region during the financial year just ended. In addition to attracting new customers, we expand
ed our strategic partnerships and adapted our organisational structures in line with
customer requirements. Our aim within the world’s fastest-growing region for polymer
applications is to establish a commanding market position, while pursuing a number
of ambitious goals.

YUEN KWANG WONG
CEO ASIA-PACIFIC
In his capacity as CEO, Yuen Kwang Wong has been responsible for the Asia-Pacific region since May 2017. He can draw on
more than 25 years’ experience in the Asian plastics industry.
Following his studies in engineering at the University of Kassel, he was keen to return to his native Singapore.
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Mr. Wong, what are SIMONA’s strategic objectives within
the Asia-Pacific region?
Yuen Kwang Wong: Our goal is to achieve revenue of €55
million and an EBIT margin in excess of 6 per cent by
2022. We have defined our top ten target industries in
which this growth is to be generated. All these target
industries are a perfect match for our preferred field of
business: the premium segment of plastics used in safety-critical applications and those of relevance to the environment. They include the chemical process industry,
water treatment and management, the semiconductor
industry, the construction sector and the food technology
industry.
What can you offer these industries?
Yuen Kwang Wong: SIMONA is a local producer in China
and has global access to an extensive product range marketed by the SIMONA Group. For our customers this translates into seamless support on the ground, complemented by the comprehensive product portfolio and technical
expertise of a global market player. In Asia, we are looking
to expand our high-value products in a focused manner,
the emphasis being on partially and fully fluorinated products made of plastics such as PVDF, ECTFE and PFA as
well as FM-certified materials. We are one of just a few
manufacturers capable of supplying customers not only
with sheets, rods and welding rods but also with pipes,
fittings and finished parts from a single source. Building
on this expertise, we have positioned ourselves as a systems supplier to OEMs and end consumers as well as a
strong partner to the retail and wholesale trade. One-stop
shopping is one of our key USPs.

The company's growth strategy for Asia is focused on safetycritical and eco-specific applications for plastic products within
the premium segment of the market.

The interdisciplinary Automotive team during production tests on
multilayer sheets for fuel tanks.
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Where do you see the greatest growth potential?
Yuen Kwang Wong: By 2030, China will rank as the largest
chemical producer in the world. Additionally, it is well on
the way to becoming a nation that embraces environmentalism. The damage caused by environmental pollution is
estimated to be as much as 13 per cent of the country’s
GDP per annum. The Chinese government has passed an
ambitious five-year plan for environmental protection. No
other country around the globe is investing more in renewable energy than China. This opens up tremendous opportunities for SIMONA products. Our semi-finished products
play an important role in making chemical plants safer.
Our pipes and fittings are used in the field of water treatment and are engineered to ensure that wastewater is
transported safely over a period of many decades. In the
past, such applications were covered mainly by low-quality
products. More recently, however, China has seen a
change in attitude – with a greater emphasis on high-quality solutions.

“By 2030, China will rank as the largest
chemical producer in the world. Additionally, it is well on the way to becoming a
nation that embraces environmentalism.”
YUEN KWANG WONG, CEO ASIEN-PAZIFIK

Although capital expenditure is higher, the service life of
such products is much longer. At the same time, these
solutions are safer and therefore offer greater environmental protection. SIMONA has many years of experience
and considerable expertise when it comes to advising
customers on the selection of suitable materials, performing structural calculations and contributing to the techni-

cal design of chemical tanks and equipment. With this in
mind, we are the perfect partner to plant manufacturers
and operators, but also to companies within the semiconductor industry.
In parallel, we will step up our efforts in the field of business development, the aim being to unlock opportunities
for new applications. The construction industry is a prime
example. Operating from a solid market position in Europe,
SIMONA has an extensive range of products tailored to the
needs of this market segment. Drawing on this experience, we intend to specify plastics for use in the building
sector and develop a compelling value proposition for end
consumers, architects and engineers. This will take some
patience, but we certainly have the determination to succeed.
Is your focus solely on China?
Yuen Kwang Wong: China is the single largest market in
Asia. Having said that, we also want to grow in other
regions – with different focal points. For instance, markets
in South-East Asia offer tremendous potential in the field
of water treatment and management as well as infrastructure. We are aligning our organisation with customer
requirements in these regional markets. Our aim is to
make a significant impact here as part of a concerted
effort. If we are able to build on our key strengths by introducing a next generation of highly innovative products and
succeed in penetrating markets with new fields of application, there is little doubt that SIMONA can establish itself
as a powerful player in the Asian market.

ASIA-PACIFIC REGION
REVENUE PERFORMANCE* (in €m)

30.2

2017

2016
2015

€30m

Core competencies:
J	 Extrusion
J	Coextrusion
(Multilayer sheets)

112

Products
J	 PE sheets
J	 PP sheets
J	 PVC sheets
J	 Multilayer sheets

revenue*

19.3
17.3

employees

* Allocated acc. to place of registered office of revenue-generating
business unit
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APPLICATION

SIMONA pipes and fittings for cablestayed bridge in South-East Asia
Created by the damming of the Kenyir
River, Kenyir Lake in Malaysia is the largest
artificial lake in South-East Asia. It features
some 340 islands, one of which is Pulau
Poh, which is currently only accessible by
boat. However, this will change in the
coming year – not least thanks to plastic
pipes and fittings supplied by SIMONA.
Pulau Poh Island boasts a subtropical rainforest and picturesque beaches. The aim is to develop the island and establish it as a major tourist attraction. One of the main problems at present: it can only be reached by water. A new
bridge construction project, however, will soon pave the
way for infrastructure improvements. This will involve building a cable-stayed bridge that is 130 metres in length and
is supported by a pylon some 60 metres in height. SIMONA
supplied PE 100 bridge cable protection pipes and fittings
tailored precisely to customer requirements. Among the
key specifications were high UV and weather resistance.

A special helix forms an integral part of the bridge cable
protection pipes. It prevents the protective pipes from
oscillating in the wind and ensures that rain water is diverted and can flow away.
SIMONA also supplied welded fittings, so-called pylon and
deck connectors. The time frame specified for production
was extremely short, as the components had to be transported over a long distance. Despite these challenges, an
interdisciplinary team from Sales, Production and Logistics
managed to complete the task on time and with great success. Construction work on the cable-stayed bridge to
Pulau Poh Island is scheduled for completion in mid-2018.
At a glance
Sheathing for steel cables of cable-stayed bridge to Pulau
Poh Island, one of 340 islands found in Kenyir Lake,
Malaysia.
SIMONA products used:
 Blue SIMONA® PE 100 protective pipes and fittings
(customised)
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EMPLOYEES

Living and working in the Far East:
Clemens Timm on a “growth mission”

The SIMONA team in Asia at its annual kick-off meeting held to coincide with Chinese New Year’s celebrations.

Business expansion beyond the borders of
Europe promotes international dialogue,
in addition to giving employees the chance
to take on responsibilities in new markets
and broaden their horizons – at a profes
sional and personal level.
Committed to bolstering our business in Asia in the area
of pipes and fittings, we were looking to appoint a Director
Asia for this specific division – and we found the perfect
candidate within our own ranks. Until then, Clemens Timm
– having held posts in Marketing and Product Management – had been Head of Customer Service – Pipes and
Fittings Division – at SIMONA’s headquarters in Kirn. As
our newly appointed Director Asia, he is responsible for
expanding SIMONA’s local business activities in the field
of pipes and fittings over a period of three years. This is his
story:
“My girlfriend and I moved to Shanghai in April 2016 – and
we are very comfortable here. It is the adventure we had
anticipated and hoped for. Arriving was easy. At first,
everything was new and exciting: the city, the people, the
job. We are still basically on a voyage of discovery. Shanghai is so big and constantly evolving. But after a while it is
also nice to know your surroundings. We take the metro to
get to work during the week, and in the evenings and on
weekends we use electric scooters to get around.

They make this vast city much smaller. As far as our social
life is concerned, we have made some great friends here,
and many friends and family members from home have
come out to visit us. In other words, we never get bored or
homesick. At the beginning of 2017, my girlfriend started
a new job at a major advertising agency. I have also settled
in very well, taking a lot of business trips with my job. After
a disappointing performance in 2016, we have now been
able to turn our business around. I am working hard alongside colleagues from Shanghai, Hong Kong and Kirn, and
we have already made good progress here.

Cooking lessons with a Chinese master chef.

“I am working hard alongside colleagues
from Shanghai, Hong Kong and Kirn, and
we have already made good progress
here.”
CLEMENS TIMM, PIPES AND FITTINGS ASIAN DIRECTOR

20

Highlights 2017
SIMONA ASIA & PACIFIC
Expansion of strategic partnerships in South-East Asia

Efforts to strengthen local infrastructure have boosted growth in South-East
Asia. Thailand, Vietnam, Indonesia and the Philippines have seen a significant
expansion in supply networks. These countries are also investing heavily in
water treatment facilities and power stations. Determined to grow in this
region, SIMONA is looking to expand its strategic partnerships. In 2017, we
teamed up with a local company and attended three key trade fairs for the
regional water industry – a success. Together with our partner, ASD PIPEPLAST
SUPPLY AND SERVICES, we gained access to a tender for the largest sewage
treatment plant in the Philippines.

Eco-friendly solutions for wastewater treatment in China

China’s dynamic growth has created tremendous challenges with regard to
environmental protection. SIMONA develops solutions from plastics to meet
these challenges. Our team in Asia showcased SIMONA’s range of semi-finished parts, pipes and fittings for industrial processes and wastewater treatment at the IE IFAT China Expo trade fair. In excess of 200 meetings and
numerous enquiries bear testimony to the success of the trade fair and are
also a tribute to our expertise as a premium manufacturer and development
partner for plastic solutions in Asia.

SIMONA Academy goes East

In 2017, SIMONA joined forces with a number of local trading partners as well
as welding machine manufacturer Leister Technologies AG and TÜV Rheinland
for the purpose of launching a customer training offensive in Asia. In Thailand
and Malaysia local distribution partners SPVC and LM Plastics invited their top
customers to a two-day event that included an in-house exhibition. The training
programme for these events was organised by our Technical Service Centre in
collaboration with our sales team in Asia. Customers received training in areas
such as chemical resistance as well as the use of our proprietary tank calculation software SmartTank. In cooperation with Leister, technical training seminars were also offered in China and India over the course of 2017, the focus
being on welding. Thus, the well-established concept applied by SIMONA
Academy – already attended by more than 1,700 people in Europe – has now
also found its way to Asia.

Focusing on India’s chemical process industry

SIMONA INDIA is gradually strengthening its market position and expanding its
product portfolio. The rapidly growing chemical process industry, in particular,
offers significant potential. At ISF India, the country’s leading trade fair in the
field of surface finishing, the SIMONA INDIA team presented an extensive
range of semi-finished products made of PP, CPVC, PVDF and E-CTFE as well
as pipes and fittings.
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INTERVIEW

SIMONA in Europe –
Innovation is the key
Europe is SIMONA’s most important market. Growth is limited in traditional areas of
application, but we are maintaining our share in these markets thanks to our technical
expertise and excellent service. SIMONA is looking to expand in new areas, such as
construction, agriculture and transport.

Mr. Möller, most of SIMONA’s growth is now taking
place outside Europe. Has this region become less
important for SIMONA?
Dirk Möller: Quite the opposite. Europe is becoming more
important as a base for our technology and development.
We are increasing our investment in manufacturing technology and expanding our materials portfolio. Our sales in
Europe showed a positive trend in 2017. We have a clear
strategy here. In our core markets of chemical equipment
and tank construction, we are looking to at least maintain,
and where possible, expand our market share. To do this,
we have to provide our customers with outstanding technical expertise and service. A recent, large-scale survey of
our customers in Europe confirms that we are succeeding

in this respect. At the same time, we are making great
strides with product development for new markets and
applications. Our aim is to open up new applications for
that great all-rounder: plastic.
How do you go about entering new markets?
Dirk Möller: We think carefully about where our plastics
could replace other materials, for example in agriculture,
construction and public transport. Our experience in process engineering allows us to supply plastics with a huge
range of properties: anti-static, non-slip, chemical and
acid-resistant, UV-stable, temperature-resistant from -190
to +260 degrees Celsius. Last year, we commissioned a
new extrusion line for our Technology Centre. This means
we can manufacture extruded sheets with small quantities
of materials, which speeds up our development processes.

“We are increasing our investment in
manufacturing technology and expanding
our materials portfolio. Our sales in Europe
showed a positive trend in 2017.”
DIRK MÖLLER
COO SIMONA AG
Dirk Möller is Deputy Chairman of the SIMONA AG Management Board. As COO, he is responsible for the following areas:
Semi-Finished and Finished Parts, Europe; Pipes & Fittings,
R&D, Process Development, Technical Service Centre and
Logistics. Mr. Möller was appointed to the Board in 1993. A
plastics technology engineer, he also studied business management at St. Gallen Management School.
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DIRK MÖLLER, COO SIMONA AG

The new Technology Centre at the Kirn headquarters acts as a
hub for our technical know-how, serving to accelerate our development projects.
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What developments do you see in plastics processing –
for SIMONA in general, and specifically in Europe?
Dirk Möller: Plastics have huge potential for growth,
including in Europe. Traditional markets are now very
mature, and growth can often only be achieved through
technical advances. By expanding our materials to include
high-performance plastics and steadily enhancing our

“By expanding our materials competence to
include high-performance plastics, along
with the constant evolution of our production
technology, we believe we have a good
chance of maintaining our leading position.”
DIRK MÖLLER

manufacturing technology, we believe we are well placed
to continue to play a leading role. But if we are to maintain
our success in the long run we also have to find new applications for plastics. This usually means using it as a substitute for other materials. Plastic has very specific properties, such as low weight and high stability, which gives it an
advantage over traditional materials. We have to spend
time explaining these benefits to potential users. This is
precisely what we are doing with our business development for new markets, and our efforts are bearing fruit.
SIMONA can work with plastics in a number of ways,
including extrusion, injection, pressing and foaming, to
name but a few. Our proficiency in plastics processing,
combined with our flexibility in meeting our customers’
advanced technical specifications, means we are well
placed for the future in Europe.

NEW PRODUCTS
PVC sheets for the construction industry

With SIMOPUR CONSTRUCT, SIMONA is launching a new PVC freefoam sheet onto the market. It impresses with its lightweight
construction, excellent stability and outstanding workability.

New textile lamination for fully fluorinated sheets

A new type of textile lamination has been introduced by expanding
the product range to include fully fluorinated high-performance
materials. This increases the range of applications for the transport, handling and storage of highly aggressive substances.
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PVC sheets for the construction industry

The AP-Line range of abrasion-resistant, multilayer pipes has been
expanded with the addition of an antistatic version, which has
been specially developed for transporting animal feed and other
pellets.

Expansion of SIMODRAIN product range

In the drainage systems market segment, a PE seating ring has
been developed to accommodate concrete covers. It is ideal for
use on railway tracks and as a substitute for standard concrete
components.

Highlights 2017
SIMONA Europe
Expanding the construction segment

The construction industry is a growth market for plastics. We want
to continue building on our position as suppliers to the construction industry with a wide range of semi-finished plastic products.
Attracting more than 250,000 visitors, BAU in Munich is the
world’s leading trade show for architecture, materials and systems. The SIMONA team made a very positive impression when
they exhibited for the first time at BAU. A number of new contacts
were made during the six-day event, including representatives of
the building trades and other industry segments. Trade visitors
were particularly impressed by our SIMOSHIELD products for door
manufacturing and SIMOFLOOR, the core sheet for vinyl floors.

Ice hockey champions rely on plastic sheets
during training

Plastics solutions for the bulk goods industry

The Czech Republic has numerous ice rinks and is renowned for
its youth development work, but its training facilities still require
improvement. This is also the case for HC Verva Litvinov, a club
that has already produced 19 world champions, Olympic medallists and Stanley Cup players. The club’s search for an alternative
to shooting training led them to SIMONA. A 4 x 12-metre indoor
sports hall was laid with SIMONA® Eco-Ice®, providing the perfect
year-round training surface. The fact that plastic sheets do not
require cooling means that they do not consume any energy.
They are also very tough and have excellent sliding properties.

Material flow and preventing abrasion during transportation are
major challenges for the bulk goods industry. SIMONA can provide
a range of plastics solutions for these applications, such as
ultra-high-molecular-weight SUPERLINING sheets and co-extruded
AP-Line pipes, fittings and sheets, which have been specially
developed for transporting solids and sludges. With a view to
increasing its market share in this segment, SIMONA made its
first appearance as an exhibitor at the SOLIDS exhibition in Dortmund. This led to numerous enquiries from plant manufacturers
and engineering firms − evidence of the strong demand that
exists for such plastics solutions.
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The Ringsheim Experience – expansion of
manufacturing and warehousing

Overall satisfaction

86.1 %
Recommendation rate

87.4 %

Customers and business partners from Germany, Switzerland
and the Netherlands had an opportunity to learn more about our
innovative processing options for pipelines and semi-finished
products at our newly introduced plastics workshop in Ringsheim.
The programme includes workshops on pipes and fittings and
the third generation of twin-wall sheets. "The Ringsheim Experience" allowed SIMONA to provide an exclusive platform for discussions on a range of fascinating topics, and brought together
customers from different industries and local partners, including
trainers from Emmendingen business school. The new facility
has added 2,400m² of production and warehousing capacity to
the factory in Ringsheim.

SIMONA customers are very satisfied and
happy to recommend our products and
services
With an overall satisfaction rate of 86.1% and a recommendation
rate of 87.4%, we were once again able to achieve top results in
our customer survey in an industry comparison. We regularly
survey more than 1,500 customers in all our European sales
regions to find out what they think about our products and services. Our sheets/rods/welding rods, pipes and fittings, finished
parts and profiles ranges were all given consistently high ratings
in categories such as quality, choice and product features. Compared to the last survey, we also saw significant improvements in
our service departments, such as our back-office and external
sales functions, order processing, delivery and dispatch, and
technical support and consulting.
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Going electric
The vehicle fleet at SIMONA AG headquarters has been extended
to include two fully electric cars. Rapid-charging stations have
been installed at Plants I and II. SIMONA has set ambitious carbon emissions targets for its vehicle fleet, and these two new
electric cars are a major step towards achieving them. The switch
to electric vehicles will make our fleet more eco-friendly and sustainable.

Surf pool manufactured with SIMONA® PE 100 RC
The UNIT SURF POOL is the world’s first floating surf pool and the
biggest and most effective artificial stationary wave in the world.
It was designed and patented by UNIT PARKTECH AG, based in
Cologne. The UNIT SURF POOL can be quickly and easily installed
on a lake or any body of standing water. Water is pumped from
below and flows into the pool via a ramp. When this water meets
the standing water, it creates a surfing wave. It has a pump capacity of 15,000 litres per second but consumes less than 340 kW/h
of electricity, making this system the most eco-friendly wave on
the market. The pool is manufactured using SIMONA® PE 100 RC
white sheets, which impress with their excellent finish and high

level of UV resistance. However, the main reason for selecting this
material was the fact that the PE 100 RC has an unusually high
resistance to gradual cracking, which in turn brings high mechanical resilience. The result is an innovative product that meets the
highest quality standards. This joint project forms part of our
long-standing business relationship with UNIT PARKTECH.

In-house development of inline thickness
measurement system
One of the key factors in SIMONA’s success is the production of
excellent quality products. This is why we have been working with
a specialised engineering firm to develop a new inline measuring
system for accurately measuring and monitoring the thickness of
our sheets. After two years of development work, the new inline
thickness measurement system is operating successfully on a
number of machines. SIMONA now has a unique system that
meets requirements such as temperature and material independence with an accuracy of 0.03 mm. The new measurement system allows SIMONA to start up its machinery more quickly, exploit
tolerances, record the extrusion process and continue to optimise
quality.
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PORTRAIT

Technological excellence and
R&D expertise
SIMONA operates with three production sites in Europe and an all-embracing distribution network that includes its own branch offices and independent trading partners.
Research and development, processing engineering and the Technical Service Centre
are an integral part of the technology hub established at the Group’s headquarters in
Kirn, Germany.
Europe continues to be an important market and a key
business location for SIMONA. Building on our extensive
range of finished and semi-finished parts as well as pipes
and fittings, we are committed to cementing and expanding
our formidable market position in the field of industrial
applications. At the same time, we want to enter new market segments offering potential for our polymer products,
such as agriculture and mobility. Boasting significant technical expertise, Europe is also to be seen as a major driving
force behind global product development.

EUROPE

EUROPE*
(in €m)

(+4.6 %)

257.3

€269m
revenue*

2015

2016

2017

940

employees

* allocated acc. to place of registered
office of revenue-generating business
unit
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Semi-Finished and Finished Parts division
In 2017, SIMONA invested in a new extrusion line for its
Technology Centre at the corporate headquarters. Using
small quantities of material, it offers the advantages of
efficient sheet extrusion and fast-track product development.
Products
 Sheets
 Hollow and solid rods
 Profiles
 Welding rods

269.2
261.3

Kirn, Germany

Core competencies:
 Monoextrusion
 Coextrusion
 RAM extrusion
 Pressing
 Foaming
 Research and development
 Technology Centre

Ringsheim, Germany

Litvinov, Czech Republic

Pipes and Fittings division
A new building has extended the plant’s overall capacity by
providing additional production and storage space. Customised products and solutions can be manufactured by
the in-house plastics workshop. The range of injection-moulded fittings is undergoing steady expansion.

Multifunctional production site
SIMONA’s plant in the Czech Republic has increased its
direct sales. The local energy management system was
certified in accordance with international standards, while
energy consumption was scaled back further in 2017.

Products
 Pipes
 Fittings
 Finished parts and profiles
 Twin-wall sheets
 Injection-moulded parts

Products
 Sheets
 Pipes
 Fittings
Core competencies:
 Extrusion
 Plastics workshop

Core competencies:
 Extrusion
 Injection moulding
 Machining
 Plastics workshop
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APPLICATION

Adjustable swimming pool floors
made from SIMONA® PP-H sheets
for an aquatics centre

Competition pool at Budapest’s Duna Aréna fitted with SIMONA® PP-H white 9002 sheets

The pools at the newly built Duna Aréna in Budapest are kitted out with PP-H sheets
from SIMONA. The arena was constructed specifically for the 2017 World Aquatics
Championships. The contract to supply the adjustable pool floors and bulkheads was
won by Variopool B. V., a Dutch company that is the market leader in this segment.
Hungary hosted the 17th World Aquatics Championships
in July 2017. This involved building the Duna Aréna in Budapest, a state-of-the-art aquatics centre with space for
13,000 spectators. The various events such as pool and
synchronised swimming, diving and water polo require
different water depths and pool sizes. With this in mind, a
25 x 1.5 x 3.3 m partition and two starting-block bulkheads were installed. The training pool at the aquatics
centre was equipped with a hydraulic floor measuring 25
x 25 m and a partition measuring 25 x 1.5 x 2.5 m. The
system installed by Variopool is fully automated, allowing
water depths to be adjusted within just a few minutes. This
enables aquatics centres to remain financially viable and
attractive to a wide range of target groups, from professionals to first-time swimmers. The floors and partitions
were engineered from SIMONA® PP-H white 9002 sheets,
which combine high chemical resistance with excellent
durability. Featuring an embossed surface on one side,
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the sheets are the perfect choice when it comes to creating a safe swimming environment and ensuring a long
service life.
In the long term, the Duna Aréna is to be used not only as
a venue for sports events but also as an aquatics centre
for the general public, including swimming lessons for
children.

At a glance
Installing a hydraulic floor, a partition in the training pool and
another partition and two starting-block bulkheads in the
competition pool at the Duna Aréna in Budapest
SIMONA products used:
 White SIMONA® PP-H sheets with one embossed surface

APPLICATION

SIMONA® PE 100 liner pipes for
rehabilitation of drinking water
mains in Bern
In the Swiss capital Bern, a drinking water mains dating back to 1959 had to be rehabilitated. Owing to the high volume of traffic and the high cost of repair, it was not
possible to consider an open-cut, conventional method of construction. However, the
old grey cast iron pipeline was replaced quickly and cost-effectively with tough, pressure-resistant SIMONA® PE 100 liner pipes using the swagelining method.

The swagelining or reduction process was developed for
the rehabilitation of gas and drinking water mains as well
as sewer pipes. With this relining method without any
annular space (“close-fit” lining), special-purpose SIMONA®
PE 100 liner pipes are uniformly reduced in diameter to
such an extent that they can be pulled into the existing old
pipe without sustaining any damage. The PE pipe string is
drawn through a tapered die so that its cross-section is
reduced. When the pulling action has been completed, the
elasticity of the material causes the PE pipe string to re-expand and fit snugly round the inside wall of the old pipe
without leaving any annular space (“close fit”). Despite the
minimal reduction in the hydraulic cross-section, the special-purpose SIMONA® PE 100 liner pipe also improves the
hydraulic performance of the pipeline.

The reduction process saves the need for labour-intensive, time-consuming and expensive civil engineering work
and does not harm the environment. In addition, local
residents and road traffic are inconvenienced far less
than in the case of conventional methods. The entire construction project was successfully completed within only a
few weeks to the satisfaction of everyone involved.
At a glance
Trenchless rehabilitation of a drinking water mains in Bern using
the swagelining or reduction method and a “close-fit” liner.
SIMONA products used:
 SIMONA® PE 100 liner pipes for the reduction method
d 315 mm, SDR 17, PN 10

The pre-welded SIMONA® PE 100 liner pipe is drawn through a tapered die, thus reducing the cross-section.
Due to the elasticity of the material, the pipeline expands again and provides a snug fit round the inside wall of the old pipe.
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“A company like a friend.”
– SIMONA’S new HR concept
SIMONA thrives on the strong, often very warm relationships that exist between its employees, and with customers, partners and local communities. At SIMONA, it is the people who matter – something that SIMONA uses to its advantage when trying to recruit
the brightest and the best.
SIMONA’s new HR concept “A company like a friend.” is an
expression of our approach to life. At SIMONA, colleagues
can become friends. Joint activities outside the workplace
bring people closer and give them fresh energy to tackle
work challenges together. The way that we deal with each
other provides opportunities for friendships to develop and
helps them to blossom. Flat hierarchies, open doors, dealing with each other fairly and organising regular events for
staff and their families are just a few examples of this. It
creates a sense of togetherness, improves performance
and leads to more success for our business.
SIMONA promotes activities to consolidate this culture, for
example:
 Events organised by and for staff, such as the
SIMONA Family Day

At the annual Christmas party, staff from the pipes and fittings plant
in Ringsheim took part in a curling tournament on an ice rink made
with SIMONA® Eco-Ice® plastic sheets. At the winter barbecue that followed, they enjoyed swapping tips on correct technique and discussing how they fared in the tournament.
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 International training programmes
 Corporate health management with Health Days
 A company support group for young talent to prepare

them for specialist and management roles
 In-house training programmes
 Helping staff train to become master craftsmen/

technicians
 Sandwich courses in partnership with a number of

universities
 Large intake of vocational trainees, and dedicated

trainers who are members of examination boards
The HR concept conveys this message in job adverts, at
training and careers fairs, and online.

Motocross fans join forces: Maintenance Engineer Egon Stein
and Management Board member Freddy Hiltmann got to know
each other at a long-service celebration to mark Egon’s 45
years with the company. A founding member of the Hennweiler e.V. motorsport club, he was a regular competitor in OMK
competitions, the German Motocross Championships, for
many years. Soon after their first meeting, the pair took to the
track with a bike and sidecar.

Im Rahmen eines Ersatzbedarfs suchen wir für unser Einkaufsteam eine/n

Strategische/n Einkäufer/in
Investitionsgüter, Energie und Bauwesen
Sie verantworten die Beschaffung von Investitionsgütern mit dem
Schwerpunkt Maschinen und Anlagen. Dabei übernehmen Sie die
Planung, Strukturierung und Umsetzung von Projekten zur Investitionsgüterbeschaffung sowie die Durchführung von Vergabeverfahren
im Bauwesen. Dazu gehören die Ausschreibung von Projekt- und
wiederkehrenden Leistungen (z. B. Rahmenverträge), die Erarbeitung
und Weiterentwicklung internationaler Beschaffungsstrategien, die
Durchführung von Verhandlungen, die Sicherstellung der Verhandlungserfolge, die kaufmännische Prüfung von Leistungsbeschreibungen, Leistungsverzeichnissen, Angeboten und Verträgen sowie
Lieferantenmanagement, -bewertung und -auditierung.
Ihre Qualifikation:
 Wirtschaftswissenschaftlicher und/oder technischer Studienabschluss (z. B. BWL oder Wirtschaftsingenieurwesen)
 Berufserfahrung im Einkauf
 Kenntnisse VOB und HOAI von Vorteil
 Vertragsrechtskompetenz
 Prozessorientiertes, analytisches und konzeptionelles Denken
sowie technische Affinität
 Starkes Durchsetzungsvermögen, Verhandlungsgeschick und
Kommunikationsfähigkeit
 Verhandlungssichere Englischkenntnisse
 Sehr gute MS-Office-Kenntnisse und Kenntnisse in SAP/R-3
wünschenswert

Standort: Kirn
Bewerbungen bitte an:
SIMONA AG
Personalleitung
Frau Helena Lau
Postfach 133
55602 Kirn
bewerbung@simona.de
Telefon: 0 67 52 14-241
Bitte geben Sie Ihre
Gehaltsvorstellung und
Ihren frühestmöglichen
Eintrittstermin an.

Die Menschen bei SIMONA machen den Unterschied. 1.300 Mitarbeitende weltweit
stehen für intensive Beratung, Leidenschaft für den Erfolg, hohe Kompetenz und Spaß an
gemeinsamen Aktivitäten. Unsere thermoplastischen Kunststofflösungen sind führend
in chemischer Industrie, Maschinenbau, Mobilität, Bau, Versorgung und vielen weiteren
Anwendungsgebieten. Mehr als 100.000 Tonnen Kunststoff verarbeiten wir jährlich zu
Platten, Rohren, Form- und Fertigteilen an Produktionsstandorten in Europa, USA und Asien.
Im General Standard der Börse Frankfurt notiert, agieren wir wie ein Familienunternehmen:
finanziell solide, am langfristigen Erfolg orientiert, mit flachen Hierarchien, guten Entwicklungsmöglichkeiten und individueller Förderung.
www.simona.de

The message of the new HR concept is
being conveyed at trade fairs and in job
adverts and image campaigns.

Office staff joined their colleagues
from Production to take part in a fivea-side football tournament in Oberreidenbach (Rhineland-Palatinate). They
had great fun playing as a team – and
ended up winning the competition.

12 new vocational trainees began their careers in 8 technical and commercial areas in 2017. The following apprentices began their training as technicians in process engin
eering, industrial engineering and electronics: D. Schmitz,
S. Yotkiri, F. Große-Aschhoff, J. Schwickart, O. Plauth,
J. Michels, R. Götz.

The following completed English courses in various modules: “Using
the telephone with confidence”, “Refreshing your English”, “Successful
presentations”, “Successful meetings” and “Technical English” (L to R:
J. Stender, L. Winterwerb (TIP TOP ENGLISH), I. Schinz, S. Rohr).
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Stock Performance and Capital Markets

SIMONA STOCK 2017
WKN

723940

ISIN

DE0007239402

Type of security

Domestic stock

Par value

No-par-value shares

Share capital

€15.5 million

Stock exchange

Frankfurt am Main (General Standard)
Berlin

Price at beginning of year

€445.00

Price at end of year

€574.45

Annual high

€600.00

Annual low

€445.00

Annual gain 2017

29.1 per cent

GERMAN STOCK MARKET IN 2017
In 2017, Germany’s blue chip index, the DAX, recorded its best
year of trading since 2013. Benefiting from consistently low interest rates, a high proportion of exports attributable to German
companies and a strong domestic economy, the index achieved
an annual gain of 12.5 per cent. The DAX put in a dynamic performance over the course of the year, buoyed among other things by
multiple upgrades of economic forecasts and a sustained policy
of low interest rates. From a base of around 11,500 points at the
beginning of the year, the DAX reached its annual high of approx.
13,500 points in November. With no sign of a year-end rally, the
DAX closed the year at around 12,900 points.

SIMONA STOCK
Starting from €445 at the beginning of the year, SIMONA’s stock
performed even more dynamically than the DAX. Supported by the
announcement of favourable annual results for fiscal 2016, the
company’s share price reached €548 in April 2017. In September,
the price of SIMONA stock stood at €600 for the first time. Having
already breached the €500 mark, it thus set another record in
2017. The company’s shares were not entirely immune to the
waning performance of Germany’s stock market towards the end
of the year and closed the year at around €575. This represents
an annual gain of 29.1 per cent, which was twice as much as
Germany’s blue chip DAX index.

EBIT PERFORMANCE SIMONA GROUP
2017

2016

2015

EBIT

€m

26.5

30.2

26.7

EBIT

%

6.7

8.2

7.4

EBITDA

€m

40.9

43.9

40.1

EBITDA

%

10.4

12.0

11.1

Total assets

€m

363.4

363.0

318.4

Equity

€m

202.3

192.0

182.6

2017

2016

2015

€

29.08

32.48

28.78

Dividend

€

12.00

12.00

10.00

Dividend yield

%

2.1

2.7

2.7

19.8

13.5

12.7

574.45

441.00

365.00

Based on IFRS

STOCK PERFORMANCE

Earnings per share

P/E ratio*
based on
year-end share price
* Calculated on Group basis
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€

STOCK PERFORMANCE (in €)
625.00

Closing price at end of month

600.00
575.00
550.00

574.45

525.00
500.00

(1 year: +29.1 %)

475.00
450.00

29.12.

1.12.

1.11.

2.10.

1.09.

1.08.

3.07.

1.06.

2.05.

1.04.

4.03.

2018
1.02.

2.01.

2017

31.01.

425.00

year-end share price

600

11.00

Dividend

550

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

50
2002

100

1.00
2001

150

2.00

2000

200

3.00

1999

250

4.00

1998

300

5.00

1997

350

6.00

1996

400

7.00

1995

450

8.00

1994

500

9.00

1993

10.00

Share price

12.00

1992

Dividend per share

SHARE PRICE AND DIVIDEND SINCE IPO (in €)

DIVIDEND
The Management Board and Supervisory Board will propose to
the Annual General Meeting a dividend payout of €12.00 per
share. Thus, SIMONA intends to maintain last year’s high dividend
level. At the same time, the company is committed to its long-term
dividend policy that offers shareholders an attractive return on
their investment by allowing them to participate in the company’s
success.

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
Phone +49 (0) 6752 14-383
ir@simona.de
www.simona.de/ir
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Governing Bodies at SIMONA AG

MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD
Wolfgang Moyses

Dirk Möller

Fredy Hiltmann

Chairman

Deputy Chairman

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Operating Officer

Member of the Management Board since 2012

Member of the Management Board since 1999

Member of the Management Board since 1993

Areas of responsibility
– USA and Asia-Pacific
– Global Business Segments
– Strategic Business Development
– HR & Legal
– Investor Relations
– Marketing and Communication

Areas of responsibility
– Semi-Finished Parts Division Europe
– Pipes and Fittings Division
– Research and Development
– Applications Engineering/
Technical Service Centre
– Process Development
– Logistics

MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
Dr. Rolf Goessler
Bad Dürkheim, Diplom-Kaufmann

Chairman

Roland Frobel
Isernhagen, Managing Director of
ROSSMANN CENTRAL EUROPE B. V.,
Renswoude, Netherlands

Deputy Chairman

SUPERVISORY BOARD COMMITTEE
Audit Committee
Roland Frobel
Chairman
Dr. Rolf Goessler
Dr. sc. techn. Roland Reber

Dr. sc. techn. Roland Reber
Stuttgart, Managing Director of
Ensinger GmbH, Nufringen
Joachim Trapp
Biberach, Member of the Management Board
of Kreissparkasse Biberach, Biberach

Personnel Committee

Jörg Hoseus
Monzingen, Industrial Mechanic

Employee Representative
(until 28/02/2017)

Gerhard Flohr
Bergen, Maintenance Engineer/Fitter

Employee Representative
(until 28/02/2017)

Andy Hohlreiter
Becherbach, Chairman of the Works Council

Employee Representative
(as from 01/03/2017)

Markus Stein
Mittelreidenbach, Deputy Chairman of
the Works Council

Employee Representative
(as from 01/03/2017)
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Areas of responsibility
– Finance
– Controlling
– Taxation
– Purchasing
– IT & Organisation
– Quality Management

Dr. Rolf Goessler
Chairman
Roland Frobel
Dr. sc. techn. Roland Reber

Report by the Supervisory Board
2017 Financial Year
The SIMONA Group saw revenue increase by 7.5 per cent in the 2017 financial year. This represents encouraging organic growth that lies within the range targeted for the medium term.
If it had not been for the effects of foreign exchange movements, which are beyond the scope
of influence, earnings performance would have improved in line with revenue growth. When it
comes to assessing the current situation and the future prospects of the SIMONA Group,
however, the Supervisory Board considers operating profit to be of greater significance. This
figure increased significantly in the period under review. With this in mind, the Supervisory
Board is of the opinion that a dividend corresponding to that offered in the previous year would
be appropriate. Therefore, it concurs with the proposal submitted by the Management Board.

DR. ROLF GOESSLER
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Over the course of 2017, the company made further progress in
its efforts to achieve its long-term strategic goals. However, it had
to contend with the fact that many of the world’s major market
players are in search of profitable investment opportunities.
Against this backdrop, it has become increasingly difficult to
acquire interests in investees that are viable in the long term. For
this reason, no new acquisitions were made during 2017.
The Supervisory Board is of the firm belief that SIMONA is well
equipped for the future. One of the essential prerequisites in this
context is the Group’s solid financial position. At the same time,
we draw confidence from the anticipated benefits associated with
the Technology Centre, progress made in Asia after many years of
effort, the success of our acquisitions in the United States, a new
leadership structure and the clear legal separation of company
divisions in support of greater transparency with regard to specific areas of responsibility within the Group.

COOPERATION WITH THE MANAGEMENT BOARD
Over the course of the 2017 financial year, the Supervisory Board
discharged its duties under statutory provisions, the company’s
articles of association and terms of reference, advised the Management Board on a regular basis and evaluated and monitored
management’s activities in respect of legality, appropriateness
and regularity. It also conducted an assessment of the company’s
risk management and compliance procedures and came to the
conclusion that the system implemented meets the requirements
to the fullest extent. The Management Board and Supervisory
Board engaged in dialogue concerning the strategic direction of
the company and regularly discussed the status of execution with
regard to strategic initiatives. The Supervisory Board was directly
involved in all decision-making processes of fundamental import
ance to the company. The Management Board informed the
Supervisory Board as part of regular written and verbal reports,
furnished in a timely and comprehensive manner. At the same
time, the Management Board outlined any deviations between
specified targets and the actual course of business, elucidated
them in full and explained any countermeasures taken to rectify
the situation. The content and scope of reports furnished by the
Management Board met the requirements set out by the Supervisory Board. In addition to the above-mentioned reports, the
Supervisory Board asked the Management Board to provide supplementary information relating to certain issues. In particular,
the Management Board was available at Supervisory Board meetings for the purpose of discussing specific points and answering
any questions put to it by the Supervisory Board. Transactions
requiring the Supervisory Board’s consent were discussed and
examined in depth in cooperation with the Management Board.
Where required, the Supervisory Board also convened without the
Management Board being present.
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The Chairman of the Supervisory Board was also kept fully
informed by the CEO about current matters and circumstances in
between meetings convened by the Supervisory Board and its
committees. In the case of significant events in respect of the
situation and performance of the company, this information was
provided without delay. Additionally, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board conducted one-to-one meetings with the other members of the Management Board for the purpose of discussing
specific issues relating to their remit.
In accordance with the provisions of the German Corporate Governance Code, the Supervisory Board assessed the efficiency of
its activities with the help of a questionnaire during the 2017
financial year. There were no complaints with regard to its own
work or its collaboration with the Management Board. Furthermore, no requests for changes were submitted.
SUPERVISORY BOARD MEETINGS
The Supervisory Board convened four scheduled meetings over
the course of 2017. Employee representative Markus Stein was
not able to attend the meeting on 26 July 2017. The other meetings held over the course of 2017 were attended by all of the
Supervisory Board members.
At its meeting on 23 February 2017, the Supervisory Board
focused on the preliminary annual results for the 2016 financial
year and the current business situation. Furthermore, the Supervisory Board discussed and approved the dividend proposal for
the 2016 financial year. At this meeting, the Supervisory Board
also passed the Declaration of Conformity with regard to the German Corporate Governance Code. Employee representatives Jörg
Hoseus and Gerhard Flohr, who stepped down from the Supervisory Board at the end of February, were thanked for their work in
the interests of SIMONA’s employees and the company.
The meeting on 20 April 2017 was attended for the first time by
the newly elected employee representatives on the Supervisory
Board, Andy Hohlreiter and Markus Stein. The focus was on
approving and adopting the consolidated financial statements,
the separate financial statements of the parent company, the
proposal by the Management Board for the appropriation of distributable profit generated in the financial year 2016, the report
by the Supervisory Board for the financial year 2016 and the
result of the year-end audit conducted by Pricewaterhouse
Coopers Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft,
Frankfurt am Main. At this meeting, the Supervisory Board also
approved the agenda for the 2017 Annual General Meeting. Additionally, the Supervisory Board informed itself about the current
business situation and the outlook for the SIMONA Group. It also
dealt with strategic issues relating to the United States and China,
in addition to discussing the target figures set for female representation on the Management Board and Supervisory Board.
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At its meeting on 26 July 2017, the Supervisory Board informed
itself about the financial results of the first half of the year. The
Supervisory Board also discussed the direction taken by foreign
exchange rates and possible measures aimed at risk mitigation.
It also focused on a strategy assessment for business relating to
pipes and fittings, which also encompassed relevant conclusions.
Additionally, the Supervisory Board decided not to prioritise any
major relocation as part of the SIMONA HOME 2025 project.
At its meeting on 14 December 2017 the Supervisory Board
focused on business performance in the first nine months of the
financial year. It also held an in-depth discussion on the budget
for 2018 and approved it. As in the previous meetings, one of the
focal points was the planned separation of production units from
SIMONA AG and their transfer to independent production companies as wholly-owned Group subsidiaries. The advantages and
disadvantages of such a future structure were discussed extensively and the fundamental decision was taken to adopt a structure under corporate law that would benefit SIMONA when it
comes to making it fit for the future and securing its competitiveness. At this meeting, the Supervisory Board discussed the routine adjustment of fixed Management Board compensation and
resolved to extend the contract with Dirk Möller until 30 June
2019. Another focal point was the new concept for administration
in Kirn with all the associated organisational improvements. Furthermore, the Supervisory Board discussed and passed the
future governance concept.
COMMITTEE WORK
The Supervisory Board is assisted by the Audit Committee and
Personnel Committee. Both committees regularly provide the
Supervisory Board with extensive information relating to their
activities. The Audit Committee is responsible primarily for issues
relating to the supervision of the accounting process, the efficacy
of the internal control system and the internal auditing system,
year-end auditing, with a particular focus on the independence of
the auditor, the additional services provided by the independent
auditor, the determination of auditing focal points and arrangements relating to fees as well as compliance and acquisitions. The
principal duties of the Personnel Committee are centred around
compensation as well as the conclusion, amendment and termination of Management Board members’ employment contracts.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee convened on four occasions. It dealt primarily with the future prospects in the United States and China. The
key focus was on the strategic positioning of Semi-Finished and
Finished Parts as well as Pipes and Fittings, alongside the direction taken by foreign exchange rates. The Supervisory Board also
discussed the documents presented by the Management Board
with regard to the performance and cost of external consultants.
The Audit Committee debated draft resolutions for the entire

Supervisory Board as regards major internal projects, particularly
the legal separation of the production companies.
Personnel Committee
The Personnel Committee met on five occasions. It discussed the
personnel-related aspects of possible changes to the company’s
headquarters and in particular the future governance structure,
especially in view of the increasingly international nature of the
Group. A joint meeting with the entire Management Board was
convened to discuss this topic.
Dealing with conflicts of interest
All members of the Supervisory Board are obliged to disclose
conflicts of interest as soon as they occur. As in the previous
years, there were no conflicts of interest during the 2017 financial
year. Following our review, we ascertained that all members of our
board are independent within the meaning of the German Corporate Governance Code.
ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The accounts of SIMONA AG for the 2017 financial year were
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main, appointed
as auditor by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on 9
June 2017. Before proposing PricewaterhouseCoopers Aktiengesellschaft as auditor to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board had obtained confirmation from PricewaterhouseCoopers Aktiengesellschaft that
there were no circumstances which might prejudice its independence as an auditor. The auditor conducted an audit and furnished
an unqualified audit opinion with regard to the financial statements and management report of SIMONA AG and the consolidated financial statements and Group management report, which
was combined with the management report of SIMONA AG, as
well as the explanatory report by the Management Board in
respect of disclosures under Section 289(4) and 315(4) HGB in
conjunction with the accounting records.

atory report by the Management Board in respect of disclosures
required under Section 289(4) and Section 315(4) HGB, the audit
reports issued by the independent auditor and the proposal put
forward by the Management Board with regard to the appropriation of profit. The Supervisory Board raised no objections upon
conclusion of this final examination. The Supervisory Board concurs with the findings of the audit conducted by the independent
auditor and approved the company’s financial statements, which
are thereby adopted pursuant to Section 172 sentence 1 AktG, as
well as the consolidated financial statements at its meeting on 19
April 2018; it also approved this Supervisory Board report. Furthermore, the Supervisory Board concurs with the Management
Board’s proposal for the appropriation of profit. The Supervisory
Board conducted a thorough review of the non-financial statement issued by the company in accordance with Sections 289b
and 289c HGB; it discussed it at its audit meeting on 19 April and
adopted it accordingly. No voluntary review by the independent
auditors was conducted in respect of the non-financial statement,
as the Supervisory Board possesses the requisite expertise in
this matter.
In the financial year under review many employees were involved
in time-consuming projects and performed special tasks alongside their usual responsibilities. We would like to express our
thanks for their commitment. Our gratitude also goes to the Management Board as well as our customers and business
Kirn, 19 April 2018

THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
Dr. Rolf Goessler, Chairman

The financial statements mentioned above, the audit reports and
the Management Board’s proposal for the appropriation of the
unappropriated surplus were submitted to all Audit Committee
and Supervisory Board members in good time. At the Supervisory
Board meeting on 19 April 2018, the independent auditor furnished detailed information about all material conclusions of the
audit and answered all questions put forward by the Supervisory
Board in a detailed and comprehensive manner. The Supervisory
Board independently examined the financial statements and
management report of SIMONA AG as well as the consolidated
financial statements and the Group management report, which
has been combined with the management report of SIMONA AG,
as prepared by the Management Board, in addition to the explan-
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Combined Management Report
for the 2017 Financial Year
This management report combines the Group management report and the separate management
report of SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft, Kirn (referred to also as SIMONA AG, SIMONA or company)
(Section 315(3) in conjunction with Section 298(3) of the German Commercial Code – HGB). This
combined management report has been published instead of a Group management report in the
annual report of the SIMONA Group. It includes details relating to the course of business, including
performance, as well as the position and expected development of the Group and SIMONA AG.
Information pertaining to SIMONA AG has been included in the business review that can be found
in a separate section with details presented in accordance with provisions set out in the German
Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch – HGB).

1. FUNDAMENTAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE GROUP
1.1 The business model
The SIMONA Group develops, manufactures and markets a range
of semi-finished thermoplastics, pipes and fittings as well as finished parts and profiles. The materials used include polyethylene
(PE), polypropylene (PP), polyvinyl chloride (PVC), polyethylene
terephthalate (PETG), polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF), ethylene-chlorotrifluoroethylene (E-CTFE) and perfluoroalkoxy (PFA) as
well as various specialist materials. The production methods
applied within this area range from extrusion, pressing and injection moulding to CNC manufacturing. SIMONA also maintains its
own plastics workshop for the production of customised fittings.
Key sales markets
Semi-finished parts are deployed mainly within the area of chemical tank and equipment construction, mechanical engineering,
the transport industry, the construction sector, the exhibition and
display sector as well as the automobile and aerospace industry.
Pipes and fittings are used primarily for drinking-water supply,
sewage disposal and industrial piping systems, including the
chemical process industry. Finished parts and profiles are destined in particular for the mechanical engineering and transport
technology sectors.
The SIMONA Group markets its products worldwide. The primary
reporting segments are categorised according to the following
regions:
 Europe
 Americas
 Asia and Pacific
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The secondary classification is based on product areas:
 Semi-finished and finished parts
 Pipes and fittings
Production and sales locations
Sales activities at Group level are conducted by SIMONA AG and
subsidiaries in the United Kingdom, Italy, France, Spain, Poland, the
Czech Republic, Russia, Hong Kong, China, India and the United
States, both directly and via trading partners. Beyond this,
SIMONA AG operates a sales office in Möhlin, Switzerland. It contributes around 3 per cent to Group sales revenue. The parent
company, SIMONA AG, has its registered office in 55606 Kirn (Germany). In the period under review, the SIMONA Group operated
three facilities in Germany and four plants located abroad.
Semi-finished products (sheets, rods, welding rods) are manufactured at two plants in Kirn (Rhineland-Palatinate), while pipes,
fittings and finished parts are produced at a facility in Ringsheim
(Baden-Württemberg). The plant in Litvinov (Czech Republic) produces pipes and sheets, while the site in Jiangmen (China) manufactures sheets. The facility operated by SIMONA AMERICA Inc. in
Archbald (Pennsylvania, USA) mainly produces sheet products.
Additionally, Boltaron Inc. produces thermoplastic sheets at its
plant in Newcomerstown (Ohio, USA), which are primarily used for
aircraft interiors and in the building sector.
Management and supervision at SIMONA AG
In the financial year under review the Management Board consisted
of Wolfgang Moyses (Chairman/CEO), Dirk Möller (Deputy Chairman/COO) and Fredy Hiltmann.

The Supervisory Board included the following members in the
financial year under review:
Dr. Rolf Goessler (Chairman), Roland Frobel (Deputy Chairman),
Dr. Roland Reber and Joachim Trapp as well as Jörg Hoseus
(Employee Representative until 28 February 2017), Gerhard Flohr
(Employee Representative until 28 February 2017), Andy Hohlreiter (Employee Representative since 1 March 2017) and Markus
Stein (Employee Representative since 1 March 2017).

1.2 Objectives and strategies
Focusing invariably on customer value, the SIMONA Group sees
itself as a global solution provider for plastics applications.
The SIMONA Group is committed to steady growth in revenues
and earnings, while pursuing business expansion on its own
terms and remaining independent. The goal for the medium term
remains SIMONA500, i.e. annual Group sales of €500 million.
Revenue growth is to be achieved organically and through acquisitions. The Group’s long-term goal is to achieve an EBIT margin of
6 to 8 per cent.
SIMONA has defined three key strategic areas for the purpose of
meeting its revenue and earnings targets:
 Enhanced innovatory abilities
 More pronounced growth in the emerging markets
 Achieving operational excellence
The aim is for SIMONA to grow within its core market of Europe in
particular, the emphasis being on new fields of application and
new markets. With this in mind, Business Development was further expanded in the period under review. Opened in 2016, the
Technology Centre was extended during the 2017 financial year to
include a third production line with the focus on prototyping; it will
help to speed up the company’s efforts in the field of product
development. In reorganising its executive and sales structure
and appointing a CEO for the Asia-Pacific region, SIMONA established a solid foundation for sustained growth in the key emerging
markets of China and South-East Asia. When it comes to operational excellence, the objective set is to raise productivity levels
gradually at all plants and in all processes. In 2017, the Semi-Finished and Finished Parts division made further progress with
regard to productivity. The 2017 financial year saw the launch of
a project aimed at repositioning the Pipes and Fittings division
from a strategic perspective. The aim of these measures is to
boost growth while maintaining solid levels of profitability.

Optimisation of SIMONA AG’s structure under corporate law
The structure of SIMONA AG under corporate law dates back primarily to the 1970s and has found it hard to keep up with the
dynamic development of business and the changes to the organisation as a whole. With this in mind, SIMONA AG will submit a
proposal to the Annual General Meeting, scheduled for June
2018, to adapt its corporate structure accordingly. From an organisational perspective, manufacturing is to be clearly separated
from administration, sales and logistics. At the same time, the
company is looking to improve cost transparency and the allocation of accounting items to specific areas of the business. This is
to be achieved by establishing two legally independent production
companies and a company responsible for real estate. The production facilities in Kirn and Ringsheim will each be separated
and will in future operate as GmbH & Co. KG companies; they will
be wholly-owned subsidiaries of SIMONA AG. These companies
will represent new operational units at a manufacturing level.
The properties were transferred to the wholly-owned subsidiary
SIMONA Immobilien GmbH & Co. KG – and thus separated –
effective from 1 December 2017. The central departments of
administration, sales, logistics and parts of engineering/technical
operations will remain with SIMONA AG; in future, they will provide
their services for the manufacturing companies. In preparation for
the transfer of undertakings to be resolved by the AGM it was
necessary to formally establish the new entities during the 2017
financial year.

1.3 Internal control system
SIMONA uses the Balanced Scorecard (BSC) as a strategic management and monitoring instrument. Within this context, the
Management Board is responsible for the BSC-related corporate
goals, as well as being accountable for regularly reviewing the
efficacy of the BSC process as part of an overall assessment of
the management system and initiating adjustments to the BSC
process and the BSC-related corporate goals. The BSC cascades
down to the company’s other management levels.
The analysis and assessment of earnings performance by SIMONA
is conducted primarily with the help of sales revenue as well as
the two financial indicators EBIT and EBITDA. EBIT represents the
operating result before interest and taxes as well as income from
investments. EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation as well as investment income) represents
an approximation for cash flow from operating activities, as noncash depreciation/write-downs of property, plant and equipment
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as well as amortisation/write-downs of intangible assets are
added to the EBIT figure.
Reconciliation from IFRS to HGB of EBIT generated by SIMONA AG
is mainly as follows:
in €m
EBIT under IFRS

2017

2016

9.1

13.6

Change in inventories

–1.6

1.8

Staff costs (pensions)

5.4

2.5

Depreciation/amortisation/write-downs of
intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment

1.6

1.3

Other operating expenses

3.0

0

Other changes

0.8

–0.4

18.3

18.8

EBIT under HGB

Additionally, the return on operating assets is reviewed annually
within the Group as part of the forecasting process and is an
important criterion when it comes to managing the investment
budget. ROCE, which stands for return on capital employed, is
used as a profitability indicator; capital employed includes intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, financial assets,
inventories and trade receivables less trade payables.
The principal non-financial indicators employed by the company
include customer satisfaction, number of staff and their qualifications as well as quality management.

1.4 Research and development
Research and development is subdivided into the areas of Formula
Development, New Products & Applications and Process Development. Innovation Circles apply the Stage-Gate process to evaluate
and prioritise new product ideas, before pursuing market roll-out.
The indicator used in this area is the share of recent products (no
older than three years) in total sales revenue, which was further
increased over the course of 2017. This was achieved primarily
with the help of new product variants and by extending the range
of fittings.
As regards the development of materials, the focus in 2017 was on
cost streamlining of formulas and on the customisation or modification of standard products.
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The purpose of the new Technology Centre at SIMONA’s headquarters in Kirn is to enhance the company’s capabilities as an innov
ator and to extend its portfolio of materials. A third production line
was installed during the financial year under review. It is capable
of extruding sheets using small volumes of material, which helps
to speed up R&D efforts in this area.
The company inaugurated a new building with a roofed storage
area at its pipes and fittings plant in Ringsheim. This state-of-the-art
extension to SIMONA’s production plant will help the company to
meet market requirements for customised fittings and strengthen
its capabilities with regard to product development.
The company extended its product range to include fully fluorinated
high-performance plastics. This meant the introduction of a new
type of backing within the area of semi-finished and finished
parts. As a result, the scope of application has become broader
with regard to the transport, handling and storage of highly aggressive substances. A new free-foam sheet was developed for applications in the area of structural engineering. It paves the way for
cost-effective designs that used to be dependent on conventional
materials such as wood or metal. Additionally, this new-generation
sheet combines the full range of plastics-related benefits such as
resistance to moisture and chemical substances and protection
against corrosion as well as thermal formability.
Within the area of pipes and fittings the emphasis of research and
development was on expanding the product range for rehabilitation, water management and mining. This included the introduction of an antistatic version of SIMONA’s abrasion-resistant
AP-Line multilayer sheets, designed specifically for applications
relating to animal feed and general pellet conveyance. For this
purpose, various pilot projects were conducted by the company.
Within the market segment for drainage systems, SIMONA developed a PE seating ring in DN 400/DN 600 to accommodate concrete covers. Used in railway track installations, this PE ring re
places conventional concrete components.
Expenses attributable to research and development within the
Group amounted to €4,451 thousand in the period under review
(previous year: €3,950 thousand). These expenses mainly consist
of staff costs, material costs and depreciation/write-downs of
property, plant and equipment.

2.

BUSINESS REVIEW

2.1 Macroeconomic and sector-specific environment
According to estimates by the International Monetary Fund (IMF),
the global economy grew by 3.7 per cent in 2017, which is 0.1
percentage point more than projected in autumn and 0.5 percentage points higher than in 2016. Thus, global economic recovery
gained momentum in the period under review, driven mainly by
more favourable developments in some parts of Europe and Asia.
Once again, Germany’s economy recorded significant growth in
2017. According to preliminary data presented by the Federal Statistical Office, price-adjusted GDP rose by 2.2 per cent (2016: 1.9
per cent). This marks eight years of successive growth for the
German economy. It was fuelled by private consumption as well as
by an above-average increase in investments within the area of
construction and in machinery/equipment. At 2.5 per cent, the
rate of growth recorded by the eurozone in 2017 was the highest
in ten years. This was underpinned by positive economic trends in
France, Italy, Spain and Germany.
The United States saw its economy pick up speed over the course
of the year, growing faster than anticipated at a projected rate of
2.3 per cent. Solid domestic demand buoyed by higher salaries
and wages as well as a benign investment climate due to more
substantial company profits and favourable borrowing terms were
the key influencing factor.
Benefiting from a pickup in global growth, the Chinese economy
expanded by 6.9 per cent in 2017. Private consumption again
proved to be a key growth driver, complemented by buoyant foreign trade. The risks to which the world’s second largest economy
is exposed have become more pronounced as a result of high
levels of private and corporate debt.
The plastics processing industry in Germany set yet another
record in terms of sales revenue. According to data published by
the industry association GKV, revenue generated by this sector as
a whole expanded by 4.8 per cent to €63.7 billion. This was attributable mainly to solid growth by export-driven industries, such as
mechanical engineering and automotive, as well as an upbeat
domestic economy. The number of association members with
higher revenues in 2017 rose to 71 per cent (previous year: 61 per
cent). Only 7 per cent (previous year: 19 per cent) recorded a
decline in revenues. The volume of plastics processed also rose
year on year, up by 4.3 per cent in total.

Benefiting from favourable bulkware business with rising producer
prices, the German chemical industry saw revenue increase by an
impressive 5.5 per cent. Revenue from domestic sales rose by 4.5
per cent, while revenue generated abroad expanded by 6.5 per
cent. Production output within Germany’s chemical industry
increased by 2.5 per cent (previous year: 0.5 per cent) thanks to
stronger demand from all of the key markets.
Production volumes and revenues within Germany’s mechanical
and plant engineering industry each rose by 3 per cent in the first
nine months. The industry association VDMA anticipates that revenue will exceed the €220 billion mark for the first time. The
upturn in business was fuelled primarily by exports, which expanded by 6.2 per cent in real terms over the course of the first nine
months. The United States retained its top position among the
world’s single largest export markets, although China recorded a
stronger growth rate.
Projections by Hauptverband der Deutschen Bauindustrie, Germany’s central federation of the construction industry, suggest that
Germany’s principal construction sector expanded by 9.3 per cent
(nominal, companies with more than 20 employees) in 2017. This
points to sustained dynamism within the industry as a whole,
underpinned in particular by a solid performance in the housing
sector. The commercial building sector also developed well, whereas
growth rates in the market for public-sector construction were
below average.
The global market for aircraft interiors grew by approx. 4 per cent
in 2017, according to the market intelligence agency Counterpoint.
Growth was fuelled by consistently strong demand for new aircraft
and solid aftermarket business.

2.2 Course of business – SIMONA Group
Sales revenue totalled €394.1 million in the 2017 financial year
(previous year: €366.7 million). This corresponds to an increase of
7.5 per cent. Revenue growth was underpinned by a solid sales
performance in the core market of Europe, together with significant forward momentum in Asia and the United States. Competition remained intense in all regions and product groups. The rev
enue guidance of €370 to 380 million for the 2017 financial year,
as presented in the previous year’s Group management report,
was exceeded by the Group. This was attributable primarily to the
Group’s performance in Europe and the very favourable direction
taken by business in China. The revenue guidances issued as part
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of the Group interim report for the first half of the financial year
(€360 to 370 million) and the press release for the third quarter
(€385 to 395 million) were met by the Group.
Group earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) totalled €26.5
million, which was lower than in the previous financial year (€30.2
million). Thus, projected EBIT (€25 to 30 million) was met at the
lower end of the target range. This was attributable primarily to
negative currency effects, equivalent to €-5.8 million. The EBIT
margin declined year on year, down from 8.2 per cent to 6.7 per
cent. EBITDA decreased from €43.9 million a year ago to €40.9
million in the financial year under review. This corresponds to an
EBITDA margin of 10.4 per cent, down from 12.0 per cent in the
previous financial year.
At 9.9 per cent, Group ROCE was down on the prior-year figure
(11.7 per cent) and slightly below the figure targeted. As a result
of more expansive revenues, particularly in Europe and Asia, the
cost of materials rose by a disproportionately large amount, which
contributed to the reduction in earnings. Additionally, earnings
were adversely affected by costs associated with more pronounced currency effects.
Europe
In the region comprising “Europe”, sales revenue rose by 4.6 per
cent to €269.2 million (previous year: €257.3 million), primarily as
a result of a solid business performance in the product area of
Semi-Finished Parts. At €101.2 million, revenue generated in
Germany was comparable to that recorded in the previous year.
Revenue growth was significant in Spain, Italy and the United
Kingdom. Benefiting from dynamic growth in the second half of
the year, business in Eastern Europe developed well in the period
under review, particularly in Russia, the Czech Republic and
Poland. Owing to the expansion in revenue from sales in the
“Americas” and “Asia and Pacific”, the share of total revenue
attributable to “Europe” fell further in the period under review,
down from 70.1 per cent to 68.2 per cent. Earnings before interest and taxes within the “Europe” segment declined from €17.2
million a year ago to €11.4 million in the 2017 financial year,
particularly as a result of negative currency effects.

Americas
The region comprising the “Americas” saw sales revenue increase
by 5.2 per cent to €94.7 million (previous year: €90.1 million).
SIMONA AMERICA Inc. further expanded its market share in the
area of Industrial Products during the financial year under review,
in addition to achieving significant revenue growth in the area of
Bathroom Partitions, while the other fields of business remained
stable or trended slightly weaker. Overall, revenue was comparable
to that recorded in the previous year. Benefiting from sustained
buoyancy in the aviation market, Boltaron Inc. managed to
increase revenue in the Aviation and Specialty Products division.
In total, the revenue and earnings target for 2017 was exceeded
in this region. The region encompassing the “Americas” accounted for 24.1 per cent of total sales revenue, slightly down from the
prior-year figure of 24.6 per cent. The “Americas” segment generated earnings before interest and taxes of €15.7 million (previous
year: €14.4 million). The Group recorded further profitability gains
at its US plants.
Asia and Pacific
The region covering “Asia and Pacific” achieved significant rev
enue growth in the financial year under review, up by 56.0 per
cent to €30.2 million (previous year: €19.3 million). As a result,
the share of total revenues attributable to this region rose from
5.3 per cent to 7.7 per cent. The “Asia and Pacific” segment posted negative EBIT of €-0.5 million (previous year: €-1.2 million),
with foreign exchange losses (€-0.9 million) having a major
impact. At an operating level, profit at the plant in China was well
within positive territory.
REVENUE BY REGION SIMONA GROUP (in €m)

68 %

Europe
269.2 €m
+4.6 %

394.1

8%

Asia and Pacific
30.2 €m
+56.0 %

€m

24 %

Americas
94.7 €m
+5.2 %
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Sales revenue by product area
The product area comprising Semi-Finished and Finished Parts
continued to develop well in 2017. Sales revenue rose by 8.3 per
cent to €313.8 million (previous year: €289.8 million). Building on
the Group’s solid performance within the core market serving the
chemical process industry, the division recorded growth in the
area of extruded and pressed PP sheets, in particular. Business
relating to compact PVC sheets also developed well in the period
under review, buoyed by dynamic growth in the aviation and construction sectors. The product category encompassing foamed
PVC sheets was faced with significant competitive pressures.
Revenue generated from sales in the area of solid and hollow rods
as well as welding rods was up in the financial year under review.
Business expanded further as a result of an extension to the
product range of fluoropolymers.
The product area comprising Pipes and Fittings also recorded
growth in the financial year under review. This was driven primarily by a favourable performance in the market for industrial applications. At a regional level, civil engineering sales were relatively
subdued in the period under review, while business relating to
lignite processing was stymied by a lack of projects in this field.
Overall, the area of Pipes and Fittings saw revenue expand by 4.4
per cent to €80.3 million (previous year: €76.9 million).
Orders
Order backlog within the Group stood at €40.0 million (previous
year: €30.4 million); of this total, a figure of €21.4 million (previous year: €17.9 million) is attributable to SIMONA AG.
REVENUE BY PRODUCT AREA (in €m)

360.3

2015

366.7

2016

394.1

2017

2.3 Financial performance
Earnings
Despite the positive direction taken by revenue, Group earnings
before interest, taxes and income from investments (EBIT) fell by
12.2 per cent year on year, down from €30.2 million to €26.5
million. This was attributable primarily to currency effects. The
Group made further progress at an operating level. At 6.7 per
cent, the EBIT margin was down on the figure of 8.2 per cent
recorded in the previous financial year.
Supported by revenue growth, gross profit (revenue, other income,
change in inventories of finished goods and work in progress less
cost of materials) rose by €7.5 million to €187.5 million in 2017,
which corresponds to 47.6 per cent of revenue (previous year:
48.7 per cent).
In this context, an increase in inventories of €7.2 million (previous
year: decrease in inventories of €0.1 million) was accounted for in
the income statement.
Other income totalled €5.4 million (previous year: €8.6 million).
This figure includes gains of €2.2 million (previous year: €3.7 million) arising from changes in foreign exchange rates.
On the whole, the cost of raw materials increased over the course
of 2017. The cost of materials was €219.3 million (previous year:
€196.7 million). Up 11.5 per cent on the prior-year figure, the cost
of materials thus increased at a faster rate than revenue. This was
attributable primarily to the direction taken by commodity prices.
At the same time, energy-related costs were higher than in the
previous year.
Staff costs stood at €74.8 million (previous year: €72.4 million),
up 3.4 per cent on last year’s figure. The year-on-year change was
due mainly to higher personnel-related costs and an increase in
expenses associated with social security and post-employment
benefits.

€m

79.6 %

Semi-Finished and
Finished Parts
313.8 €m

20.4 %

Pipes and Fittings
80.3 €m

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation
of intangible assets, including write-downs, amounted to €14.4
million (previous year: €13.7 million).
Other expenses increased significantly year on year, up by 15.4
per cent to €71.7 million (previous year: €62.2 million). The yearon-year increase was due primarily to higher expenses for mainte-
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nance, outward freight and packaging material as well as negative
foreign currency effects. By contrast, expenses for advertising
and trade fairs were down on the previous year’s figure. Having
accounted for foreign exchange gains recognised in other income,
the net foreign exchange loss was €-5.8 million (previous year:
gain of €1.3 million).

EBIT SIMONA GROUP
in €m
in per cent
		 (EBIT margin)

30.2

26.5

26.7

8.2

7.4

In line with lower pre-tax profit, taxes on income fell from €8.6
million in 2016 to €7.1 million in the reporting period. The Group
tax rate stood at 28.9 per cent in the reporting period (previous
year: 30.6 per cent).
Segment-specific disclosures
The individual sales companies operating within the segment
encompassing Europe recorded positive earnings in the period
under review. In particular, the earnings contributions made by
the subsidiaries in the United Kingdom and Eastern Europe were,
in part, substantially higher year on year. Earnings generated by
the production company in the Czech Republic were down on the
prior-year figure. Material-related expenses were higher, up from
€148.2 million in the previous year to €162.8 million in the period
under review, primarily as a result of revenue growth and an
increase in the cost of raw materials. At €54.6 million, staff costs
remained largely unchanged year on year. Other expenses rose by
€6.7 million to €49.1 million, which was attributable mainly to
negative currency effects.
In total, the subsidiaries operating within the Americas segment
saw their contributions to earnings expand in the financial year
under review. In percentage terms, material-related expenses
(€43.0 million; previous year: €41.6 million) rose at a slower rate
than revenue growth. Staff costs increased by 13.4 per cent to
€17.1 million. At €17.2 million, other expenses were up by €0.9
million compared to the previous year.
The sales companies operating within the Asia and Pacific segment saw their earnings improve year on year. The plant in China
reached the break-even mark in 2017 and recorded a significant
increase in earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) as well as
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA). Staff costs and other expenses were up on the priorperiod figures.

6.7

2015

2016

2017

2.4 Financial position
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total assets amounted to
€363.4 million, thus remaining largely unchanged year on year.
Changes to assets
Intangible assets fell by €4.5 million to €29.4 million in total,
which was attributable primarily to the direction taken by the US
dollar in the period under review; they mainly comprise goodwill
associated with entities acquired in the United States.
Property, plant and equipment amounted to €114.4 million
(previous year: €116.7 million). Investments in property, plant and
equipment totalled €15.3 million at Group level. Depreciation
and write-downs of property, plant and equipment stood at €12.9
million.
Inventories totalled €78.0 million (previous year: €69.2 million).
At €28.6 million, inventories of raw materials, consumables and
supplies were higher than in the previous year (€26.2 million).
Finished goods and merchandise rose by €6.7 million to €48.1
million.
Trade receivables rose by €4.3 million year on year to €56.5
million.
Current and non-current other assets and tax assets totalled €5.5
million (previous year: €3.4 million).
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At €0.7 million, other financial assets were largely unchanged year
on year.
The production site in Hazleton, USA, was sold in the financial
year under review. Therefore, there were no assets held for sale in
the reporting period (previous year: €3.8 million). The loss on
disposal was €0.3 million in the period under review.
Changes to equity and liabilities
At the end of the reporting period, the Group recorded an increase
in equity compared to the previous financial year as well as a
reduction in its current and non-current liabilities.
Group equity amounted to €202.3 million (previous year: €192.0
million) at the end of the 2017 financial year. This figure primarily
includes annual profit of €17.5 million and a dividend payment of
€7.2 million in 2017. Group equity was strengthened by the
remeasurement of pension provisions as a result of a higher fair
value of plan assets. The Group’s equity ratio rose from 53 per
cent to 56 per cent due to higher equity and an unchanged balance sheet total.
Current and non-current provisions for pensions totalled €99.2
million (previous year: €103.3 million). Pension provisions were
down on the prior-year figure primarily as a result of the higher fair
value of plan assets in conjunction with an unaltered IAS interest
rate of 1.80 per cent.
At €11.1 million, trade payables were lower than in the previous
financial year (€15.1 million).
Current and non-current other financial liabilities, totalling €2.0
million (previous year: €3.4 million), were down on the prior-year
figure mainly due to the extinguishment of the last instalment of
the purchase price payment relating to corporate acquisitions in
the United States.
Other liabilities totalled €14.6 million in the period under review,
i.e. comparable to the prior-year figure; they were attributable
primarily to management and staff bonus payments as well as
deferrals/accruals relating to invoices and credit notes yet to be
received.
In total, non-current (€3.8 million) and current (€1.6 million) other
provisions rose by €1.1 million compared to the previous financial year.

Investments
Group capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment
amounted to €15.3 million (previous year: €15.5 million). This
mainly relates to investments in the segment covering Europe and
the new facility built at the Ringsheim site as well as technical and
office equipment at sites in Germany and the United States. In
total, net investments in property, plant and equipment amounted
to €2.4 million at Group level (previous year: €3.1 million).

2.5 Financial management and cash flows
Principles and aims of financial management
Safeguarding the financial strength of the SIMONA Group remains
the primary goal of financial management. In this context, the
most important aspect is to meet, to a sufficient degree, the
Group’s financial requirements relating to its operational business
and its investing activities. Financial management is centrally
organised within the parent company. To a large extent, SIMONA
covers the liquidity required worldwide within the Group by means
of intragroup funding via loans or similar arrangements. Additionally, firmly agreed lines of credit are in place in various currencies
and maturities. Excess cash resources are invested in the money
or capital markets, either in euro or a foreign currency, by applying
an approach that is optimised in terms of both risk and returns.
Financing analysis
Non-current financial liabilities relate to KfW loans and fell by
€3.4 million to €18.7 million due to scheduled repayments. Current financial liabilities were unchanged at €3.4 million at the end
of the reporting period and encompass the short-term proportion
of KfW loans.
As in the previous year, no derivative financial instruments were
recognised as at 31 December 2017.
At the end of the reporting period the Group had undrawn lines of
credit totalling €18.6 million (previous year: €18.9 million).
Cash flows
In the period under review the inflow of cash from operating activities (gross cash flow) was €19.2 million (previous year: €42.2
million). The reduction in cash inflows was due primarily to the
lower pre-tax profit, an expansion of inventories and higher trade
receivables. Net cash used in investing activities totalled €–13.8
million (previous year: €–11.7 million). Net cash used in financing
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activities was €–11.0 million (previous year: net cash from financing activities of €12.4 million) and mainly consisted of the scheduled repayment of KfW funds and an outflow in connection with
dividend payments.

Rest of Europe & Africa
The region comprising the Rest of Europe & Africa saw sales rev
enue expand by 8.4 per cent to €152.8 million (previous year:
€140.9 million).

Cash and cash equivalents
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents totalling €68.0 million
(previous year: €74.8 million) mainly consist of short-term bank
deposits. The year-on-year swing of €–6.7 million (previous year:
€42.9 million) was mainly attributable to net cash from operating
activities as well as net cash used in investing activities and
financing activities. These changes are presented in detail in the
statement of cash flows.

Americas
Revenue from sales in the Americas increased to €5.3 million
(previous year: €4.2 million).

Financial obligations
Current obligations included €6.7 million (previous year: €15.1
million) for contracts already awarded in connection with investment projects and €14.2 million (previous year: €12.9 million) in
respect of purchase orders for raw materials. Other financial
obligations totalling €2.8 million (previous year: €2.5 million) were
attributable to operating rental and lease agreements. Of this
total, an amount of €0.8 million is due within one year.
Net finance cost
Based on finance income of €0.2 million and finance cost of €2.2
million, net finance cost amounted to €–2.0 million in the period
under review (previous year: €–2.2 million).

2.6 Course of business – SIMONA AG
Sales performance at SIMONA AG was influenced by a visible
upturn in business within the area of Semi-Finished and Finished
Parts on the one hand and a relatively lacklustre market for Pipes
and Fittings on the other.
Sales revenue totalled €268.6 million in 2017 (previous year:
€254.5 million). This corresponds to revenue growth of 5.5 per
cent. Thus, the company exceeded its revenue target of €260
million.
Germany
Sales revenue in Germany fell by 3.1 per cent to €93.7 million
(previous year: €96.7 million), primarily as a result of sluggish business within the area of Pipes and Fittings.
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Asia & Pacific
The Asia & Pacific region recorded substantial revenue growth of
32.2 per cent, taking the total to €16.7 million.
Sales revenue by product area
In the product area comprising Semi-Finished and Finished Parts
sales revenue increased by 6.1 per cent to €191.0 million (previous year: €179.9 million). Revenue from the product group comprising Pipes and Fittings rose by a modest 2.5 per cent, up from
€73.6 million to €75.4 million.
SIMONA AG earnings declined year on year. Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT), calculated on the basis of IFRS, totalled €9.1
million (previous year: €13.6 million), while the EBIT margin stood
at 3.4 per cent (previous year: 5.2 per cent). The company fell
short of its EBIT margin target (4 to 6 per cent). EBITDA, calculated
on the basis of IFRS, fell from €21.5 million in the previous year to
€17.6 million in 2017. The EBITDA margin stood at 6.6 per cent,
compared to 8.5 per cent for the same period a year ago (target of
7 to 9 per cent). At 6.4 per cent, ROCE (based on IFRS) remained
below the prior-year figure of 9.3 per cent and below the defined
target (8 to 9 per cent).
The reduction in EBIT and EBITDA was mainly due to foreign
exchange losses, the disproportionately large increase in cost of
materials relative to revenue growth and higher selling expenses.
Overall, business performance with regard to revenue was good in
the 2017 financial year, while that relating to earnings was satisfactory in part.

2.7 Review of financial position, performance and cash flows
of SIMONA AG
Earnings performance
Gross profit (sales revenue less cost of materials) amounted to
€105.0 million, unchanged year on year. The gross profit margin

fell from 41.3 per cent a year ago to 39.1 per cent. The cost of
materials rose by 9.4 per cent, driven in particular by higher raw
material and energy costs.
Other operating income totalled €3.1 million (previous year: €3.9
million). This figure includes gains of €1.4 million (previous year:
€1.5 million) from currency translation.
Staff costs amounted to €43.6 million, which was lower than in
the previous financial year. While staff costs were slightly lower
year on year, social security and post-employment benefit costs
were down considerably, particularly due to the reversal of provisions for pensions.
Depreciation, amortisation and write-downs attributable to intangible assets and property, plant and equipment totalled €6.9
million, up €0.3 million on the previous year.
Other operating expenses amounted to €43.0 million, which was
9.9 per cent more than in the previous financial year (€39.1 million). Expenses were higher primarily in the areas of maintenance,
outward freight and packaging materials. Additionally, the direction taken by foreign currencies had an adverse effect. By contrast, expenses relating to advertising were lower.
Interest and similar expenses totalled €4.7 million (previous year:
€4.2 million) and consisted primarily of expenses relating to the
unwinding of the discount, i.e. interest cost, of pension provisions
(€4.2 million, previous year: €4.0 million).
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT), calculated on the basis
of HGB, totalled €18.3 million in the period under review (previous
year: €18.8 million), as a result of which the EBIT margin stood at
6.8 per cent (previous year: 7.4 per cent). At €25.1 million, EBITDA
was slightly down on the prior-year figure (€25.5 million). The
EBITDA margin was 9.4 per cent (previous year: 10.0 per cent).
Profit after taxes stood at €17.8 million. Earnings performance in
the financial year under review was dominated in particular by a
decline in the gross profit margin due to the higher cost of mater
ials as well as an increase in other operating expenses attribut
able to negative currency effects.
Assets
Total assets attributable to SIMONA AG remained largely
unchanged at €274.7 million.

Non-current assets totalled €136.2 million, down by €3.1 million
compared with the previous financial year.
Property, plant and equipment fell by €17.0 million to €38.0 million. This was attributable mainly to the transfer of domestic real
estate held by SIMONA AG to the newly established Kommanditgesellschaft (limited partnership business entity governed by
German law) SIMONA Immobilien GmbH & Co. KG. Effective from
1 December 2017, this real estate, including accessories governed by statutory provisions but without operating equipment,
was transferred to the aforementioned entity in return for rights
granted in respect of this entity. The carrying amount upon transfer was €17.3 million.
Interests in affiliated companies rose from €55.6 million to €72.9
million. This was attributable primarily to the newly established
Kommanditgesellschaft (limited partnership business entity governed by German law) SIMONA Immobilien GmbH & Co. KG.
Loans to affiliated companies, amounting to €24.2 million (previous year: €28.1 million), relate to subsidiaries in the Americas and
Asia. The subsidiary in the United States repaid a loan of €4.1
million in the reporting period.
In total, inventories increased by €4.4 million to €39.2 million. They
include raw materials (€14.1 million), work in progress (€0.3 million) and finished goods (€24.7 million). Inventories of finished
goods rose by €3.5 million compared to the previous financial year.
Trade receivables fell by €0.4 million to €23.3 million. At €21.2
million, receivables from affiliated companies – comprising loans
and goods deliveries – were up by €6.9 million year on year.
This increase was attributable mainly to more expansive goods
deliveries.
Other assets totalled €3.5 million (previous year: €3.0 million).
In total, receivables and other assets amounted to €48.2 million,
up €6.8 million on the prior-year figure (€41.4 million).
Cash and cash equivalents declined by €8.6 million, down from
€59.5 million in the previous year to €50.8 million at the end of
the 2017 reporting period. This reduction was mainly due to a
cash outflow in connection with the extinguishment of KfW loans,
the settlement of trade payables at the end of the year and the
payment of a dividend.
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Equity and liabilities
SIMONA AG’s equity rose from €171.6 million a year ago to
€182.0 million as at the end of the 2017 financial year. The equity
ratio increased from 62 per cent a year ago to 66 per cent in the
period under review. This was attributable primarily to the annual
profit generated by the company and the reduction of liabilities,
while the balance sheet total remained largely unchanged year on
year.
SIMONA AG pursues a policy of consistent dividend payments
based on the performance of Group profit calculated in accordance with IFRS and an average dividend ratio that is stable over
the long term. As in the past, the dividend payout is to be funded
from free cash flow.
Provisions amounted to €57.5 million (previous year: €58.7 million). In total, allocations to provisions for pensions were
increased by €0.8 million compared to the previous year and
stood at €47.2 million at the end of the reporting period. This
includes the reversal of pension obligations of €2.8 million.
The discount rate fell to 3.68 per cent (previous year: 4.01 per
cent). Other provisions totalled €9.6 million (previous year: €11.5
million).

At the end of the reporting period, SIMONA AG had undrawn
borrowing facilities of €16.0 million.
Investments
Capital expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment at
SIMONA AG amounted to €7.1 million in the period under review
(previous year: €9.3 million). This mainly relates to investments in
technical equipment as well as operating and office equipment at
the company sites in Germany. In total, net investments (additions
less write-downs) amounted to €0.7 million (previous year: €3.0
million).
Obligations from investment projects already initiated amounted
to €3.7 million, while those attributable to raw material orders
were €8.0 million; they are financed from operating cash flow.
Analysis of liquidity
Cash and cash equivalents held by SIMONA AG at the end of the
reporting period totalled €50.8 million (previous year: €59.5 million), comprising bank deposits denominated in euro and foreign
currencies. The reduction is attributable mainly to cash outflows
in connection with operating activities (settlement of trade pay
ables) and financing activities (repayment of loans and dividend
payment).

Total liabilities declined by €10.1 million to €35.1 million.
Trade payables fell by €4.1 million to €3.5 million. Liabilities
towards affiliated companies amounted to €6.5 million (previous
year: €9.8 million), which relate mainly to goods deliveries from
the subsidiary in the Czech Republic.
Bank borrowings totalled €22.1 million (previous year: €25.6 million) and were attributable to long-term KfW loans. Under the
terms of the contract, a total of €3.4 million was repaid during the
financial year under review. At the end of the period under review,
as in the previous year, no funds had been drawn from the shortterm global credit facility.
The KfW loans are subject to fixed interest rates, with quarterly
debt repayments scheduled under the terms of the agreement.
The funds are used to finance long-term innovation programmes
in Germany. The global credit facility is subject to interest on the
basis of EONIA (euro overnight index average) plus a fixed premium
calculated on an arm’s length basis; these borrowings can be
denominated in euros or a foreign currency.
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2.8 Non-financial indicators
Customer satisfaction
SIMONA measures customer satisfaction as part of pan-European
surveys. Additionally, customers and target groups are surveyed
in key markets outside of Europe, such as China and the United
States.
In May 2017, a new customer satisfaction study was conducted in
Europe. The response rate was high and provided extensive information on SIMONA customer satisfaction. Based on the findings
of this survey, overall customer satisfaction (86.1 per cent) and
the rate of recommendation (87.4 per cent) remain high. Thus, the
levels recorded as part of the last major customer survey were
matched in 2017. Compared to the last survey, SIMONA achieved
better grades for its service offering in all product categories, e. g.
sales admin and field sales, order processing, delivery/dispatch
and applications engineering advice. Customers saw room for
further improvement with regard to some aspects of SIMONA’s
training programmes, its website and complaints handling.

Employees
As at 31 December 2017, the SIMONA Group employed 1,289
people. The headcount thus remained largely unchanged year on
year (previous year: 1,288). In Germany, staffing levels were slightly
lower, while the total number of employees in the Rest of Europe
was close to that recorded in the previous year. As a result of business expansion in the United States, the headcount in the US
increased in the period under review.
At 778, the number of staff employed at SIMONA AG was down
compared to the previous year (31 Dec. 2016: 789).
In total, 45 (previous year: 48) young people (as at December
2017) were enrolled in vocational programmes relating to one
of eight technical and commercial training courses offered by
SIMONA. In 2017, thirteen young people were enrolled in an integrated/dual work-study degree course supported by SIMONA or
sponsored training to become a state-certified technician.
Over the course of the 2017 financial year, SIMONA conducted an
extensive review of future requirements relating to operational
processes and structures. As part of the “SIMONA HOME25” project, the impact on our company was assessed in detail in collaboration with the Junior Enterprise of Hochschule Mannheim University of Applied Sciences (a consulting unit managed by students).
The findings of this project provided the basis for the fundamental
decision to retain the seat of administration at the company’s
headquarters in Kirn for the foreseeable future and to further
enhance the company’s appeal as an employer within this region
by introducing a package of measures. They include, among other
things, plans for the refurbishment of the administration building
(or the construction of a new building), programmes aimed at making working hours more flexible and the provision of various sports
activities. Among the other focal points of HR management were
the preparation and implementation of measures relating to the
staff survey conducted over the course of the 2017 financial year,
which again revealed good levels of employee satisfaction at
SIMONA. In the context of occupational health management a
number of ergonomics projects were conducted in the period
under review, in addition to special Health Days organised in collaboration with health insurers at the company’s Ringsheim site.
The focus of staff training was on further improving foreign language skills and cementing team members’ expertise in the field
of project management. The production area of Extrusion saw the
introduction of a qualifications matrix and staff appraisals as a
control instrument. These are to be applied to other operational

fields over the course of 2018. Additionally, a new image concept
was introduced. “A company like a friend” forms the key statement
of this concept. It is to be applied gradually to all employer branding measures. At the same time, there will be greater emphasis on
social media channels.
EMPLOYEES BY REGION (SIMONA GROUP)
ASIA
9%
EUROPE
73 %

1,289
TOTAL

AMERICAS
18 %

31 December 2017

Quality
The goal of SIMONA’s quality management system is to maintain
and optimise product and process quality on a continual and sustainable basis. In this context, meeting the requirements of DIN EN
ISO 9001, ISO/TS 16949 and the Pressure Equipment Directive
97/23/EC is an essential prerequisite, and full compliance with
these standards was again confirmed by independent recertification audits conducted in 2017. This also involved adapting and
certifying the quality management system in accordance with the
new requirements of the revised ISO 9001:2015 standard.
SIMONA conducted interdisciplinary quality circle meetings and
product audits in the period under review, as well as taking part in
various sampling and approval procedures for existing and newly
launched projects relating to the automotive supply industry. As
was the case in previous years, the pipes and fittings division saw
a number of specific product accreditations in response to customer and market requirements. This resulted in several audits as
part of which we were able to prove to external auditors the efficacy
of the SIMONA management system as well as the exceptionally
high quality of our products and processes.
Information technology
As regards IT infrastructure, the focus in 2017 was on further
improving IT security, particularly by enhancing Client security.
Thanks to the exchange of network components at the subsidiaries, connections to the SIMONA network are more stable and
secure. At the same time, the management of these components
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is more efficient. As a pilot project, a new file system was introduced at the headquarters in Kirn for the purpose of providing
data in a failsafe environment and allowing the central storage of
data relating to the respective branch offices. An additional feature of this file system includes a Cloud service for the secure
exchange of data with external parties. All data is stored at data
centres operated by SIMONA AG; no third-party providers are
involved. An update of the telecommunications system was
implemented in preparation for the discontinuation of ISDN services in 2018.
The emphasis of IT applications development in the financial year
under review was on the conversion of operational business processes at the SIMONA sites in Germany in order to prepare for the
organisational separation of production units from administration,
sales and logistics (cf. section 1.2).

3.

REPORT ON OPPORTUNITIES AND RISKS

Worldwide demand for plastics remains strong and is being
fuelled further by a more buoyant global economy. The
medium-term forecast points to average annual growth of 5.3 per
cent in the period up to 2020 (source: Grand View Research).
Demand continues to be driven by the Asia-Pacific region. Among
other things, this is underpinned by more expansive investments
in construction and infrastructure throughout Asia as well as
growth in private transport. Growth within the relatively mature
markets of North America and Europe is likely to come mainly
from new applications. The key drivers are lightweight engineering
and improvements to the properties of plastics. North America is
expected to generate average annual growth of 4.3 per cent up to
2020. Market research institute Ceresana predicts that the European plastics market will expand by an average of 2.9 per cent
annually up to the year 2022.
The strategy applied by SIMONA is in keeping with these global
trends. In Europe, the focus is on enhancing the company’s abilities in the field of innovation, which includes an expansion in the
product portfolio of high-performance plastics. Given the company’s extended production capabilities at its new Technology Centre,
SIMONA is confident that it can increase revenue through new
products and applications, in addition to serving customers faster
with prototypes and small-batch series.
The prospects for further growth in the Americas with regard to
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industrial products are considered to be good, particularly
through the expansion of trading partnerships and the provision
of services, such as technical consulting and training programmes. In the context of strategic positioning, we are assessing
whether to expand our business in the area of pipes and fittings.
The consistent focus of SIMONA subsidiary Boltaron Inc. on business within the field of semi-finished products for aircraft interiors
offers solid opportunities for sustained growth in the booming
aviation market.
As regards the Asia-Pacific region, SIMONA sees good opportunities to profit from growth in markets that have a strong focus on
environmental and safety-critical issues, the emphasis being on
premium products. In this context, the gradual expansion of production capabilities at the Jiangmen site and the new organisational structure for the region are considered to be key factors.
The principal targets are the chemical process industry, the semi
conductor industry, the construction sector and the area of water
supply and treatment.
Compared to the previous year, the opportunities associated with
SIMONA’s business activities have not changed significantly. The
short-term economic factors have improved slightly worldwide. At
the same time, the medium-term structural factors – particularly
with regard to investment spending in the industrial sector, which
is considered to be of key importance to the company – have also
shown signs of improvement. The continued expansion of business beyond the borders of Europe – with a new organisational
structure in Asia, a clear focus on industry and aviation in the
United States and a boost to the core industrial business in
Europe through expansion of the product range of high-performance plastics – is to be seen as a key prerequisite when it
comes to benefiting from global growth within the market for poly
mer-based applications.
Risk management system
In view of their global business activities, both SIMONA AG and
the SIMONA Group are exposed to a wide range of risks. In this
context, risk is defined as an event, an action and/or the failure to
act with the potential for adverse effects on the company. Risk
strategy is an integral part of the corporate strategy of SIMONA
and coexists alongside the business strategy. The risk culture of
SIMONA is characterised by risk awareness in respect of decision-making processes and embraces the principles of diligent
action based on prudence. In identifying opportunities at an early
stage and applying diligence with regard to the exposure to

corporate or business risks, SIMONA endeavours to safeguard its
existence as a going concern and protect its enterprise value. Risk
controlling is aimed at avoiding, mitigating or transferring risks. All
remaining risks are managed accordingly by SIMONA. Risks are
communicated as part of half-yearly risk reports to the Management Board and the Supervisory Board.
The risk management system includes the full range of guidelines
and measures required to identify risk and to manage risk associated with commercial operations. The policies, the structural and
procedural organisation as well as the processes of the internal
control and risk management system operated in respect of financial reporting have been incorporated in guidelines and organisational instructions. They are revised regularly to account for the
latest external and internal developments.
As regards financial reporting and the accounting process, we
consider those elements to be of significance to the internal control and risk management system that may potentially influence
financial reporting and the overall assessment of the annual
financial statements, including the management report. These
elements are as follows:
 Measures that safeguard the appropriate IT-based preparation of items and data of relevance to financial reporting
 Monitoring of commodity price trends for accounting-related
control of procurement and sales prices within the context of
price management
On the basis of a risk map, the risk management system of
SIMONA controls the following material risks associated with the
Group. The management of opportunities and risks is centred
around the aspects of effect and probability of occurrence. Sig
nificant individual risks are considered to be those displaying a
medium risk profile with an expected value in excess of €5.0 million when viewed over the medium term. The expected value is
computed as the product of the effect/impact and the probability
of occurrence; it is used solely for prioritising and focusing risk
reporting on issues of material importance. A probability of occurrence of over 50 per cent is considered high, while one of less
than 50 per cent is deemed low. SIMONA considers the following
individual risks to be material:
 Market environment and sector-specific risks
 Business strategy risks
 Financial risks
 Risks attributable to procurement and purchasing
 Risks attributable to information technology

Market environment and sector-specific risks
The risks associated with the general business environment and
the sector in which the company operates relate mainly to the
economic performance of customer segments served by SIMONA.
They also include exchange rate and commodity price volatility,
political conflicts and the availability of raw materials. Among the
primary sector-specific risks are the substitution of plastics with
other materials, new developments within the competitive envir
onment, the loss of key customers and changes to customer
requirements. A diversified product portfolio, thorough monitoring
of markets and structured procurement management provide the
basis for risk mitigation. Expansion of production in the United
States through corporate acquisitions and the plants located in
China and the Czech Republic help to raise flexibility levels for the
purpose of meeting customer requirements in close proximity to
their sites of operation and in a market-driven manner.
Geopolitical risks remain high. In the segment encompassing
Europe, uncertainty surrounding the outcome of Brexit negotiations, fiscal volatility and concerns over political stability within
the region are dominant factors when it comes to business envir
onment and industry-specific risks. In the Americas, meanwhile,
risk exposure is being influenced by protectionist trade policies as
well as by the fundamental political stance taken by the United
States and developments relating to the US dollar exchange rate.
Within the Asia and Pacific segment, the economic performance
of China within the industrial sector as well as the direction taken
by the property market will have a significant bearing on risk patterns. As regards the aspect of changes to sales markets the
expected value for a decline in revenue, in the medium term, has
been determined as being approx. €5.0 to 10.0 million with a
probability of occurrence of under 50 per cent at present. Overall,
the probability of adverse effects occurring from exposure to sector-specific risks is at present considered low.
Business strategy risks
These encompass the risk of misjudgements with regard to the
future direction taken by the market. Measures aimed at risk prevention mainly include close monitoring of the market and competitive environment as well as regular strategy meetings with key
accounts and between the company’s senior management and
sales organisation. The probability of adverse effects occurring
from exposure to business strategy risks is at present not considered to be material.
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Financial risks
These encompass, above all, currency risks, default risks including risks associated with voidability of insolvency, product liability
risks, risks of a change in interest rates and risks associated with
the company pension scheme.
The principal aim of financial risk management is to mitigate risks
attributable to ongoing operating and finance-related transactions. Depending on the risk, the aim is to restrict individual risks
by means of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
hedging instruments.
Dependence on the euro within the Group was scaled back signifi
cantly through recent acquisitions and the expansion of manufacturing operations within the US market. At the same time, currency
risk relating to US dollar transactions has become more pronounced for SIMONA. In the medium term, the probability of
occurrence of a dilutive or accretive effect on earnings equivalent
to €3.0 to 6.0 million is estimated at over 50 per cent. In 2017,
the global economy expanded at a more pronounced rate than
originally anticipated, while 2018 is expected to see stable
growth. However, the potential of a waning economy and, in turn,
a dip in investment spending within the industrial sector con
tinues to be the most significant of all economic risks.
The risk of bad debt losses remains high in particular within the
Eastern European market. Within this context, thorough assessments of credit ratings and continuous monitoring within this
area help to mitigate risk as a whole as well as risk associated
with individually identifiable items. As regards transactions in
Russia, a separate directive for the conclusion of business agreements relating to this country is in place for the purpose of limiting associated risks. Default-related risk associated with specific
customers is limited by credit insurance and the cut-off of
deliveries in the case of outstanding payments. Additionally,
risks exist with regard to voidability of insolvency. The carrying
amounts of inventories are assessed on a regular basis, and
adjustments in the form of allowances are made for specific
unsaleable products.
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Risks associated with interest rate changes are currently considered to be elevated. Interest payable in connection with KfW
loans is based on fixed interest rates. Therefore, there are no
risks associated with interest rate changes in this area. The overdraft facility of SIMONA AG, with its floating interest rate calculated
on the basis of EONIA (euro overnight index average), is not being
utilized at present.
The risks associated with occupational pension schemes are
considered to be significant and the probability of their occurrence is deemed to be high. Risks that are difficult to gauge in the
long term, such as future levels of pay and pensions as well as
risks relating to longevity, have been categorised as material.
They also include risks or encumbrances that are difficult to predict with regard to liquidity and equity, risks associated with
investments and volatility of plan assets as well as fluctuating
costs in respect of contributions to the German Pensionssicherungsverein. The volatility of plan assets is estimated at
around €3 to 10 million, which is attributable primarily to the
share performance of SIMONA AG stock in recent years.
Risks attributable to procurement and purchasing
As was the case in previous years, these risks are related primarily to potential disruptions or outages with regard to suppliers of
raw materials and additives as well as commodity price trends.
The supply of raw materials used by SIMOMA is dependent largely
on the availability of direct input products (e.g. ethylene or naphtha) and to a lesser extent on prevailing oil prices. There were no
significant commodity shortfalls in 2017 and prices for basic raw
materials were in a corridor from relatively stable to slightly higher.
However, the market has seen significant pricing-related pressures
with regard to some of the key additives required for the manufacture of PVC products. We anticipate that price trends during the
2018 financial year will be similar to those recorded in 2017, while
the supply of raw materials and additives is expected to remain
stable. In the medium- to long-term we expect to see a structural
upturn in raw material prices.
Risks attributable to information technology
Ongoing monitoring and optimisation of existing information technology is essential to the safety and reliability of business processes. With this in mind, refinements to measures already
implemented within the area of information security are considered particularly important. The primary risks involved relate to
the availability, reliability and efficiency of information technology
systems, including a failure of the IT infrastructure, loss of data

and attacks on IT systems. SIMONA addresses risks relating to
information technology through its in-house IT department as well
as by commissioning specialised companies and making regular
investments in the latest hardware and software. SIMONA
responds to growing demands placed on system protection as
part of its safety management programme. This mainly includes
investments in firewall and antivirus systems as well as other
software systems. The probability of occurrence of external
attacks on IT systems, in particular, is considered high.
At the end of the 2017 financial year, we are of the opinion that
the overall risk situation for the Group remains largely unchanged
from that of the previous year. At the time of preparing this report,
there were no identifiable risks that might jeopardise the existence of the SIMONA Group and SIMONA AG as a going concern.
Internal control system (ICS) relating to financial reporting –
Report pursuant to Section 289(4) and Section 315(4) HGB
The internal control system relating to financial reporting, which
implements specific controls with regard to the financial reporting
process, is aimed at providing reasonable assurance that annual
financial statements and consolidated financial statements can
be prepared in accordance with statutory requirements despite
possible risks.
The ICS encompasses accounting-related processes and controls
that are of significance to the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. In this context, the SIMONA Group observes
the relevant publications issued by the German Institute of Public
Auditors (Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer – IDW). There were no
significant changes to the accounting-related ICS in the period
between the end of the reporting period and the preparation of
the management report.
Bookkeeping and financial statement preparation are performed
primarily at a decentralised level in accordance with local standards. The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). In this context, SIMONA applies a uniform system of
accounts within the Group and an accounting manual. The parent
company assists the respective entities with regard to issues
relating to financial reporting and coordinates the process of
Group financial reporting. All entities included within the consolidated group have been integrated within this system by means of
clearly defined management and reporting structures. The inclusion of subsidiaries is managed with the help of standardised

reporting packages and a system certified in accordance with
IDW PS 880. Consolidation is performed as a multi-stage process
at the level of subsidiaries, segments and the Group.
The plausibility of numerical data is safeguarded at all levels by
means of system-specific validation and through manual controls.
Clearly defined areas of responsibility and access policies in
respect of IT systems of relevance to the preparation if financial
statements form an integral part of this process. Fundamental
control policies applicable to the annual and consolidated financial statements include the separation of duties, the principle of
four eyes and approval and release procedures for the process of
financial statement preparation. Overall responsibility for the
accounting-related internal control systems rests with the Management Board.

4.

REPORT ON EXPECTED DEVELOPMENTS

Economic conditions
Growth within the global economy is expected to continue in
2018. In January, the IMF revised upwards its forecast to 3.9 per
cent, which is 0.2 percentage points higher than in its outlook of
autumn 2017. The economic upturn in Europe and Asia as well as
the US tax reform are seen as the key drivers of growth. Among
the downside risks, the IMF cites an increase in sovereign debt,
the appreciation of the US dollar and current account deficits.
The IMF improved its outlook for the majority of the world’s established economies. The euro area is expected to grow by 2.2 per
cent, Germany by 2.3 per cent, France by 1.9 per cent and Italy by
1.4 per cent. According to IMF data, the United States is likely to
see its economy expand by 2.7 per cent. China’s economy is
expected to grow by 6.6 per cent in 2018.
The chemical industry anticipates that its upturn will be sustained
in 2018, albeit at a less dynamic rate. According to data published
by Verband der Chemischen Industrie (VCI), Germany’s association of the chemical industry, production output will increase by 2
per cent and revenue by 3 per cent. Domestic and foreign trade
are expected to develop largely along similar lines. Germany’s
mechanical and plant engineering sector is predicting sustained
dynamism within its market, with further growth in production
output by 3 per cent.
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Companies operating within Germany’s principal construction
industry have forecast revenue growth of 4 per cent within the
industry as a whole, which would be similar to the previous year’s
figure. Benefiting from corporate investments, the commercial
building sector is expected to develop favourably. Based on recent
projections, the global market for aircraft interiors will continue to
grow at pace in 2018.
Sector-specific conditions
According to industry association GKV, the plastics processing
sector in Germany will enjoy sustained growth in the year ahead.
Its projections point to revenue growth of approx. 4 per cent in
2018. In a recent GKV survey, 60 per cent of the association
members said that they anticipated higher revenues in 2018,
while only 4 per cent suggested a decline in business.
Expectations with regard to earnings performance are also positive on the whole. 41 per cent predict growth in profits, while 51
per cent believe earnings will remain stable. The majority of the
companies surveyed are of the opinion that exports will continue
to rise. On a less positive note, high energy costs due to EEG
charges payable under the provisions of the Renewable Energy
Act, political uncertainty in Europe and a growing shortage of
qualified personnel are expected to exert downward pressure.
Future performance of the Group
SIMONA anticipates that Group revenue for the 2018 financial
year will be between €405 and 410 million, while the EBIT margin
is expected to be between 7 and 9 per cent and the EBITDA margin between 11 to 13 per cent.
At Group level, the return on capital employed (ROCE) in 2018 is
expected to be between 9 and 11 per cent.
SIMONA will be targeting slight growth in Central Europe, whereas
business in Western Europe is to be maintained roughly at the
high level recorded in the preceding year. Growth in Eastern
Europe is projected to be higher. Business centred around industrial products is expected to expand further in the United States.
In Asia, meanwhile, SIMONA will be looking to achieve sustained
growth on the basis of the solid level recorded in 2017.
The company’s ability to achieve these targets will again depend
in particular on the capacity to impose viable prices in a highly
competitive market environment as well as on the direction taken
by commodity markets. At present, we anticipate that we will be

56

in a position to meet the revenue and earnings targets. Future
developments in respect of global industrial production and
investment spending as well as trends within the commodity markets are considered to be key determinants when it comes to
achieving these goals.
SIMONA is confident that it can maintain customer satisfaction at
the present level thanks to the strengthening of its technical capabilities as well as its focus on new market segments and the core
market of industrial products.
Given our efforts in the field of quality management, we anticipate
that we can match the levels currently recorded in this context.
The number of employees within the SIMONA Group is likely to
increase marginally in 2018. Based on the apprenticeship contracts already concluded, the headcount of vocational trainees is
expected to be similar to that seen in 2017.
Future performance of SIMONA AG
For the financial year 2018, SIMONA has set a guidance target of
€272 million in sales revenue, together with an EBIT margin
of between 5 and 6 per cent and an EBITDA margin of between
8 and 9 per cent, each calculated on the basis of IFRS.
The return on capital employed (ROCE) in 2018 is expected to be
between 6 and 7 per cent.
The sales region of “Germany” is to generate slight growth
through the continued expansion of business in the industrial
sector. The target for the region encompassing the “Rest of
Europe & Africa” is to achieve an increase in revenue – with Western Europe maintaining its high level and Eastern Europe recording stronger growth. The regions covering the “Americas” and
“Asia and Pacific” are also expected to generate strong growth for
SIMONA AG.

5.

OTHER INFORMATION

5.1 Corporate governance statement
The corporate governance statement pursuant to Section 289f
of the German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch – HGB)
has been published by SIMONA AG on its corporate website at
www.simona.de.

period comprises the financial years 2016 to 2018 and the third
performance period comprises the financial years 2017 to 2019.
Payment occurs subsequent to the adoption of the consolidated
financial statements for the final year of the respective performance period. In the financial year under review Management
Board compensation included the following components:
COMPOSITION OF MANAGEMENT BOARD COMPENSATION
in €’000

5.2 Compensation report
Management Board compensation
The Supervisory Board, based on the recommendations of the
Personnel Committee, is responsible for determining the overall
compensation of the respective Management Board members. It
also regularly reviews the compensation system relating to the
Management Board. The Personnel Committee consists of the
Supervisory Board Chairman Dr. Rolf Goessler as well as the
Supervisory Board members Roland Frobel and Dr. Roland Reber.
Compensation for the members of the Management Board of
SIMONA AG is calculated on the basis of the size of the company,
its commercial and financial position, as well as the level and
structure of compensation granted to Management Board members of similar enterprises. In addition, the duties and the contribution of the respective members of the Management Board are
taken into account.
Management Board compensation is performance-based. It is
comprised of a fixed level of remuneration as well as a variable
component. The fixed component of compensation is paid as a
salary on a monthly basis. The variable component of compensation is reviewed annually, while the fixed component is assessed
once every two years. In addition, both components are subject to
thorough analyses in intervals of two to three years, based on a
comparison with compensation figures applicable to executive
staff of similar enterprises. The variable component of Management Board compensation is based on earnings performance
within the Group and a long-term incentive programme. As regards
the performance periods 2014 to 2016, the long-term incentive
programme was based on the attainment of a defined target figure
(capital employed and a weighted average cost of capital (WACC)
of 8 per cent). As regards the performance periods 2015 to 2017,
average Group NOPAT (net operating profit after taxes) is used as
the key performance indicator, calculated on the basis of a threeyear performance period. The first performance period encompasses the financial years 2015 to 2017, the second performance

2017

2016

924

906

1,030

1,067

–

517

Fixed compensation
Fixed salary and fringe benefits
Variable compensation
Annual bonus
Long-term incentive programme
Period 2014 – 2016, payment 2017
Period 2015 – 2017, payment 2018
Total Management Board compensation

620

–

2,574

2,490

On 10 June 2016, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
SIMONA AG agreed by a three-quarter majority to disclose Management Board compensation in an aggregated format, divided
into fixed and performance-related components, rather than disclosing each amount by name. The resolution is valid up to and
including the 2020 financial year. Therefore, no individual, i.e.
itemised, disclosures are made under Section 285 no. 9 a) sentence 5 to 8 and Section 314(1) no. 6 a) sentence 5 to 8 of the
German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch – HGB).
The company’s Articles of Association contain no provisions that
are non-compliant with those set out in the German Stock Corporation Act as regards the conditions applicable to the appointment or removal of Management Board members as well as
amendments to the company’s Articles of Association. In view of
this, readers are asked to refer to the relevant statutory provisions
set out in Sections 84, 85, 133 and 179 of the German Stock
Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz – AktG) for further details.
Remuneration for the former members of the Management Board
amounts to €420 thousand (previous year: €470 thousand). Pension provisions for active and former members of the Management Board, as governed by the German Commercial Code, were
recognised to the full extent and amounted to €11,863 thousand
as at 31 December 2017 (previous year: €12,890 thousand).
IFRS-based pension provisions for active and former members of
the Management Board were recognised to the full extent and
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amounted to €16,595 thousand as at 31 December 2017 (previous year: €18,861 thousand).
The members of the Management Board also receive fringe bene
fits in the form of non-cash remuneration, which mainly consists
of a company car, telephone and insurance policies. Members of
the Management Board received neither loans or share options
nor other share-based compensation from the company.
Supervisory Board compensation
Supervisory Board compensation is calculated according to the
size of the company, as well as the duties and responsibilities of
the Supervisory Board members. The Chairman and the Deputy
Chairman as well as members involved in Committees receive
supplementary compensation.
Members of the Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG receive a standard fixed level of compensation amounting to €13,000. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board receives an amount equivalent to
double the standard level of compensation; the Deputy Chairman
receives an amount equivalent to one and a half times the standard level of compensation. Supervisory Board members who are
engaged in Committee work receive supplementary compensation of €7,000. All expenses associated directly with a position on
the Supervisory Board, as well as sales tax payable on such compensation, are reimbursed.
Compensation payable to members of the Supervisory Board was
increased in accordance with the resolution passed by the Annual
General Meeting convened on 10 June 2016. In addition to fixed
compensation, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be
authorised to pass a resolution on a variable component of compensation, payment of which shall be dependent on whether
specific corporate performance indicators have been met or
exceeded. At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on
9 June 2017 no such resolution for variable compensation components was passed for the 2017 financial year.
Supervisory Board compensation for the financial year under
review amounted to €164 thousand (previous year: €163 thousand), of which €140 thousand (previous year: €139 thousand)
was attributable to SIMONA AG. Members of the Supervisory
Board received neither loans or share options nor other sharebased compensation from the company.
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5.3 Disclosures pursuant to Section 289a and Section
315a HGB and explanatory report
As at 31 December 2017, the share capital of SIMONA AG
remained unchanged at €15,500,000, divided into 600,000
no-par-value bearer shares (“Stückaktien” governed by German
law). The shares are traded in the General Standard of the German stock exchange in Frankfurt as well as on the Berlin securities exchange. There are no different categories of share or
shares furnished with special rights. Each share is equipped with
one vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders. In view of the
fact that a shareholder’s right to a certificate of ownership interests has been precluded under the company’s Articles of Association, the share capital of our company is represented only in the
form of a global certificate, which has been deposited with Clearstream Banking AG, Frankfurt am Main. Therefore, our shareholders will in future only have an interest as co-owners in the collective holdings of the no-par-value shares in our company, as held
by Clearstream Banking AG, according to their interest in the
company’s share capital.
A 31.19 per cent interest was held by Dr. Wolfgang und Anita
Bürkle Stiftung, Kirn, a 15.04 per cent interest by Kreissparkasse
Biberach (Biberach), an 11.64 per cent interest by Dirk Möller
(Kirn), an 11.25 per cent interest by Regine Tegtmeyer (Nebel), a
10.0 per cent interest by SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH (Kirn) and a 10.1 per cent interest by Rossmann Beteiligungs GmbH (Burgwedel). The remaining
10.8 per cent of shares in the company were in free float.
As at 9 June 2017, members of the Management Board reported
a total holding of 70,860 shares; this corresponds to 11.81 per
cent of the share capital of SIMONA AG. The members of the
Supervisory Board reported holdings of 1,300 shares in total as
at the attendance date of the Annual General Meeting on 9 June
2017. This corresponds to 0.22 per cent of SIMONA AG’s share
capital.
To the extent that employees hold an interest in the company’s
capital, these employees themselves directly exercise the rights
of control associated with their shareholdings. The appointment
and the removal of members of the Management Board are governed by the statutory provisions set out in Sections 84 and 85 of
the German Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz – AktG) as well
as by Section 9 of the Articles of Association of SIMONA AG. Under
these provisions, the Management Board of the company consists of at least two members. The appointment of deputy mem-

bers of the Management Board is permitted. The Management
Board shall generally have a Chairperson appointed by the Supervisory Board.
The Supervisory Board may delegate decisions on the conclusion,
amendment and termination of Management Board employment
contracts to a Supervisory Board committee. Any amendments to
the Articles of Association must be made in accordance with the
statutory provisions set out in Section 179 et seq. of the German
Stock Corporation Act.
According to Section 6 of the Articles of Association, the company
is entitled to issue share certificates that embody one share (single certificate) or multiple shares (global certificates).
At present there are no significant agreements containing a
change of control provision that would apply in the event of a
takeover bid.
At present there are no agreements with members of the Management Board or with employees relating to compensation payments in the event of a change of control.

6.

NON-FINANCIAL STATEMENT IN ACCORDANCE
WITH SECTION 289 B)–E) HGB

Brief description of business model
The SIMONA Group develops, manufactures and markets a range
of semi-finished thermoplastics, pipes and fittings as well as
finished parts and profiles. The materials used include polyethylene (PE), polypropylene (PP), polyvinyl chloride (PVC), polyethylene terephthalate (PETG), polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF), ethylene-chlorotrifluoroethylene (E-CTFE) and perfluoroalkoxy (PFA)
as well as various specialist materials. The production methods
applied within this area range from extrusion, pressing and injection moulding to CNC manufacturing. SIMONA also maintains its
own plastics workshop for the production of customised fittings.
Semi-finished parts are deployed mainly within the area of chemical tank and equipment construction, mechanical engineering,
the transport industry, the construction sector, the exhibition and
display sector as well as the automobile and aerospace industry.
Pipes and fittings are used primarily for drinking-water supply,
sewage disposal and industrial piping systems, including the
chemical process industry. Finished parts and profiles are destined in particular for the mechanical engineering and transport
technology sectors.
As a company, SIMONA is aware of its responsibilities towards
people and the environment. Environmental, social and energy
issues are key factors for SIMONA.
Environmental issues
A certified environmental management system in accordance
with the requirements of DIN EN ISO 14001 forms part of the
company’s central policies. This international standard for envir
onmental management systems is designed to give certified
companies a framework for protecting the environment and
responding to changing circumstances in compliance with
socio-economic requirements. The systematic approach promoted by the standard furnishes information that fosters success in
the long term and opens up opportunities that contribute to sustainable development.
SIMONA has adopted an environmental management system at
its sites in Kirn and Ringsheim in Germany and Litvinov in the
Czech Republic and ensures compliance with its requirements
through surveillance and recertification audits. In 2017, SIMONA
became one of the first companies to be successfully recertified
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to the new standard 14001:2015.
Material risks associated with SIMONA’s business activities that
could be very likely to have a serious negative impact on the envir
onment relate to the contamination of the soil, air or bodies of
water as a result of accidents, fires or the discharge of production
waste.
SIMONA manages its fire risk through preventive fire protection
measures: regular maintenance for its extinguishers, inspections
conducted with the insurer and fire service, a dedicated set of fire
protection regulations and annual staff briefings. Accident-related
risk is managed with regular checks and maintenance of plant
and equipment, structural measures such as retention basins,
collecting pans and sealed floors and by storing hazardous substances in compliance with the law. SIMONA follows fixed emergency plans in the event of an accident, carries out weekly,
semi-annual and annual maintenance and tests the leak-tightness of its oil separators every five years. Test and inspection
intervals are complied with and emissions are measured regularly.
SIMONA disposes of waste that cannot be returned to the production cycle in accordance with the provisions of the German Circular Economy Act (Kreislaufwirtschaftsgesetz). Waste is mainly
recycled in house or passed on to external recycling firms. All
waste disposal companies used have been certified and are
authorised in accordance with the relevant statutory provisions.
Staff receive regular training on preventing, recycling and disposing of waste. Reducing waste as a percentage of production volume is one of the company’s key objectives.
Material risks that are associated with the corporation’s business
relationships, products and services and that could be very likely
to have a serious negative impact on the environment relate to
the environmental footprint of the raw materials that SIMONA
uses, the disposal/recycling of waste at customers’ premises and
non-conformance with product properties in environmentally critical and safety-related applications.
SIMONA manages risks associated with the environmental footprint of the raw materials it uses by selecting resource suppliers
carefully based on the certifications they have obtained (origin,
observing blacklists), substituting hazardous substances right
from the research and development stage and complying with
applicable legislation governing the use of hazardous substances.
SIMONA provides its customers with regular updates on the correct
ways to use, recycle and dispose of its products and the waste that
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is generated when these products are processed further. Product
characteristics, key data and safe storage and processing instructions are listed in material and safety data sheets for each product,
which are available online. The risk of non-conformance with product properties is managed with a dedicated quality assurance system, which sets out testing and inspection plans for all products.
Additionally, durable SIMONA products help to deliver effective
solutions in response to market challenges, e. g. with regard to
environmental engineering and utilities. SIMONA is an active member of VinylPlus, an organisation that focuses on improving sustainability within the PVC supply chain. In addition, the company is a
co-initiator and holder of the PVC quality mark issued by Industrieverband Halbzeuge und Konsumprodukte aus Kunststoff e. V.
(pro-K). Those entitled to use the mark have committed themselves
to specific quality standards, in addition to delivering the best
possible manufacturing expertise and a premium-quality service.
Energy issues
A certified energy management system in accordance with the
requirements of DIN EN ISO 50001 forms part of the company’s
central policies. This international standard for energy management system is designed to help certified companies to develop
systems and processes to become more energy-efficient. Adopting a systematic approach in order to introduce, implement, maintain and improve an energy management system is intended to
enable companies to continuously improve their performance as
regards energy management, energy efficiency and energy saving.
The standard sets out requirements governing the supply, use and
consumption of energy including measurement, documentation
and reporting as well as practical design and procurement rules
for facilities, systems, processes and personnel that consume
energy.
SIMONA has adopted an energy management system at its sites
in Kirn and Ringsheim in Germany and Litvinov in the Czech
Republic and ensures compliance with its requirements through
surveillance and recertification audits. In 2017, the energy management system was successfully recertified to the relevant
standards (ISO 50001:2011 (ISO 50003)).
Material risks associated with SIMONA’s business activities that
could be very likely to have a serious negative impact on energy
issues relate to the consumption of resources and the production
of emissions.

SIMONA manages these risks with measures designed to improve
energy efficiency and reduce emissions. The company assesses
its energy consumption and efficiency by means of energy performance indicators (ENPIs), which compare consumption data with
the relevant production volumes. Key objectives in the field of
energy management are increasing energy efficiency and cutting
its consumption.
Personnel matters
The company’s employees are a key pillar of its success. This is
enshrined on several levels in our Code of Conduct, which applies
equally to employees, line managers and senior executives at all
SIMONA companies.
For instance, SIMONA has made health and safety at work a priority and is currently implementing a “Vision Zero” strategy (referring to the number of occupational accidents) at all SIMONA AG
sites. This vision has also been set as a target in the balanced
scorecard used at the European sites. All occupational accidents
are logged in reports by the health and safety officers appointed
by the company before their causes are analysed and preventive
action is determined based on this analysis. SIMONA AG has also
set up a healthcare team geared towards keeping staff healthy
through various campaigns.
A keen supporter of diversity and equal opportunities for all its
employees, SIMONA has set itself the target of appointing female
executives to 20 per cent of positions at the level below the SIMONA
AG Management Board. This target has already been met.
SIMONA AG invests in bringing on suitable young talent and regularly participates in joint projects with schools and universities
(school mentoring schemes, MINT programme). As well as training, applicants who fit the criteria can look forward to a dual-degree course, subsidised training to fit around their existing work
commitments (part-time degree) or a placement at one of the
foreign sites run by our subsidiaries. SIMONA AG maintains partnerships with the universities in Ludwigshafen, Darmstadt and
Mainz in order to offer these part-time degrees.
SIMONA AG regularly seeks its employees’ opinions in anonymous
staff surveys and uses the results to devise tangible measures to
improve staff satisfaction. At its Kirn site, SIMONA AG is currently
introducing comprehensive performance development reviews
(PDRs), some of which in the commercial category are already
organised based on a skills matrix. This set-up allows every

employee to be shown the requirements of their position and the
extent to which they themselves are meeting these. It is to be
rolled out to all commercial staff within the next two years. Training needs are determined based on these annual PDRs. Feedback from training courses attended are evaluated systematically.
Within SIMONA AG, the flow of information to staff is guaranteed
by the SIMONA intranet, a noticeboard system, departmental
get-togethers and regular shift training and company meetings.
SIMONA recognises the right of all its employees to be represented on, in and by trade unions and to form staff committees. Such
committees have been established for many years at SIMONA
AG’s site, while the workforce in Kirn is also represented by the IG
BCE union.
Material risks to which we could be exposed by neglecting personnel matters relate to a loss of staff – and thus their expertise and
potential trade secrets – to the competition. A “brain drain” of this
kind can also mean a fall in quality, which could have financial
implications in the form of higher warranty claims and the loss of
customers. Last but not least, high rates of sickness absence
have a negative impact on site productivity. We are also facing the
challenges of demographic change, which for us brings risks associated with capacity and an ageing population.
SIMONA has not yet assessed to what extent it complies with the
underlying International Labour Organisation agreements as
regards its measures and policies on personnel matters.
Human rights
SIMONA is committed to upholding internationally recognised
human rights and, in its Code of Conduct, has imposed a binding
obligation on itself and its staff to safeguard these rights. In so
doing, we are supporting international diversity, advocating equal
opportunities and demanding mutual respect from our employees. Factors that are a potential source of discrimination such as
gender, background, religion or sexual orientation are not considered when the company makes decisions. We wholeheartedly
reject any form of forced or child labour and expect our business
partners to do the same. We are continuously developing our
approach. Breaches of the basic principles laid down in our Code
of Conduct can be reported to the Compliance Officer and will be
punished severely.
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Combating bribery and corruption
Without exception or restriction, SIMONA undertakes not to give
any illegal gratuities to its staff, advisors, commercial representatives, agents or similar third parties or to receive any such gratu
ities. SIMONA has issued policies for avoiding bribery and corruption in respect of various areas and everyday situations with which
its employees could be confronted. Breaches will be punished
severely.

philosophy lay down responsibilities and workflows for selecting
the institutions, projects and initiatives to be supported and how
much support each is to receive. At the Kirn site, support is also
provided by the Dr. Wolfgang und Anita Bürkle Stiftung, SIMONA
AG’s major shareholder. The foundation focuses on promoting
education and healthcare, endangered species and animals in
general, art and culture, development aid funding and charitable
causes relating to social welfare facilities.

Under some circumstances, breaches of the ban and related policies can be serious offences that can cause the company financial damage as well as significant damage to its reputation. They
will also give many of our contractual partners grounds to terminate their cooperation. Finally, they can also lead to the company
being excluded from bidding for public tenders in Germany and
abroad.

Forward-looking statements and forecasts
This combined management report contains forward-looking
statements that are based on the current expectations, presumptions and forecasts of the Management Board of SIMONA AG as
well as on information currently available to the Management
Board. These forward-looking statements shall not be interpreted
as a guarantee that the future events and results to which they
refer will actually materialise. Rather, future circumstances and
results depend on a multitude of factors. These include various
risks and imponderables, as well as being based on assumptions
that may conceivably prove to be incorrect. SIMONA AG shall not
be obliged to adjust or update the forward-looking statements
made in this report.

Spotting risks early is a key criterion in preventing compliance
breaches. The specific compliance risks to which SIMONA is
exposed are determined, analysed and updated systematically in
an annual process. Appropriate preventive measures are formulated and introduced as and when new risks emerge.
Checks as to whether the subsidiaries are complying with the
regulations on preventing bribery and corruption are performed by
means of regular site audits, including inspecting accounts and
cash holdings.
SIMONA has appointed a Compliance Officer to ensure the effective implementation of its compliance system.
SIMONA allows both staff and external third parties to report
breaches of the ban on bribery and corruption to the Compliance
Officer anonymously.
Rather than following or being based on any national or international standards, the company’s system for combating bribery
and corruption is structured in line with the individual requirements and risk situation within the organisation.
Social matters
As a company, SIMONA bears responsibility for the development
and appeal of the cities and communities where it is based and
takes social matters into account. It is committed to supporting
social, cultural and aid projects at its various sites across the
world. The due diligence processes implemented as part of this
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Responsibility Statement
We hereby declare that, to the best of our knowledge, the combined management report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the
SIMONA Group and SIMONA AG, together with a description of the
principal opportunities and risks associated with the expected
development of the Group and SIMONA AG.
Kirn, 29 March 2018
SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft
The Management Board

Wolfgang Moyses

Dirk Möller

Fredy Hiltmann

Consolidated Financial Statements of SIMONA AG
for the 2017 Financial Year
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Group Income Statement
of SIMONA AG for the Financial Year 2017

in €’ 000

Notes

01/01/– 31/12/2017

01/01/– 31/12/2016

Revenue

[7]

394,145

366,675

Other income

[8]

5,433

8,600

7,199

–132

[9]

219,337

196,722

[10]

74,830

72,398

[17, 18]

14,410

13,700

[12]

71,730

62,168
159

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress
Cost of materials
Staff costs
Depreciation/write-downs of property, plant and equipment,
and amortisation/write-downs of intangible assets
Other expenses
Income from investments accounted for using the equity method

[19]

190

Finance income

[13]

152

212

Finance cost

[13]

2,194

2,374

24,618

28,152

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

[14]

Profit for the period

7,113

8,617

17,505

19,535

17,446

19,486

59

49

of which attributable to:
Owners of the parent company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE
in €
– basic, calculated on the basis of profit for the period attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the parent company

[15]

29.08

32.48

– diluted, calculated on the basis of profit for the period attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the parent company

[15]

29.08

32.48
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Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
of SIMONA AG for the Financial Year 2017

in €’ 000
Profit for the period

01/01/– 31/12/2017

01/01/– 31/12/2016

17,505

19,535

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations
Deferred taxes on remeasurement of defined benefit obligations

9,108

–7,177

–2,685

2,116

–7,482

898

804

128

–255

–4,035

17,250

15,500

17,174

15,481

76

19

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating financial statements of subsidiaries
Deferred taxes from currency translation
Other comprehensive income recognised directly in equity
Total comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent company
Non-controlling interests
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Group Statement of Financial Position
of SIMONA AG for the Financial Year 2017
ASSETS
in €’ 000

Notes

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

Intangible assets

[17]

29,384

33,877

Property, plant and equipment

[18]

114,439

116,690

Financial assets

[34]

340

340

Investments accounted for using the equity method

[19]

483

293

Deferred tax assets

[14]

10,203

7,641

Non-current assets

154,849

158,841

Inventories

[20]

77,956

69,203

Trade receivables

[21]

56,461

52,186

Other assets

[22]

4,204

2,630

Income tax assets

[22]

1,259

768

Other financial assets

[34]

692

836

[24, 31]

68,022

74,759

[23]

0

3,785

Current assets

208,594

204,167

Total assets

363,443

363,008

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

Issued capital

15,500

15,500

Capital reserve

15,274

15,274

165,498

148,661

Cash and cash equivalents
Current assets held for sale

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
in €’ 000

Notes

Equity attributable to owners of the parent company

Revenue reserves
Other reserves
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Financial liabilities

5,677

12,354

201,949

191,789

317

254

[25]

202,266

192,043

[26]

18,705

22,111

[27, 28]

97,573

101,623

Other provisions

[29]

3,774

2,705

Other financial liabilities

[26]

231

58

Deferred tax liabilities

[14]

6,323

3,150

Provisions for pensions

Non-current liabilities

126,606

129,647

Financial liabilities

[26]

3,425

3,444

Provisions for pensions

[27]

1,595

1,710

Other provisions

[29]

1,616

1,563

11,116

15,152

Trade payables
Income tax liabilities

451

1,620

Other financial liabilities

[26]

1,764

3,358

Other liabilities

[30]

14,604

14,471

34,571

41,318

363,443

363,008

Current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
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Group Statement of Cash Flows
of SIMONA AG for the Financial Year 2017

in €’ 000

Notes

01/01/– 31/12/2017

01/01/– 31/12/2016

Profit before tax

24,618

28,152

Income taxes paid

–9,646

–6,445

[13]

202

84

[17, 18]

14,410

13,700

Finance income and finance cost (excl. interest expense relating to pensions)
Depreciation/write-downs of property, plant and equipment,
and amortisation/write-downs of intangible assets
Other non-cash expenses and income
Result from disposal of non-current assets

3,552

151

314

–816

Change in inventories

[20]

–10,791

–855

Change in trade receivables

[21]

–6,095

–1,188

Change in other assets

[22]

–1,733

792

Change in pension provisions

[27, 28]

4,943

4,763

Change in liabilities and other provisions

[29, 30]

–560

3,846

19,214

42,184

–16,091

–15,754

–2,029

–2,017

Net cash from operating activities

Investments in intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

[17, 18]

Payments relating to acquisition of subsidiaries and other business units
(from prior years)
Proceeds from the disposal of assets
Proceeds relating to the short-term financial management of cash investments

[34]

Payments relating to the short-term financial management of cash investments

[34]

Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities

3,985

1,951

191

4,000

0

–101

152

212

–13,792

–11,709

21,980

Proceeds from financial liabilities taken on by the Group

[26]

0

Repayment of financial liabilities

[26]

–3,425

–3,212

Dividend payment

[16]

–7,200

–6,000

Payment dividend to non-controlling interests
Interest paid and similar expenses
Net cash used in/from financing activities

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on liquidity

[31]

Change in cash and cash equivalents

–41

–28

–354

–295

–11,020

12,445

–1,139

–53

–6,737

42,867

31,892

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

[24, 31]

74,759

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

[24, 31]

68,022

74,759

–6,737

42,867

Change in cash and cash equivalents
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Issued
capital

Capital
reserve

Revenue
reserves

Other
reserves

Total

Currency
translation
differences

in €’ 000
NOTES
Balance at 01/01/2016

[25]

[25]

15,500

15,274

Amount recognised directly in
equity as part of the Statement
of Comprehensive Income

0

Profit for the period

0

Total comprehensive income
for the period

[25]
140,390

11,167

0

–5,061

0

19,486

TOTAL EQUITY

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY								

NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Group Statement of Changes in Equity
of SIMONA AG for the Financial Year 2017

[25]
182,331

270

182,601

1,036

–4,025

–10

–4,035

0

19,486

49

19,535

0

0

14,425

1,036

15,461

39

15,500

0

0

–6,000

0

–6,000

–29

–6,029

0

0

–154

151

–3

–26

–29

Balance at 31/12/2016

15,500

15,274

148,661

12,354

191,789

254

192,043

Balance at 01/01/2017

148,661

12,354

191,789

254

192,043

Dividend payment

[16]

Other changes

15,500

15,274

Amount recognised directly in
equity as part of the Statement
of Comprehensive Income

0

0

6,423

–6,695

–272

17

–255

Profit for the period

0

0

17,446

0

17,446

59

17,505

Total comprehensive income
for the period
Dividend payment
Other changes
Balance at 31/12/2017
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[16]

0

0

23,869

–6,695

17,174

76

17,250

0

0

–7,200

0

–7,200

–41

–7,241

0

0

168

18

186

28

214

15,500

15,274

165,498

5,677

201,949

317

202,266

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
of SIMONA AG for the Financial Year 2017
[1] COMPANY INFORMATION
SIMONA AG is a stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft) founded in
Germany – registered office at Teichweg 16, 55606 Kirn, Germany.
Its shares are traded within the General Standard of the Frankfurt
and Berlin Stock Exchanges. The company has been entered in
the Commercial Register at the District Court of Bad Kreuznach
(HRB 1390). The consolidated financial statements of SIMONA AG
for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 were released by
the Management Board on the basis of a resolution of 29 March
2018 for the purpose of forwarding them to the Supervisory
Board.
The activities of the SIMONA Group mainly include the production
and sale of semi-finished products in the form of sheets, rods,
welding rods and profiles as well as pipes, fittings and finished
parts made of thermoplastics.
The semi-finished parts are manufactured at the plant in Kirn
(Germany) as well as in Archbald and Newcomerstown (USA) and
in Jiangmen (China). Pipes and fittings are produced at the plant
in Ringsheim (Germany). The plant in Litvinov (Czech Republic)
manufactures semi-finished parts, pipes and fittings. The products are marketed under the joint SIMONA brand as well as a
range of separate brands.

Additionally, the following subsidiaries, among others, are responsible for handling sales and distribution activities:
Company

Registered office,
country

SIMONA UK Ltd.

Stafford, United Kingdom

SIMONA S.A.S.

Domont, France

SIMONA S.r.l. Società UNIPERSONALE

Cologno Monzese (MI),
Italy

SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L.

Barcelona, Spain

SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o.

Wrocław, Poland

DEHOPLAST POLSKA Sp. z o.o.

Kwidzyn, Poland

SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o.

Litvinov, Czech Republic

SIMONA FAR EAST LIMITED

Hong Kong, China

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING
(SHANGHAI) CO. LTD.

Shanghai, China

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS (Guangdong)
Co. Ltd.

Jiangmen, China

SIMONA AMERICA Inc.

Archbald, USA

Boltaron Inc.

Newcomerstown, USA

OOO SIMONA RUS

Moscow, Russian
Federation

SIMONA INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Mumbai, India

[2] ACCOUNTING POLICIES
SIMONA AG operates a sales office in Möhlin, Switzerland, and is
the ultimate controlling parent of the Group.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the
historical cost principle, unless otherwise specified under [5]
Summary of significant accounting policies. The consolidated
financial statements are prepared in euro. Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are rounded to € ‘000.
Statement of compliance with IFRS
The consolidated financial statements of SIMONA AG and the
entities included in the consolidated group for the period ended
31 December 2017 have been prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) applicable at
the end of the reporting period, as adopted by the European
Union, and the provisions of commercial law to be applied additionally pursuant to Section 315a(1) of the German Commercial
Code (Handelsgesetzbuch – HGB).
The term “IFRS” comprises all International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and International Accounting Standards (IAS) to
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be applied on a mandatory basis as at the reporting date. Additionally, all interpretations issued by the International Financial
Reporting Standards Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) – formerly Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) – were applied
insofar as their application was mandatory for the 2017 financial
year.
The consolidated financial statements consist of the financial
statements of SIMONA AG and its subsidiaries as at 31 December
of each financial year (hereinafter also referred to as “Group” or
“SIMONA Group”).
The Group statement of financial position conforms with the presentation requirements of IAS 1. Various items reported in the
income statement and the statement of financial position have
been aggregated for the purpose of improving the overall clarity of
presentation. These items are disclosed and discussed separately in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of
SIMONA AG and its subsidiaries for each financial year ended 31
December. The financial statements of SIMONA AG and the subsidiaries are prepared using uniform accounting policies for the
same reporting period.
All intragroup balances (receivables, liabilities, provisions), transactions, income and expenses as well as profits and losses from
transactions between consolidated entities (“intercompany profits/losses”) are eliminated as part of consolidation.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated effective from the acquisition
date, which is the date on which the Group effectively obtains
control. Inclusion in the consolidated financial statements ends
as soon as the parent ceases to control the subsidiary. Changes
in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
Non-controlling interests are disclosed separately in the Group
income statement and within equity of the Group statement of
financial position.
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[3] NEW FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
3.1 Accounting standards to be applied for the first time in
the financial year
The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the
IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) issued the following
Standards and Interpretations that have been endorsed by the EU
and incorporated into European law and must be applied with
regard to the reporting period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017. The accounting standards to be applied for the first
time in the financial year 2017 had no material impact on the
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

IFRS pronouncement

Approval
IASB

EU
endorsement

EU firsttime adoption

Amendments to IAS 7,
Statement of Cash Flows:
Disclosure Initiative

29/01/2016

06/11/2017

01/01/2017

Amendments to IAS 12,
Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses

19/01/2016

06/11/2017

01/01/2017

Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows:
Disclosure Initiative
An entity is required to make disclosures about changes to those
financial liabilities for which inflows and outflows are presented in
cash flows from financing activities in the statement of cash
flows. The disclosure requirement also applies to changes in
financial assets (e.g. assets that hedge liabilities arising from
financing activities). An entity shall disclose, among other things,
changes from financing cash flows, changes arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses, the effect
of changes in foreign exchange rates, changes in fair values and
other changes. This will have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of SIMONA.
Amendments to IAS 12, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses
The amendments clarify the requirements on recognition of
deferred tax assets for unrealised losses on debt instruments
measured at fair value and recognised in other comprehensive
income. This will have no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of SIMONA.

3.2 Standards and Interpretations not yet applicable in the
financial year
The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the
International Financial Reporting Standards Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) have issued additional Standards and Interpretations. These standards and interpretations are not being applied
in the financial year under review, as adoption by the EU
(“endorsement”) remains outstanding at this time for some of
them, or because their application is not yet mandatory.

IFRS pronouncement

Approval
IASB

EU
endorsement

EU firsttime adoption

Amendments to IFRS 4,
Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

12/09/2016

03/11/2017

01/01/2018

Clarifications regarding
IFRS 15, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

12/04/2016

31/10/2017

01/01/2018

IFRS 16, Leases

13/01/2016

31/10/2017

01/01/2019

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

24/07/2014

22/11/2016

01/01/2018

IFRS 15, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

28/05/2014

22/09/2016

01/01/2018

Amendments to IFRS 2:
Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment

20/06/2016

26/02/2018

01/01/2018

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2014–2016 Cycle

08/12/2016

07/02/2018

01/01/2018

Amendments to IAS 40
with regard to Transfers of
Investment Property

08/12/2016

14/03/2018

01/01/2018

IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance
Consideration

08/12/2016

Open

01/01/2018

IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

18/05/2017

Open

Expected:
01/01/2021

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over
Income Tax Treatments

07/06/2017

Open

Expected:
01/01/2019

Amendments to IFRS 9:
Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

12/10/2017

22/03/2018

01/01/2019

Amendments to IAS 28:
Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures

12/10/2017

Open

Expected:
01/01/2019

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2015–2017 Cycle

12/12/2017

Open

Expected:
01/01/2019

Clarifications regarding IFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The clarifications in IFRS 15 are related to the identification of
performance obligations, guidance on principal versus agent considerations and licences. No effects on the consolidated financial
statements of SIMONA have been identified.
IFRS 16, Leases
Under the new regulations, lessees will in future have to account
for all leases by recognising a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. Presentation in the income statement is always on the basis
of a financing transaction, i.e. the right-of-use asset is generally
subject to straight-line depreciation while the effective interest
method is to be applied to the lease liability. Essentially, it is likely
that the first-time application of IFRS 16 will result in an increase
in non-current assets and liabilities, which will in turn have an
impact on the balance sheet total, debt and the equity ratio.
As regards possible implications, readers are kindly requested to
refer to the notes relating to other financial obligations [35].
IFRS 9, Financial Instruments
Under IFRS 9, all financial instruments currently within the scope of
IAS 39 will henceforth generally be subdivided into only two classifications: financial instruments measured at amortised cost and
financial instruments measured at fair value. As part of the amended requirements issued on 24 July 2014, an additional measurement category will be introduced for debt instruments. In future,
these may be classified as fair value in other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) if the conditions in respect of the business model
and the contractual cash flows have been met. In this context, the
IASB has also published a discussion paper relating to additional
requirements for macro hedge accounting that are unconnected to
IFRS 9. In 2017, the Group performed an analysis of the potential
effects of IFRS 9. This assessment was based on information currently available and is, essentially, subject to future change. Overall, the Group does not anticipate that IFRS 9 will have a material
effect on items in the statement of financial position and equity.
IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 will replace IAS 11 “Construction Contracts”, IAS 18 “Revenue”, IFRIC 13 “Customer Loyalty Programmes”, IFRIC 15
“Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate”, IFRIC 18
“Transfers of Assets from Customers” and SIC-31 “Revenue –
Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services”. The standard
defines when revenues should be recognized and in what amount.
According to IFRS 15, revenues should be recognized in the
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amount that reflects the consideration expected for the performance obligations being undertaken. In 2017, the Group performed a thorough analysis of the potential effects of IFRS 15.
This assessment was based on information currently available
and is, essentially, subject to future change. Overall, these
amendments are not expected to have an impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS 2:
Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
As SIMONA does not have a programme of share-based payment,
this will not have an impact on its consolidated financial statements.
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014–2016 Cycle
This Annual Improvements Cycle relates to the following standards: IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and IAS 28. These changes have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to IAS 40 with regard to Transfers
of Investment Property
The amendments clarify that an entity may only reclassify an
investment property if there is evidence of a change in use. The
change in use may result in the property meeting the definition of
investment property for the first time (or ceasing to meet the definition). The amendments clarify that an intended change of use by
management was not sufficient evidence of a change in use. This
will have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of
SIMONA.
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advanced Consideration
IFRIC 22 addresses the issue of how to apply IAS 21 The Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. It clarifies how to determine the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration in a foreign currency.
The date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration. This will have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of SIMONA.
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IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts
IFRS 17 establishes accounting principles for insurance contracts. The standard does not cover the aspect of recognition by
policyholders. Therefore, this standard does not have an impact
on the consolidated financial statements of SIMONA.
IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
The tax treatment of specific circumstances and transactions can
be dependent on future approval by the taxation authority or a
court. IAS 12 Income Taxes prescribes the accounting treatment
for income taxes. IFRIC 23 clarifies the requirements in IAS 12
with regard to the consideration of uncertainty over income tax
treatment of circumstances and transactions.
Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
The amendments made by the IASB are aimed at clarifying or
adjusting existing requirements in B4.1.10 / B4.1.11(b). This was
due to uncertainty in the case of financial instruments containing
symmetrical termination and indemnity clauses, on the basis of
which, theoretically, payments could be made by the debtor to the
creditor and vice versa. This is not expected to have an impact on
the consolidated financial statements of SIMONA.
Amendments to IAS 28: Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures
The amendments are aimed at clarifying that an entity shall apply
IFRS 9 “Financial Instrument” to long-term interests in associates
and joint ventures that form part of the net investment in the
associate or joint venture but are not accounted for using the
equity method. This is not expected to have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements of SIMONA.
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015−2017 Cycle
This Annual Improvements Cycle affects the following standards:
IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23. These changes have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

[4] MATERIAL JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
Judgements
When applying the accounting policies, the management made
the following judgements with the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements. Within this context, decisions containing estimates have not been taken into
account. Among other aspects, significant estimates relate to the
useful lives of assets.
Material judgements relate to the classification of leases, the
recognition of provisions, the estimation or assessment of the
recoverability or possible impairment of trade receivables, inventories and deferred tax assets, as well as the assessment of factors that may indicate an impairment of assets.
Uncertainties relating to estimates
The following section outlines the most important forwardlooking
assumptions as well as other material uncertainty regarding the
use of estimates, applicable at the reporting date, as a result of
which there is a significant risk that the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities may require material adjustments within the
coming financial year.
Impairment of goodwill
The Group performs impairment tests for goodwill at least once
per year. This requires estimates to be made with regard to the
value in use of cash-generating units (“CGU”) to which goodwill is
allocated. For the purpose of estimating the value in use, the
Group has to determine, on the basis of estimates, the projected
cash flows associated with the cash-generating unit, as well as
selecting an appropriate discount rate in order to determine the
present value of the aforementioned cash flows.

beyond this time frame, long-term growth rates are determined
and applied to the projection of future cash flows beyond four
years.
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for the carryforward of
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. The process of determining the level of
deferred tax assets requires significant judgement by the management with regard to the timing and amount of future taxable
profit as well as the future tax planning strategies. For further
details, please refer to Note [14].
Provisions
Provisions are recognised in accordance with the accounting policies discussed in Note [29]. In determining the level of provisions,
the management is required to make significant judgements as to
the timing and the amounts of future outflow of resources.
Pensions
Expenses relating to defined benefit plans are determined on the
basis of actuarial methods. Actuarial valuation is conducted on
the basis of assumptions that include discount rates, expected
salary and pension increases as well as mortality rates. The
assumptions used as a basis of valuations may differ from actual
developments due to changing market, economic and social conditions. Any change in these assumptions will have an impact on
the carrying amounts of pension obligations. For further details,
please refer to Note [27] and [28].

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group determines at the end of each reporting period whether there are observable indications that a non-financial asset or
group of non-financial assets is impaired. For the purpose of
determining the value in use, the future expected cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An appropriate valuation model is applied for the purpose of determining the fair value.
The Group bases its impairment tests on detailed budget calculations that are prepared separately for each cash-generating unit.
Budget planning spans a period of four years. As regards periods
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[5] SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business combinations
Business combinations subsequent to 1 January 2010 are
accounted for by applying the acquisition method. The cost of a
business combination is calculated as the sum of the consideration transferred, measured at the acquisition-date fair value, and
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. In the case of each
business combination, the acquirer measures components of
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition-related costs are accounted for as expenses and presented as other expenses.
On first-time recognition, goodwill is measured at cost, being the
excess of the consideration transferred and the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If the consideration transferred is lower than
the fair value of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary, the
difference is accounted for in profit and loss.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
as from the date of acquisition goodwill acquired as part of a
business combination is allocated to those cash-generating units
of the Group that are expected to benefit from the business combination. This method is applied regardless of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are allocated to these
cash-generating units.
Currency translation
Annual financial statements prepared by the consolidated Group
entities in a foreign currency are translated on the basis of the
functional currency method. The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entities
operate, which in the case of the Group companies of SIMONA AG
is the respective local currency. The consolidated financial statements are prepared in euro.
Those foreign entities whose functional currencies differ from the
euro have been presented below, together with details of their
functional currency:

Company

Registered office,
country

Currency

SIMONA UK Ltd.

Stafford, United
Kingdom

Pound sterling

SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o.

Wrocław, Poland

Polish zloty

DEHOPLAST POLSKA Sp. z o.o.

Kwidzyn, Poland

Polish zloty

SIMONA-PLASTICS CZ, s.r.o.

Prague, Czech
Republic

Czech koruna

SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o.

Litvinov, Czech
Republic

Czech koruna

SIMONA FAR EAST LIMITED

Hong Kong, China

Hong Kong dollar

SIMONA ASIA LIMITED

Hong Kong, China

Hong Kong dollar

SIMONA AMERICA Inc.

Archbald, USA

US dollar

64 NORTH CONAHAN DRIVE
HOLDING, LLC

Hazleton, USA

US dollar

Laminations Inc.

Archbald, USA

US dollar

Boltaron Inc.

Newcomerstown,
USA

US dollar

DANOH, LLC

Akron, USA

US dollar

Shanghai, China
SIMONA ENGINEERING
PLASTICS TRADING (SHANGHAI)
CO. LTD.

Chinese
renminbi yuan

SIMONA ENGINEERING
Jiangmen, China
PLASTICS (Guangdong) Co. Ltd.

Chinese
renminbi yuan

OOO SIMONA RUS

Russian rouble

Moscow, Russian
Federation

SIMONA INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Mumbai, India

Indian rupee

SIMONA ASIA PACIFIC PTE. LTD. Singapore,
Singapore

Singapore dollar

The items accounted for in the respective financial statements
are measured on the basis of the functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are translated initially between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the arithmetic mean
rate applicable on the day of the transaction. All exchange differences are recorded as other income and other expenses in profit
or loss for the period. This does not include monetary items that
have been designated as part of a hedge of a net investment by
the Group in a foreign operation. They are recognised in other
comprehensive income until disposal of the net investment; the
cumulative amount is reclassified in profit and loss only upon
disposal. Taxes arising from exchange differences relating to
these monetary items are also recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost of purchase or conversion in a foreign currency are translated at the
foreign exchange rate applicable on the day of the transaction.
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Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in the foreign
currency are translated at the rate that was prevailing at the time
the fair value was determined.
In the consolidated financial statements expenses and income
associated with financial statements of subsidiaries prepared in
a foreign currency are translated on the basis of the year-average
exchange rate, whereas assets and liabilities are translated on
the basis of the closing rate. Exchange differences arising from
the translation of equity as well as exchange differences arising
from the use of exchange rates in the income statement that differ from those used for the translation of items presented in the
statement of financial position are recognised in other reserves.
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are used for operational purposes
and are measured at cost less depreciation on a systematic
basis. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is performed on a straight-line basis in accordance with the pattern of
use of such items. To the extent that depreciable assets of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the respective components of these assets are depreciated separately.
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment attributable to a cash-generating unit are tested for impairment as soon as
there are indications that the carrying amount of the assets of this
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Items of
property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal.
Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposable proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item; these gains and losses are included in profit or loss
when the item is derecognised.
The residual values of assets as well as the useful lives and
depreciation methods are assessed at the end of each financial
year and are adjusted where necessary.
Non-current assets held for sale
SIMONA classifies a non-current asset (or disposal group) as held
for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction or a distribution to share-holders rather than
through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset (or disposal group) must be available for immediate sale/distribution in
its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sale/distribution of such assets (or disposal

groups) and its sale/distribution must be highly probable. Insofar
as they refer to the Group statement of financial position, the
disclosures made in the notes to the consolidated financial statements relate to assets not held for sale. SIMONA reports non-current assets held for sale (or disposal groups) separately in Note
[23]. Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell, unless the items presented in the disposal group do
not fall under the provisions set out in IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
Leasing
Whether an agreement constitutes a lease is determined on the
basis of the substance of the transaction detailed in the agreement at the time the agreement is concluded. This requires an
assessment as to whether the fulfilment of the contractual agreement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or specific
assets and whether the agreement grants the right to use the
asset/assets even if this right is not specifically defined in the
agreement.
Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset, are recognised as assets in the statement of financial position at the commencement of the lease term. As at 31 December 2017, no
finance leases existed within the Group.
Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised in the
income statement as an expense on a straight-line basis and are
presented as other expense.
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset, which is defined
as an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale, form part of the cost of that
asset and are capitalised accordingly. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. No borrowing costs have been capitalised by the Group, as it does not possess qualifying assets.
Intangible assets
Acquired and internally generated intangible assets are capitalised in accordance with IAS 38 if it is probable that the intangible
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asset will generate future economic benefits and the costs of the
intangible asset can be reliably measured. They are measured at
cost of purchase or conversion. Intangible assets with a finite
useful life are amortised on the basis of the length of that useful
life. Amortisation of intangible assets, with the exception of capitalised development costs, is performed over a useful life of
between three and ten years.
Research and development costs
The research and development activities conducted by SIMONA
AG are directed principally at the optimisation of production and
manufacturing processes (advancement within the area of process engineering), at changes and improvements to formulas,
some of which have been in existence for an extensive period of
time, or at fundamental improvements for the purpose of meeting
specified quality and inspection requirements, including new testing procedures and new areas of application. Generally, these
activities do not involve the development of an entirely new product that would sever the link with existing formulas and manufacturing processes.
To the extent that research and development activities provide
the basis for a product that is technically feasible and from which
the Group can generate future economic benefits, the period
attributable to general research activities constitutes the major
part thereof. The scale of development expenses arising after the
product has been made marketable is negligible. In consideration
of the principle of materiality the intangible asset is not capitalised in such cases. This approach does not adversely affect the
true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs as regards financial performance, financial position and cash flows.
In addition, SIMONA AG does not capitalise development costs to
the extent that costs (expenditure) cannot be reliably allocated to
development projects. The costs are recognised as expense in
the period in which they are incurred.
There were no development projects resulting in the capitalisation
of intangible assets in the financial year under review or the previous financial year.
Impairment of assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If such indications are
present or an annual impairment test of an asset is required, the
Group makes an estimate of the recoverable amount. The recov-
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erable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. If the
recoverable amount of an asset, or of all assets of a cash-generating unit, is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or the cash-generating unit shall be reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.
Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group determines at the end of each reporting period whether
there are observable indications that a non-financial asset or
group of non-financial assets is impaired. If such indications are
present or if an annual impairment test of an asset or a group of
assets is required, the Group makes an estimate of the recoverable amount of each asset or of the group of assets. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss within the expense
category that corresponds to the function of the impaired asset.
For the purpose of determining the value in use, the future expected cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. The Group
bases its impairment tests on detailed budget and forecasting
calculations that are prepared separately for each of the Group’s
cash-generating units to which individual assets are assigned.
Such budget and forecasting calculations generally cover a period
of four years. As regards periods beyond this time frame, longterm growth rates are determined and applied to the projection of
future cash flows subsequent to the fourth year.
Investments and other financial assets
Financial assets within the meaning of IAS 39 are classified either
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, as loans
and receivables, as held-to-maturity investments or as available-for-sale financial assets. On initial recognition the financial
assets are measured at fair value. Additionally, in the case of
financial assets other than those classified as at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset are accounted for accordingly. The designation of financial assets to the respective measurement categories occurs upon initial recognition. To the extent that they are
permitted and necessary, reclassifications are performed at the
end of the financial year. No reclassifications have been performed to date.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are accounted for at the date of settlement. A regular way purchase or sale is
a purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the asset within the time frame established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.
The group of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
comprises financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if it is acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term. Derivatives, including
embedded derivatives accounted for separately, are also classified as held for trading, with the exception of those derivatives
that are designated and effective hedging instruments. Gains and
losses on financial assets held for trading are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group has not made use of the option to designate
financial assets or liabilities as “measured at fair value through
profit or loss”.

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not
classified within one of the three above-mentioned categories.
After initial recognition available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised directly in equity. If
an available-for-sale financial asset is derecognised or impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in profit or loss. The fair value of financial instruments
traded within organised and active markets is determined on the
basis of the market price quoted at the end of the reporting
period. The fair value of financial instruments for which no active
market exists is determined on the basis of valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if available,
reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and other
valuation models.

Derivatives embedded within a host contract are recognised separately at their fair value if their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the
host contracts are not held for trading purposes or are not designated as “at fair value through profit or loss”. These embedded
derivatives are measured at their fair value; changes to the fair
value are recognised in profit or loss. A reassessment is performed only upon amendments to the contractual terms and
conditions if this leads to a significant change to the cash flows
that would otherwise have resulted from the contract.

Held-to-maturity investments as well as loans and receivables are
measured at amortised cost. The calculation includes all fees and
points paid or received between parties to the contract that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs,
and all other premiums or discounts, minus any reduction for
impairments.

Non-derivative financial assets, quoted in an active market, with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that an entity
has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity investments. After initial recognition
held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the financial asset is derecognised or
impaired, and through the amortisation process.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group determines at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. If there is objective evidence
that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate, i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. However, the new

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial recognition loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
impairments where applicable. Gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired, and through the amortisation process.

A financial asset (or a part of a financial asset or a part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire.
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carrying amount must not exceed the amortised cost at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

to be accounted for accordingly and deducted from the share of
annual profit. To avoid double recognition, dividends received are
to be deducted from the carrying amount.

If in the case of trade receivables there is objective evidence that
not all due amounts will be received in accordance with the
agreed invoicing terms and conditions (e.g. likelihood of an insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the obligor), the carrying amount is reduced through use of an allowance account.
Receivables are derecognised when they are considered to be
uncollectible.

If there are circumstances indicating that the investment may be
impaired, an impairment test is to be conducted in respect of this
investment. No separate review of prorata goodwill is conducted
as part of this process. The assessment applies to the total carrying amount of the investment.

As regards available-for-sale financial assets, the Group determines at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. When determining the impairment of debt
instruments classified as available for sale, the same criteria are
used as those applied to financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The amount recognised for impairments, however, is the
cumulative loss determined as the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair value less any impairment losses of
this instrument recognised in profit or loss on an earlier occasion.
Investments accounted for using the equity method
Associates are accounted for using the equity method, an associate being an entity over which the investor has significant influence. On initial recognition the investment in an associate is recognised at cost. On initial recognition any differences between the
cost of the investment and the entity’s share of equity has to be
determined. This then has to be analysed as to whether it is attributable to hidden reserves or liabilities. Any excess, i.e. positive
difference, remaining after the allocation of hidden reserves and
assets is to be treated as goodwill and presented in the carrying
amount of the investment. Any negative difference is accounted
for in profit and loss by increasing the assigned value of the
investment.
Based on the cost of purchase, the carrying amount of the investment is increased or decreased in the subsequent periods by the
share of annual profit. Further adjustments to the carrying
amount of the investment are required if the equity of the investee
has changed due to circumstances accounted for in the other
components of profit/loss.
As part of subsequent measurement, write-downs relating to hidden reserves realised in the context of initial measurement have
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Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of purchase or conversion cost
and net realisable value.
The inventories associated with consumables have been capitalised at average historical cost. As part of Group accounting, the
cost of raw materials is assigned mainly by using the weighted
average cost formula. Finished goods are measured at manufacturing cost (cost of conversion) according to item-by-item calculations based on current operational accounting; in addition to the
directly related cost of direct material and units of production, this
item also includes special production costs as well as production
and material overheads, including depreciation. Financing costs
are not accounted for in the cost of conversion. All identifiable
risks associated with inventories, particularly relating to holding
periods in excess of average duration, diminished usability and
net realisable value, are recognised by an appropriate write-down.
The net realisable value is the estimated selling price achievable
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
incurred until completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents recognised in the statement of financial position comprise cash on hand, bank balances and shortterm deposits with original maturities of less than three months.
As regards the Group statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise the aforementioned cash items in addition
to overdrafts used by the Group and securities that are readily
convertible to cash.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities within the meaning of IAS 39 are classified
either as financial liabilities measured at fair value or as loans.

The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities
upon initial recognition. All financial liabilities are measured at fair
value upon initial recognition. The Group’s financial liabilities comprise trade payables, other financial liabilities, bank overdrafts,
loans and derivative financial instruments.
Interest-bearing borrowings
On initial recognition, loans are measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, having deducted the transaction costs
relating to the origination of the loan. After initial recognition interest-bearing borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. A financial liability is derecognised
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or when it expires.
Other provisions
Other provisions are recognised when an obligation exists towards
a third party, settlement of this obligation is probable and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the required provision.
Other provisions are measured at aggregate costs. Long-term provisions with more than one year to maturity are recognised at their
discounted settlement value as at the end of the reporting period.
Pensions
The Group has direct pension plans as well as one indirect pension plan. The indirect pension plan is serviced by SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH, which manages the plan assets. The plan assets are
accounted for in the Group statement of financial position such
that the fair value of those assets of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH
and SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft
mbH that fulfil the requirements for plan assets are deducted
from the benefit obligation of the Group (funding company) when
measuring the pension provision to be recognised. The fair value
of the plan assets is based on information regarding the market
price; in the case of securities traded on public exchanges, it corresponds to the published purchase price. As the requirements
for plan assets specified in IAS 19.8 have been fulfilled, the
deduction of the plan assets from the obligation of the Group
does not give rise to an obligation to consolidate on the part of
SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH because their sole purpose is
to service the pension obligations.
Provisions for pensions are accounted for on the basis of the Projected Unit Credit Method (sometimes known as the accrued
benefit method pro-rated on service or as the benefit/years of

service method) (IAS 19, Projected Unit Credit Method). As part of
this process, besides pensions and benefits known as at the end
of the reporting period, expected future increases in salaries and
pensions are accounted for with sufficient reliability. The calculation is based on actuarial reports that take into account specific
biometric data.
In accordance with IAS 19, interest expenses and the expected
return on plan assets are replaced with a net interest amount. It
is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure
defined benefit obligations to the net defined benefit liability
(asset). The net interest from a net defined benefit liability (asset)
includes the interest expenses attributable to defined benefit
obligations and interest income from plan assets. The difference
between the interest income on plan assets and the return on
plan assets is included in the remeasurement of defined benefit
obligations in other comprehensive income for the Group. In
accordance with IAS 19, the return on plan assets is calculated on
the basis of the discount rate.
The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net
total of the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the
fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be
settled directly.
Government grants
A government grant is not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the entity will comply with the conditions attaching
to it, and that the grant will be received. Grants related to income
are presented as part of profit or loss under the heading of “other
income” and are recognised on a systematic basis over the periods
in which the entity recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with a transaction will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Additionally, the following conditions must be satisfied for the recognition of revenue.
a) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the Group has transferred to the
buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods.
b) Interest
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method when the interest arises.
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Taxes
a) Current tax assets and current tax liabilities
Current tax liabilities and current tax assets for current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid
to or recovered from the taxation authorities, using the tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. Management regularly assesses individual tax issues as to whether there is any
room for interpretation on the basis of applicable tax regulations. Where required, tax liabilities are recognised.
b) Deferred taxes
Applying the liability method, deferred taxes are recognised for
all temporary differences between the carrying amount of an
asset or liability in the statement of financial position and its tax
base as well as in connection with consolidation procedures.
Additionally, a deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred taxes are recognised for all taxable and deductible
temporary differences, with the exception of:
 Deferred tax liabilities from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither profit nor taxable profit/tax loss.
 Deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries if the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and if they relate to the
income taxes of the same taxable entity, imposed by the same
taxation authority.
c) Value added tax
Sales revenues, expenses and assets are recognised after
deduction of value added tax.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedging instruments
Derivative financial instruments are used solely for hedging purposes in order to mitigate currency and interest rate risks arising
from operating business. Under IAS 39, all derivative financial
instruments, such as interest rate, currency and foreign exchange
forward contracts as well as currency options, are to be carried at
fair value, irrespective of the purpose such transactions have
been entered into by the entity.
The derivative financial instruments do not fulfil the restrictive
requirements of IAS 39 applying to the recognition of hedging
relationships. Therefore, gains and losses arising from a change
in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
The fair value of derivative financial instruments is calculated on
the basis of market data and generally accepted valuation methodologies. The market changes associated with derivative financial instruments are reported in net finance cost/income.

[6] SEGMENT REPORTING
For company management purposes, the Group is organised
according to geographic regions and has the three following reportable operating segments:
 Europe
 Americas
 Asia and Pacific
As in the previous year, the segments have been allocated on the
basis of the region in which the revenue-generating business unit
has its registered office.
All three segments generate their revenues mainly through the sale
of semi-finished plastics and pipes, as well as fittings and finished
parts. The segment categorised as “Europe” encompasses the
production and sale of semi-finished and finished thermoplastics,
profiles, pipes and fittings. The segment categorised as “Americas”
mainly covers the production and sale of extruded thermoplastic
sheets, the emphasis being on aircraft interiors. The segment categorised as “Asia and Pacific” includes the production and sale of
semi-finished thermoplastics.
Management assesses earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) of
these segments for the purpose of making decisions as to the dis-

tribution of resources and determining the profitability of the business units. Segment profitability is determined on the basis of
operating results from operating activities before the effects of
financing activities and excluding income tax effects.

unaffiliated third parties (regular way transaction). External sales
revenue relates to the registered office of the revenue-generating
business unit. Capital expenditure relates to additions to intangible
assets as well as property, plant and equipment. Segment assets
comprise assets that contribute to the achievement of operating
profit. Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets relate
to both intangible assets and property, plant and equipment.

As a matter of course, segment information is based on the same
principles of presentation and the same accounting policies as
those applied to the consolidated financial statements. Receiv
ables, liabilities, revenues and expenses as well as profit/loss
between the individual segments are eliminated as part of reconciliation. Internal transfer pricing between the business segments
is determined on the basis of competitive market prices charged to

The following table includes information relating to segment revenues, income and expenses as well as segment results. The differences in respect of the consolidated financial statements are presented in the reconciliation.

SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE 2017 FINANCIAL YEAR
Europe
in € ’000
Revenues from external
customers
Revenues from other
segments
Segment revenues

Other income
Cost of materials
Staff costs
Depreciation, amortisation and write-downs

Americas

Asia and Pacific

2017

2016

2017

2016

2017

269,212

257,269

94,719

90,077

30,214

9,706

6,834

23

21

0

278,918 264,103

94,742

90,098

30,214

7,307

442

1,188

2,346

162,757 148,232

42,989

41,627

23,320

17,121

15,095

3,069

3,634
54,640

54,899

Total

2016

2016

2017

19,329 394,145 366,675

0

0

2017

Reconciliation
2016

2017

2016

0 394,145 366,675

6,855

–9,729

–6,855

19,329 403,874 373,530

–9,729

–6,855 394,145 366,675

1,025

9,729

Group

6,422

9,520

–989

13,718 229,066 203,577

–9,729

2,404

74,830

72,398

–920

0

0

5,433

8,600

–6,855 219,337

196,722

74,830

72,398

9,708

8,991

3,299

3,283

1,403

1,426

14,410

13,700

14,410

13,700

Other expenses1

49,123

42,467

17,219

16,281

6,368

4,365

72,710

63,113

–980

–945

71,730

62,168

Earnings before interest
and taxes (EBIT)

11,396

17,185

15,673

14,384

–467

–1,193

26,602

30,376

–132

–221

26,470

30,155

1,696

16,091

15,754

16,091

15,754

Segment capital
expenditure
Non-current assets
1

9,098

9,981

5,921

4,077

1,072

78,404

79,740

55,177

59,667

10,242

11,160 143,823 150,567

143,823 150,567

 ther expenses within the segment covering the Americas include a loss of €313 thousand (previous year: impairment of €461 thousand)
O
relating to assets held for sale; please refer to Note [23].
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GERMANY
in € ’000

2017

2016

Domestic revenue

101,185

101,653

Non-current assets

66,118

66,882

SEGMENT INFORMATION BY PRODUCT AREA
in € ’000
Semi-finished and finished parts
Pipes and fittings
Revenues from external customers

2017

2016

313,843

289,786

80,302

76,889

394,145

366,675

[7] SALES REVENUE
Sales revenue is attributable solely to the sale of semi-finished
plastics, pipes and fittings as well as finished parts. The classification of sales revenue by region and product area is outlined in
segment reporting – Note [6].

[8] OTHER INCOME
Other income includes the following items:
in € ’000

2017

Income from currency translation

2016

2,231

3,750

Reversal of provisions/deferrals/accruals

802

1,278

Income from disposal of assets

114

1,135

Income from services and commissions

361

211

Income from rental and lease
Miscellaneous other income

30

61

1,895

2,165

5,433

8,600

[9] COST OF MATERIALS
The cost of materials includes the following items:
in € ’000
Cost of raw materials, consumables
and supplies
Cost of purchased services
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2017

2016

217,525

195,084

1,812

1,638

219,337

196,722

[10] STAFF COSTS
Staff costs include the following items:
in € ’000
Wages and salaries
of which from long-term employee benefits
Expenses relating to social security
Expenses relating to old-age provision
and pensions

2017

2016

58,314

56,954

641

777

11,648

11,105

4,868

4,339

74,830

72,398

Staff costs include employment termination indemnities totalling
€95 thousand (previous year: €219 thousand). Expenses relating
to social security include defined contribution plans governed by
German legislation (statutory pension insurance) totalling €4,117
thousand (previous year: €3,976 thousand). As regards the internal multifinanced defined contribution plan, the total expense for
SIMONA AG was €27 thousand (previous year: €29 thousand) in
the period under review.

[11] R ESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES
Research and development expenses amounted to €4,451 thousand in the period under review (previous year: €3,950 thousand).
Expenses are mainly comprised of staff costs, material costs and
depreciation of property, plant and equipment. No development
costs were capitalised in the financial year under review.

[13] NET FINANCE INCOME/COST
in € ’000
Finance income
of which from loans and receivables
of which others

2016

152

212

133

163

19

49

in € ’000

2017

2016

Finance costs

2,194

2,374

of which interest expenses from termination
benefits

1,840

2,078

of which loans and other financial liabilities

354

296

These items relate solely to interest income and interest expenses.

[14] INCOME TAXES

GROUP INCOME STATEMENT

2017

2016

Outward freight

16,306

14,893

in € ’000

Other selling expenses

11,245

10,398

Current tax

Maintenance expenses

11,719

11,039

Current tax expense

Other administrative expenses

9,096

8,199

Expenses for packaging material

8,413

7,640

Other operating costs

2,275

2,186

Rental and lease expenses

1,630

1,789

428

319

Expenses from foreign currency translation

8,014

2,452

Remaining other expenses

2,604

3,253

71,730

62,168

Losses from disposal of assets

2017

The principal elements of income tax expense for the 2017 and
2016 financial years are as follows:

[12] OTHER EXPENSES
in € ’000

The rental and lease expenses are mainly attributable to rental
agreements for dispatch warehouses and the property for the
production facility Archbald in the United States. The rental agreements have various contractual maturities (3 to 30 years); some
of the rental agreements include options for the extension of
rental periods. All rental and lease agreements are structured as
operating leases within the meaning of IAS 17. As at 31 December
2017, no finance leases existed within the Group.

Adjustments of current tax attributable to previous periods

2017

2016

8,189

6,845

–111

–32

–1,287

–995

322

2,799

7,113

8,617

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Change in loss carry forwards and tax credits
recognised
Income tax expense reported in
the Group income statement
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Reconciliation between income tax expense and the product of
profit for the year carried in the statement of financial position
and the tax rate applicable to the Group for the 2017 and 2016
financial years is as follows:
in € ’000

2017

2016

24,618

28,152

Income tax expense at German tax rate of
29.48% (previous year: 29.48%)

7,257

8,299

Adjustments of current tax attributable to previous periods

–111

–32

449

394

Profit before taxes

Unrecognised deferred tax assets relating to
tax losses
Loss carryforwards used in connection with
deferred tax assets not recognised in previous
year

–795

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

270

104

Tax rate differences

696

601

Changes to tax rate

–1,421

0

110

23

–825

–595

Tax effects of permanent differences

404

0

Adjustments to carrying amount for loss carryforwards and tax credits

111

366

Other tax-free income

Other tax effects not attributable to the period
Other
Income tax expense at effective tax rate of
28.9 % (previous year 30.6 %)
Income tax expense reported in
the Group income statement

658

0

–314

252

in € ’000

31/12/
2017

31/12/
2016

1,118

1,512

0

–492

Deferred tax liabilities
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment

8,075

7,987

Inventories

3,480

2,926

Receivables and other assets

1,085

2,598

Other provisions and liabilities

121

96

92

2

13,971

14,629

15,927

17,767

511

265

60

41

Other items
Deferred tax assets

7,113
7,113

8,617
8,617

Changes to the tax rates of the consolidated subsidiaries are as
follows: The gradual reduction in the corporation tax rate in
France to a range from 15 to 33 per cent with effect from 2018
was approved on 27 November 2017. Effective from 2019 to
2022, the corporation tax rate is to be lowered in each case to
between 15 and 25 per cent. In Italy, on 28 December 2015 the
decision was made in the context of Law No. 208, to reduce the
corporation tax rate from 27.5 to 24 per cent effective from 1
January 2017. In the United Kingdom, under the Finance Act 2016
the UK’s corporation tax rate will be reduced gradually to 19 per
cent (as from 1 April 2017) and 17 per cent (as from 1 April 2020).
Under the US tax reform enacted in the United States effective
from 1 January 2018, the corporate tax rate will be reduced to 21
per cent.
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Deferred tax
At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities were as follows:
GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

–171

Tax-free dividend income

At 31 December 2017, the credit for the reduction of corporation
tax, which results from the provisions set out in Section 37 and
38 KStG, was €0 thousand (previous year: €739 thousand). The
payout of the final instalment of the corporation tax credit
occurred in 2017. To the extent that these payments do not fall
due within one year, the items are accounted for in the statement
of financial position as non-current assets. Payments due within
one year are carried as current assets.

Provisions for pensions
Other provisions and liabilities
Inventories
Receivables and other assets

164

9

Loss carryforwards and tax credits

207

528

Property, plant and equipment

536

154

Other items

446

356

17,851

19,120

Set-off

–7,648

–11,479

Deferred tax assets

10,203

7,641

Deferred tax liabilities

–6,323

–3,150

3,880

4,491

Net balance sheet position

The net balance sheet position of deferred taxes changed as
follows:

The following table presents the amounts relevant to the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

in € ’000

2017

2016

in € ’000 or units of 1,000

Beginning of the period 1 January

4,491

4,192

966

–1,804

Profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent company

Income tax expense (previous year: income)
Amount recognised directly in equity
(total comprehensive income)
Currency translation
End of period 31 December

–1,900

2,244

323

–141

3,880

4,491

At the end of the reporting period, loss carryforwards amounted to
€5,843 thousand (previous year: €6,098 thousand). Deferred tax
assets of €1,970 thousand (previous year: €1,446 thousand) were
recognised for €414 thousand (previous year: €492 thousand) of
the loss carryforwards mentioned above. Beyond this, no other
deferred tax assets were recognised, as the losses may not be
used for the purpose of set-off with the taxable profit of other
Group companies. Furthermore, the loss carryforwards are attributable to subsidiaries that have incurred losses over a period of
several years, and at present there is no reasonably reliable indication that the earnings situation of these entities will improve so
significantly in the short term that future taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.
Expiry date of tax loss carryforwards:
in € ’000

2017

2016

Between 3 and 20 years

1,271

3,343

Indefinite carryforward

0

0

1,271

3,343

Deferred tax assets of around €30 thousand (previous year: €28
thousand) are expected to be realised in the subsequent financial
year.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(without treasury shares) for the pupose of
calculating basic earnings per share
Dilutive effects
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(without treasury shares) for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share

2017

2016

17,446

19,486

600

600

0

0

600

600

Basic earnings per share (in euro)

29.08

32.48

Diluted earnings per share (in euro)

29.08

32.48

No transactions with ordinary shares occurred between the end
of the reporting period and the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

[16] PAID AND PROPOSED DIVIDENDS
During the financial year a dividend, attributable to the ordinary
shares of the parent company, in the amount of €12.00 (previous
year: €10.00) per share was declared and distributed. The total
payment made in the financial year under review amounted to
€7,200 thousand (previous year: €6,000 thousand).
As in the previous year, a dividend proposal of €12.00 per share
will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.
The proposed total dividend was not recognised as a liability at
the end of the reporting period. The corresponding payment
would total €7,200 thousand (previous year: €7,200 thousand).

[15] EARNINGS PER SHARE
For the calculation of basic earnings per share, the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent entity shares
is divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year. There were no dilutive effects in the
reporting period or in the prior-year period.
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SIMONA AMERICA
Inc./Laminations
Inc., USA
Other

[17] INTANGIBLE ASSETS
31 DECEMBER 2017
in € ’000

Patents
and
licences

Balance at 1 January 2017
(Cost of purchase/conversion,
taking into account accumulated amortisation and impairments)

Customer Goodwill
base

Total

1,386

4,550

27,941

Additions

810

0

0

810

Transfer

104

0

0

104

Disposals

–138

0

0

–138

Amortisation during the financial year

–627

–905

0

–1,532

98

–498

–3,337

–3,737

Effects of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates
Balance at 31 December
2017 (Taking into account
accumulated amortisation
and impairments)

3,147

24,604

Carrying amount

29,384

7,545

28,657

44,333

–6,745
1,386

–2,995

–716

–10,456

4,550

27,941

33,877

8,837

6,631

25,320

40,788

–7,204

–3,484

–716

–11,404

1,633

3,147

24,604

29,384

Balance at 31 December 2017
Cost of purchase or
conversion
Accumulated amortisation
Carrying amount

Goodwill was as follows::

Boltaron Inc., USA
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Boltaron Inc., USA
SIMONA AMERICA Inc./
Laminations Inc., USA
Total

Boltaron Inc., USA

Total

Accumulated amortisation

in € ’000

31/12/2017

SIMONA AMERICA Inc./
Laminations Inc., USA
8,131

31/12/
2016

25,352

Additions/
disposals
0

Amort./
writedown
0

31/12/
Change
in foreign- 2017
exchange
rate
–3,069

0

–268

0

0

0

2,178
143

27,941

0

0

–3,337

24,604

33,877

Balance at 1 January 2017
Cost of purchase or
conversion

0

143

In accordance with the method applied in the previous year, patents and licences are amortised systematically over their economic life of three to five years by using the straight-line method;
customer relationships are amortised over an economic life of five
to ten years by using the straight-line method. The residual book
value of customer relationships resulting from acquisitions is as
follows:

31/12/2016
1,633

2,446

22,283

Residual book value
in € ’000

Remaining
period of amortisation

2,755

3 years

392

6 years

3,147

Residual book value
in € ’000

Remaining
period of amortisation

4,104

4 years

446

7 years

4,550

Impairment of goodwill
The Group conducts the mandatory annual impairment test for
significant goodwill in the fourth quarter of the financial year,
applying the method outlined in Note [5] “Impairment of Assets”.
As part of the impairment test conducted in the financial year
under review in respect of the cash-generating units (CGU), the
recoverable amounts on the basis of the value in use were estimated to be higher than the carrying amounts. No impairment
losses were required as part of the goodwill impairment test conducted for the financial year under review.
The fundamental assumptions made in connection with the
impairment test are based primarily on projected market growth
rates as well as Group estimates/assessments provided by the
respective sales and purchasing departments. The assumptions
in the financial year under review are based on the parameters

presented in the following table. Projections relating to cash flows
are based on a period of 4 years, subsequently transitioning into
perpetuity.
Boltaron Inc.
In the context of impairment testing of Boltaron Inc., the following
parameters were applicable: four-year forecasting period, revenue
growth, EBITDA margin and discount rate at the end of the forecasting period.
An increase or decrease in the discount rate by plus 0.5 per cent
or minus 0.5 per cent does not result in an impairment of goodwill.
No reduction in the carrying amount would be required even in the
event of a significant and unexpected deterioration in the assumptions made.
31/12/
2017

31/12/
2016

%

2.9 – 10.3

1.5 – 2.0

%

8.1 – 8.2

9.0 – 9.5

years

4

4

SIMONA AMERICA Inc./
Laminations Inc.
Revenue growth forecasting period
EBITDA margin forecasting period
Duration forecasting period
Revenue growth at end of
forecasting period

%

1.8

1.5

EBITDA margin at end of
forecasting period

%

7.5

9.4

Discount rate at end of
forecasting period

%

8.8

7.6

Carrying amount goodwill

€’000

2,178

2,446

Recoverable amount
(value in use of the CGU)

€’000

41,719

43,233

Required reduction in carrying amount €’000

—

—

31 DECEMBER 2016
in € ’000

Balance at 1 January 2016
(Cost of purchase/conversion,
taking into account accumulated amortisation and impairments)

Patents
and
licences

Customer Goodwill
base

Total

1,316

5,549

27,065

33,930

Additions

302

0

0

302

Transfer

43

0

0

43

Amortisation during the
financial year

–441

–934

0

–1,375

Transfer amortisation

200

–200

0

0

Effects of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates

–34

135

876

977

1,386

4,550

27,941

33,877

43,440

Balance at 31 December
2016 (Cost of purchase/conversion, taking into account
accumulated amortisation and
impairments)
Balance at 1 January 2016
Cost of purchase or conversion
Accumulated amortisation
Carrying amount

8,354

7,305

27,781

–7,038

–1,756

–716

–9,510

1,316

5,549

27,065

33,930

Balance at 31 December 2016
Cost of purchase or conversion
Accumulated amortisation
Carrying amount

8,131

7,545

28,657

44,333

–6,745

–2,995

–716

–10,456

1,386

4,550

27,941

33,877

The value in use of the CGU SIMONA AMERICA Inc./Laminations
Inc. would correspond to the carrying amounts if the following key
assumptions were to be changed separately:

Revenue growth forecasting
period
EBITDA margin forecasting
period

from

to

%

2.9 – 10.3

1.3 – 1.8

%

8.1 – 8.2

1.6 – 2.5
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Prepayments (€3,461 thousand) and assets under construction

[18] PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(€4,290 thousand) relate primarily to investments to expand operations at the site in Ringsheim, Germany, as well as investment

31 DECEMBER 2017
in € ’000

Balance at 1 January
2017 (Cost of purchase/
conversion, taking into
account accumulated
amortisation and
impairments)
Additions
Transfer
Disposals
Depreciation/
amortisation during
the financial year
Transfer depreciation/
amortisation
Effects of changes
in foreign currency
exchange rates
Balance at
31 December 2017
(Cost of purchase/
conversion, taking into
account accumulated
amortisation and
impairments)

Land and
buildings

Plant and
equipment

Prepayments
and assets
under
construction

Total

31. DECEMBER 2016
in € ’000

41,022

64,048

11,620

116,690

146

4,662

10,473

15,281

3,812

9,458

–13,374

–14

–318

–2,049

–10,829

0

–12,878

–3

0

0

–3

–104
–332

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and
impairments
Carrying amount

–1,466

–1,781

–968

–4,215

41,448

65,240

7,751

114,439

79,055

240,669

11,620

–176,621

0

–214,654

41,022

64,048

11,620

116,690

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and
impairments
Carrying amount
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Total

62,788

12,345

113,833

1,846

5,693

7,912

15,451

Transfer

2,403

6,222

–8,668

–43

–83

83

0

0

–9

–561

0

–570

–2,042

–10,283

0

–12,325

207

106

31

344

41,022

64,048

11,620

116,690

75,652

239,860

12,345

327,857

–36,952

–177,072

0

–214,024

38,700

62,788

12,345

113,833

79,055

240,669

11,620

331,344

Reclassification to disposal group classified
as held for sale
Depreciation/
amortisation during
the financial year

Balance at
31 December 2016
(Cost of purchase/
conversion, taking into
account accumulated
amortisation and
impairments)
Balance at
1 January 2016
Cost of purchase or
conversion

Carrying amount
7,751

Prepayments
and assets
under
construction

38,700

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and
impairments
247,491

Plant and
equipment

331,344

–38,033

81,252

Land and
buildings

Additions

Effects of changes
in foreign currency
exchange rates

Balance at
31 December 2017
Cost of purchase or
conversion

Balance at 1 January
2016 (Cost of purchase/
conversion, taking into
account accumulated
amortisation and
impairments)

Disposals

Balance at
1 January 2017
Cost of purchase or
conversion

projects at the plants in the United States and Jiangmen, China.

336,494
Balance at
31 December 2016

–39,804

–182,251

0

–222,055

41,448

65,240

7,751

114,439

Cost of purchase or
conversion

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and
impairments
Carrying amount

[21] TRADE RECEIVABLES
–38,033

–176,621

0

–214,654

41,022

64,048

11,620

116,690

The useful life of property, plant and equipment was estimated as
follows:
Buildings

20 – 40 years

Plant and equipment

5 – 20 years

[19] INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

in € ’000

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

Carrying amount

56,461

52,186

Neither impaired nor past due at the end
of the reporting period

45,177

40,623

Past due and not impaired within the
following time ranges
up to 30 days

7,618

6,130

between 31 and 60 days

1,677

1,680

between 61 and 90 days

654

616

between 91 and 120 days

294

535

1,041

2,149

More than 120 days

This item includes the entity accounted for as an associate that
sells products of the US subsidiaries in the United States on a
commission/agency basis in its capacity as a sales representative.
The investment amount recognised is €483 thousand (previous
year: €293 thousand). The profit from investments accounted for
using the equity method was €190 thousand (previous year: €159
thousand).
ASSOCIATES
Ownership interest in %
CARTIERWILSON, LLC, Marietta, USA

Trade receivables are not interest-bearing and are generally due
within 30 to 90 days.

25.0

As regards the trade receivables that were neither impaired nor
past due, there were no indications at the end of the reporting
period that customers will fail to meet their payment obligations.
The changes to valuation allowances for trade receivables are
outlined below:
in € ’000
Balance of specific allowances
at 1 January
Exchange differences

in € ’000
Raw material and consumables used
Work in progress
Finished goods and merchandise
Prepayment for inventories

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

28,641

26,161

657

847

48,077

41,390

581

805

77,956

69,203

The amount relating to inventory impairments recognised in cost
of material rose by €2,767 thousand year on year to €6,950 thousand in the period under review; of this amount, write-downs relating to the net realisable value of finished goods totalled €203
thousand (previous year: €273 thousand).

31/12/2016

2,229

1,961

–36

+111

+342

+288

Utilised

–77

–47

Reversed

–32

–84

2,426

2,229

Allocated

[20] INVENTORIES

31/12/2017

Balance of specific allowances
at 31 December

The following table includes expenses attributable to the derecognition of trade receivables as well as income from amounts
received in connection with derecognised trade receivables.
Expenses attributable to the derecognition of trade receivables
are reported as other expenses, while income attributable to
amounts received in connection with derecognised trade receiv
ablesis accounted for as other income.
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in € ’000
Expenses attributable to the
derecognition of trade receivables
Income attributable to amounts received
in connection with derecognised trade
receivables

2017

2016

105

235

28

57

are known apart from the local statutory restrictions applicable to
the subsidiaries in China. At the end of the reporting period cash
attributable to the Chinese entities amounted to €1,304 thousand
(previous year: €1,895 thousand).
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had undrawn borrowing facilities of €18,643 thousand (previous year: €18,873 thousand).

[22] O THER ASSETS AND TAX ASSETS
[25] EQUITY
in € ’000

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

1,722

546

Receivables from value-added tax
Prepayments

238

51

Advance payments for future periods

755

1,001

Receivables from energy tax

697

691

Other receivables

792

341

4,204

2,630

At the end of the reporting period, other assets were neither
impaired nor past due.

Changes in equity are presented in a separate Group statement of
changes in equity.
Issued capital
As at 31 December 2017, the share capital of SIMONA AG was
divided into 600,000 no-par-value shares. These shares are classified as ordinary bearer shares. Each no-par-value share has a
notional interest of €25.83 in the company’s share capital. The
ordinary shares have been issued and fully paid in.
in € ’000

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

Share capital

15,500

15,500

Issued capital

15,500

15,500

Tax assets amount to €1,259 thousand (previous year: €768
thousand) and are attributable primarily to the Americas segment. The final instalment of the corporation tax credit pursuant
to SEStEG was paid out in the financial year under review.

[23] ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Capital reserve

At the end of the reporting period no assets held for sale were
recognised by the Group (previous year: €3,785 thousand). In
October 2017 the production site in Hazleton (segment encompassing the Americas) was sold. The loss on disposal was €313
thousand and has been recognised in profit and loss as other
expenses.

in € ’000

As was the case in the previous financial year, SIMONA AG has no
treasury shares.

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

Share premium from the issuance
of stock

15,274

15,274

Capital reserve

15,274

15,274

Capital reserve include the share premium from the issuance of
SIMONA AG stock. There was no increase in capital reserves in
the period under review.

[24] C ASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Other reserves
in € ’000
Bank balances and cash on hand

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

68,022

74,759

in € ’000

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

74,759

Currency translation effects

5,677

12,354

Other reserves

5,677

12,354

68,022

Bank balances bear interest on the basis of floating interest rates
applicable to deposits payable on demand. No restraints on use
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Other reserves include currency translation effects attributable to

exchange differences occurring upon translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries as well as the foreign exchange
effects (accounted for in equity) of translating net investments in
foreign subsidiaries.
in € ’000

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

Exchange differences on translating
financial statements of subsidiaries

–6,124

1,333

Exchange differences on translating
net investments

–1,358

–435

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

–7,482

898

Deferred taxes from currency
translation
Exchange differences

804

128

–6,678

1,026

Current financial liabilities
Pro-rata bank loan of €26,229
thousand (nominal amount),
(principal repayments due up
to 31/12/2018)

01/2018–
12/2018

3,425

3,444

3,425

3,444

As regards loans from banks, fixed interest rates of between 1.8
per cent and 2.1 per cent have been agreed in respect of KfW
funds. Interest is computed either on the basis of the nominal
amount of the loan or the remaining amount of the loan. As in the
previous financial year, the overdraft facility of SIMONA AG, with
its floating interest rate calculated on the basis of EONIA (euro
overnight index average), was not utilized.
Other financial liabilities comprise the following items:

Non-controlling interests
This item relates solely to non-controlling interests in DEHOPLAST
POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Kwidzyn, Poland. The non-controlling interests
correspond to the applicable voting rights and amount to 49 per
cent. There are no restraints in place as regards the right of
SIMONA AG to access or use assets of this subsidiary and to meet
contractual obligations. Revenue generated by this entity amounted to €2,382 thousand in the period under review (previous year:
€2,137 thousand). The total payment made in the financial year
under review amounted to €41 thousand (previous year: €29
thousand). The company’s balance sheet total stands at €1,042
thousand and is mainly composed of current assets (€1,037 thousand) and current liabilities (€396 thousand).

in € ’000

Due date

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

Non-current other financial
liabilities
Other

231

58

231

58

0

2,174

1,764

1,184

1,764

3,358

Current other financial
liabilities
Liabilities due to purchase
price obligations
Accounts receivable with credit
balances

04/2017
Immediately

[26] F INANCIAL LIABILITIES

[27] PENSIONS

Financial liabilities are comprised of the following items:

The majority of employees within SIMONA AG are entitled to
post-employment benefits attributable to pension plan agreements. The aforementioned plans are structured as final salary
pension plans in the case of both personnel employed on the
basis of collective wage agreements and managerial staff, including members and former members of the Management Board.
These relate to benefits in respect of retirement, disability and
surviving dependants.

in € ’000

Due date

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

Non-current
financial liabilities
Pro-rata bank loan of €26,229
thousand (nominal amount),
(principal repayments due after
31/12/2018)

2019 –
2024

18,705

22,111

18,705

22,111

In order to mitigate the risks associated with defined benefit plans,
particularly as regards longevity, inflation and salary increases,
SIMONA introduced multifinanced defined contribution plans for
employees joining the company on or after 1 January 2009.
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The underlying actuarial assessment was prepared on
12 January 2018.

jected unit credit method as well as the parameters mentioned:
Parameters

With the exception of payments to SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH, no
contributions are made to funds, cf. Note [28].
The following table includes a breakdown of the expense items
recognised in the Group income statement in connection with
retirement benefits as well as the amounts carried in the statement of financial position for the respective plans.
The changes in the liabilities of defined benefit obligations (DBO)
are as follows:
in € ’000
DBO at beginning of reporting period
Service cost
Interest cost
Remeasurement
Actuarial gains/losses due to changes in
financial assumptions
Actuarial gains/losses from changes in
the entitlement base

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

67,867

60,808

1,792

1,664

1,204

1,377

–3,816

5,642

0

6,004

–3,816

–362

Benefits paid

–1,623

–1,624

DBO at end of reporting period

65,424

67,867

of which non-current liability

63,829

66,157

1,595

1,710

of which current liability

The Group anticipates benefit payments of €1,595 thousand
(previous year: €1,710 thousand) in connection with defined
benefit pension plans for the 2018 financial year.
The assumptions made (unchanged from the previous year) for the
purpose of determining the pension obligations are as follows:
Parameters
Discount rate

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

1.80 %

1.80 %

Salary increase

2.50 %

2.50 %

Pension increase

1.87 %

1.87 %

Mortality (mortality tables published
by Prof. Dr. K. Heubeck)

2005 G

2005 G

A change of half a percentage point each in the abovementioned
basic assumptions used for the purpose of determining the DBO
as at 31 December 2017 would increase or decrease the DBO
as outlined below. This was determined on the basis of the pro-
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Discount rate

Change in DBO if parameters are changed by
half a percentage point as at 31/12/2017 in
€ ’000 (previous year)
Increase

Decrease

–5,760 (–6,004)

6,638 (6,929)

Salary increase

1,319 (1,401)

–1,249 (–1,325)

Pension increase

4,692 (4,869)

–4,229 (–4,386)

The decline in mortality rates by 10% results in an increase in life
expectancy dependent on the individual ages of each participant.
The DBO as at 31 December 2017 would increase by €2,249
thousand (previous year: €2,374 thousand) following a reduction
in the mortality rate by 10% and would decrease by €–1,999
thousand (previous year: €–2,110 thousand) following a 10%
increase in the mortality rate.
The weighted average duration of the DBO attributable to defined
benefit pension plans of SIMONA AG is 18.8 years (previous year:
18.9 years).

[28] COMPANY WELFARE INSTITUTIONS
SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH is structured as a long-term employee
benefit fund within the meaning of IAS 19.8. Under the Articles of
Association, the entity operates solely for the purpose of ensuring
that former employees of SIMONA AG as well as their dependants
receive retirement benefits. The beneficiaries of pensions are
entitled to all the assets belonging to the entity as well as all
income derived from these assets while the entity is in existence
as well as in the case of liquidation or insolvency of the entity.
SIMONA AG has no access rights to assets held by SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH. In the event of liquidation of the entity, the entity’s
assets are to be allocated to the recipients of benefits or are to be
secured for the purpose of providing future benefits for said recipi
ents. Thus, even in the event that SIMONA AG becomes insolvent,
the creditors identified in connection with insolvency have no
rights in respect of the assets of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH.
The assets of SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der
Belegschaft mbH may be utilised solely for benefit-related pur
poses relating to SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH.

The agreed plans relating to SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH are structured as final salary pension plans in the case of both personnel
employed on the basis of collective wage agreements and managerial staff. The defined benefit plans are associated in particular
with risks in respect of longevity, inflation and salary increases.

A change of half a percentage point each in the above-mentioned basic assumptions used for the purpose of determining
the DBO as at 31 December 2017 would increase or decrease
the DBO as follows (cf. also Note [27]):
Parameters

Funding of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH is performed in observance
of tax regulations.

Change in DBO if parameters are changed by half a percentage point as at 31/12/2017 in € ‘000 (prev. year)
Increase

Discount rate
in € ’000
DBO at beginning of reporting period

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

76,512

66,854

Service cost

2,934

2,646

Interest cost

1,364

1,523

807

6,676

0

7,883

807

–1,207

Remeasurement
Actuarial gains/losses due to changes in
financial assumptions
Actuarial gains/losses from changes in
the entitlement base
Benefits paid

–1,305

–1,187

DBO at end of reporting period

80,312

76,512

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning
of the year

41,046

36,270

Returns on plan assets

727

821

6,098

5,142

Benefits paid

–1,305

–1,187

Fair value of plan assets at the end of
the year

46,566

41,046

–33,746

–35,466

Remeasurement

Deficit

The Group anticipates benefit payments of €1,468 thousand
(previous year: €1,364 thousand) in connection with indirect
defined benefit pension plans for the 2018 financial year.
As regards the basic assumptions for determining the pension
obligations, please refer to the details in Note [27].
A surplus relating to plan assets is not accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements of SIMONA AG, as SIMONA
AG has no control over these assets. In accordance with the
provisions set out in IAS 19.8, the plan assets are available to
be used only to pay or fund employee benefits.

Decrease

–8,143 (–7,883)

9,530 (9,245)

Salary increase

2,944 (2,916)

–2,714 (–2,683)

Pension increase

5,750 (5,486)

–5,215 (–4,974)

The decline in mortality rates by 10% results in an increase in life
expectancy dependent on the individual ages of each participant.
The DBO as at 31 December 2017 would increase by €2,922
thousand (previous year: €2,793 thousand) following a reduction
in the mortality rate by 10% and would decrease by €–2,606 thousand (previous year: €–2,492 thousand) following a 10% increase
in the mortality rate.
The composition of plan assets is presented below:
FAIR VALUE AT
in € ’000

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

Category of assets
32,940

26,460

Bonded loans (Schuldscheindarlehen)

Shares in SIMONA AG

2,962

2,999

Time deposits

2,673

2,598

Investment funds

6,795

7,583

Cash and cash equivalents
Total plan assets

1,196

1,406

46,566

41,046

The shares in SIMONA AG and the interests in investment funds
are quoted in an active market. A concentration of risk exists in
respect of SIMONA AG shares.
The weighted average duration of the DBO relating to defined
benefit pension plans of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH is 21.8 years
(previous year: 22.2 years).

The change in the deficit as at 31 December 2017 is attributable primarily to the remeasurement implemented due to the
increase in value of plan assets.
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The liability recognised in the statement of financial position with
regard to this pension plan changed as follows:

Exchange differences

0

26

0

26

Effect of time value of
money

15

16

0

31

in € ’000

Balance at
31 December 2016

1,093

3,117

58

4,268

Liability at beginning of reporting period

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

35,466

30,584

2,934

2,646

637

702

–5,291

1,534

0

7,883

807

–1,207

–6,098

–5,142

33,746

35,466

Service cost
Net interest expense
Remeasurement
Actuarial gains/losses due to changes in
financial assumptions
Actuarial gains/losses from changes in
the entitlement base
Remeasurement from plan assets
Liability at end of reporting period

[29] OTHER PROVISIONS
in € ’000

Balance at
1 January 2017

Guarantees/warranties

Personnelrelated
obligations

Other

Total

1,093

3,117

58

4,268

Allocated

107

1,245

313

1,665

Used

159

308

20

487

Reversed

0

1

2

3

Exchange differences

0

–62

–5

–67

Effect of time value of
money

14

0

0

14

1,055

3,991

344

5,390

Current provisions

242

1,343

31

1,616

Non-current provisions

813

2,648

313

3,774

1,055

3,991

344

5,390

Balance at
31 December 2017

Balance at
31 December 2017

in € ’000

Balance at
1 January 2016
Allocated
Used
Reversed
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Guarantees/warranties

Personnelrelated
obligations

Other

Total

1,252

3,423

9

4,684

37

311

61

409

211

530

0

741

0

129

12

141

Current provisions

294

1,211

58

1,563

Non-current provisions

799

1,906

0

2,705

1,093

3,117

58

4,268

Balance at
31 December 2016

Personnel-related provisions encompass obligations in connection with agreements regarding part-time employment of staff
approaching retirement and provisions relating to anniversaries.
Personnel-related provisions are measured on the basis of actuarial figures.
At the reporting date, obligations in connection with agreements
regarding part-time employment of staff approaching retirement
amounted to €0 thousand (previous year: €68 thousand). This
item is composed of obligations for performance-related arrears,
additional compensation and severance payments.
Provisions for guarantees are recognised in connection with warranties for products sold in preceding years. The calculation is
based on historical claims from guarantees and warranties. Guarantee-related provisions at SIMONA AG are recognised for ongoing, regularly occurring warranty cases as well as for individual
cases that occur on an irregular basis and are associated with the
risk of above-average claims.
As regards regularly occurring warranty cases, a provision is calculated on the basis of experience over what is adjudged to be a
probable average claim period of 5 years. For the purpose of
measuring the provision, the expenses actually incurred in connection with customer credits/refunds from warranty obligations
as well as the thus resulting direct costs of processing a complaint are analysed in detail. Within this context, the weighted
average warranty expense of the past 5 years is used for calculation purposes.
The portion of warranty provisions calculated in respect of individual cases occurring on an irregular basis is recognised only when
the utilisation of the provision is considered likely, a payment
relating thereto is deemed probable and a reliable estimate can
be made.

The portion of the warranty provision whose utilisation is not due
within one year after the reporting date is discounted.

[30] OTHER LIABILITIES
Other liabilities comprise the following items:
in € ’000

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

Payables to workforce

7,337

9,158

Payables relating to social security

1,351

1,312

Liabilities relating to credit notes and
commissions

1,595

1,034

Tax payables

1,175

864

Other

3,146

2,103

14,604

14,471

[31] STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
The statement of cash flows presents changes to cash and cash
equivalents during the financial year by outlining cash inflows and
outflows. In accordance with IAS 7, the statement of cash flows
includes information relating to cash flows from operating activities, investing activities and financing activities.
As at 31 December, total cash and cash equivalents were as
follows:
in € ’000
Cash and cash equivalents

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

68,022

74,759

68,022

74,759

The effects of changes to cash and cash equivalents attributable
to exchange rates were €–1,139 thousand (previous year: €–53
thousand) at Group level.
Cash flows from investing and financing activities are accounted for
directly, i. e. on a payments basis. Cash flows from operating activities are determined indirectly on the basis of earnings before taxes,
i.e. via changes to operating items in the Group statement of financial position, having eliminated changes relating to acquisitions and
currency translation.

[32] R ELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Entities and persons with control over the SIMONA Group or who
are exposed to the significant influence of SIMONA AG, as well as
associated entities and persons, including close members of the
family and intermediate entities, with significant influence over
the financial and operating policies of the SIMONA Group are to
be disclosed in accordance with IAS 24. The Management Board
and the Supervisory Board are considered to be management in
key positions.
Management Board
 Wolfgang Moyses, Chairman, Kirn
 Dirk Möller, Deputy Chairman, Kirn
 Fredy Hiltmann, Kirn
Supervisory Board
 Dr. Rolf Goessler, Bad Dürkheim, Diplom-Kaufmann
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
– Member of the Supervisory Board of J. Engelsmann AG,
Ludwigshafen
 Roland Frobel, Isernhagen,
Managing Director of ROSSMANN CENTRAL EUROPE B.V.,
Renswoude, Netherlands
Deputy Chairman
– Member of the Supervisory Board of GBK Beteiligungen
AG, Hannover
– Member of the Supervisory Board of Hannover 96 GmbH &
Co. KGaA, Hannover
– Partner and Managing Director of Frobel BeteiligungsGmbH, Isernhagen
– Managing Director of Reitstall Steinberg GmbH,
Neuenkirchen
– Managing Director of DR Konzept GmbH, Burgwedel
– Managing Director of DR Projekt GmbH, Burgwedel
– Managing Director of DR Immobilien GmbH, Burgwedel
– Managing Director of DR Objekt GmbH, Burgwedel
– Managing Director of FRISS Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH,
Isernhagen
 Dr. Roland Reber, Stuttgart
Managing Director of Ensinger GmbH, Nufringen
 Joachim Trapp, Biberach
Qualified Lawyer
– Deputy Chairman of the Management Board of
Kreissparkasse Biberach, Biberach
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– Managing Director of Sparkasse Immobilien BC GmbH,
Biberach
– Managing Director of Sparkasse Immobilien BC
Grundstücksverwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Biberach
 Andy Hohlreiter, Becherbach
Employee Representative (as from 01/03/2017)
 Markus Stein, Mittelreidenbach
Employee Representative (as from 01/03/2017)
Wolfgang Moyses performs supervisory duties in the following
entities:
 Customer Advisory Board member Landesbank RheinlandPfalz, Mainz
 Advisory Board of CW Brabender Instruments Inc., South
Hackensack/USA
 Supervisory Board member of SURTECO SE, ButtenwiesenPfaffenhofen
Wolfgang Moyses performs duties on the supervisory board (or
similar) of the following entities within the SIMONA Group:
 SIMONA S.A.S., Domont
 SIMONA S.r.l. Società UNIPERSONALE, Cologno Monzese (MI)
 SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L., Barcelona
 SIMONA UK Ltd., Stafford
 SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Wrocław
 SIMONA AMERICA Inc., Archbald
 SIMONA FAR EAST LIMITED, Hong Kong
 SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING (SHANGHAI)
CO. LTD., Shanghai
 SIMONA ASIA LIMITED., Hong Kong
 SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS (Guangdong) Co. Ltd.,
Jiangmen
Dirk Möller is a shareholder (11.64 per cent of shares in SIMONA
AG) and a member of the Management Board of SIMONA AG. At the
same time, Dirk Möller performs duties on the supervisory board
(or similar) of the following entities within the SIMONA Group:
 SIMONA S.A.S., Domont
 SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Wrocław
 SIMONA AMERICA Inc., Archbald
 SIMONA FAR EAST LIMITED, Hong Kong
 SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO.
LTD., Shanghai
 SIMONA ASIA LIMITED., Hong Kong
 SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS (Guangdong) Co. Ltd.,
Jiangmen
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Fredy Hiltmann performs duties on the supervisory board (or
similar) of the following entities within the SIMONA Group:
 SIMONA S.r.l. Società UNIPERSONALE, Cologno Monzese (MI)
 SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L., Barcelona
 SIMONA UK Ltd., Stafford
 SIMONA AMERICA Inc., Archbald
 SIMONA FAR EAST LIMITED, Hong Kong
 SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO.
LTD., Shanghai
 SIMONA ASIA LIMITED., Hong Kong
 SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS (Guangdong) Co. Ltd.,
Jiangmen
Dr. Roland Reber, member of the Supervisory Board of SIMONA
AG, is also the Managing Director of Ensinger GmbH, Nufringen. In
the financial year under review, product sales amounting to
€3,710 thousand (previous year: €3,483 thousand) were trans
acted between SIMONA AG and the entities of the Ensinger Group.
Beyond this, companies of the SIMONA Group entered into no
significant transactions with members of the Management Board
or the Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG and/or entities to which
these persons have been appointed in an executive or controlling
capacity (revenues less than €25 thousand in total). This also
applies to close family members of the aforementioned persons.
Receivables from related parties relate to trade receivables from
the Ensinger Group totalling €819 thousand (previous year: €547
thousand).
Payables to related parties consist of compensation to Super
visory Board members of SIMONA AG for the 2017 financial year
and amount to €140 thousand (previous year: €133 thousand).
There are no other outstanding balances or obligations towards
related parties.
As part of its ordinary operating activities, SIMONA AG provides
various services for the subsidiaries included in the consolidated
financial statements. Conversely, the respective Group compa
nies render services within the SIMONA Group in the context of
their business purpose.
Business relationships exist with associates on a commission/
agency basis in respect of the sale of products in the United
States; this business totals €2,780 thousand (previous year:
€2,712 thousand).

The supply and business relations between the respective persons and companies are conducted on arm’s length terms.
Compensation of members of the Management Board and
Supervisory Board
MANAGEMENT BOARD COMPENSATION ACCORDING TO IAS 24.17:
in € ’000

2017

2016

924

906

Short-term benefits
Fixed salary and fringe benefits
Annual bonus
Other long-term benefits
Total compensation

1,030

1,067

1,954

1,973

529

702

2,483

2,675

COMPENSATION DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 314(1) NO. 6 HGB:
in € ’000

2017

2016

924

906

1,030

1,067

Fixed compensation
Fixed salary and fringe benefits
Variable compensation
Annual bonus
Long-term incentive programme
Total compensation

620

517

2,574

2,490

The variable component of Management Board compensation is
based on earnings performance within the Group and a long-term
incentive programme. It uses average Group NOPAT (net operating
profit after taxes) as the key performance indicator, calculated
on the basis of a three-year performance period. The first performance period of the current long-term incentive programme
encompasses the financial years 2015–2017, the second performance period comprises the financial years 2016–2018 and
the third performance period comprises the financial years
2017–2019. Payment occurs subsequent to the adoption of the
consolidated financial statements for the final year of the respective performance period. Members of the Management Board do
not receive grants in respect of state-managed defined contribution plans, nor do they receive share-based payments or loans.
Post-employment benefits of €16,595 thousand (previous year:
€18,861 thousand) have been provisioned for active members of
the Management Board, former members of the Management
Board and their surviving dependants. The allocation to provisions for active members of the Management Board was €371

thousand (previous year: €1,957 thousand). Full allocations have
been made to pension provisions for former members of the Management Board. At the end of the reporting period, these amounted to €5,640 thousand (previous year: €8,276 thousand).
Compensation of former Management Board members and their
surviving dependants amounted to €420 thousand (previous
year: €470 thousand).
At Group level, Supervisory Board compensation for 2017 amounted to €167 thousand (previous year: €160 thousand). Supervisory
Board compensation encompasses no variable components.
Alongside their Supervisory Board compensation, staff representatives appointed to the Supervisory Board received remuneration
in the form of wages and salaries during the 2017 financial year,
which included retirement benefit obligations in the generally
applicable amount in respect of work performed for the company.
The company does not grant share-based payments or loans to
members of the Supervisory Board.

[33] F
 INANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES
Principles of risk management
Owing to the international activities of the SIMONA Group, some
of its assets, liabilities and planned transactions are exposed to
risks associated with changes to foreign exchange rates and interest rates.
The principal aim of financial risk management is to mitigate risks
attributable to ongoing operating and finance-related transactions.
Depending on the risk, the aim is to restrict the level of associated
risk by means of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative hedging instruments. All hedging instruments are used solely
for the purpose of hedging cash flows.
Interest-rate risk
In accordance with IFRS 7, interest-rate risks are addressed in the
form of sensitivity analyses. These present the effects of changes
in market interest rates on interest income, interest expense and
items in the statement of financial position. The company’s shortterm bank overdraft is the financial instrument generally exposed
to interest-rate risk. It remained undrawn at the end of the 2017
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financial year. Therefore, a sensitivity analysis of interest rates
was of no relevance.

EUR/HKD

–769

(939)

EUR/CNY

–1,249

(1,527)

EUR/RUB

–156

(191)

Currency risks
The SIMONA Group is exposed to risks associated with exchange
rate fluctuations within the area of investing and financing activities. Risks attributable to foreign currencies are hedged to the
extent that they affect the cash flows of the Group. The risk of
exchange rate fluctuations associated solely with the translation
of assets and liabilities into the reporting currency of the consolidated financial statements (euros) remains unhedged.

EUR/INR

–182

(223)

At an operating level, the respective entities within the Group
conduct the majority of their business transactions in their functional currency. The parent company is responsible almost solely
for managing transactions in foreign currencies and hedges these
activities within specified parameters as part of treasury management. As at the reporting date, no foreign exchange forward contracts and currency options were used for the purpose of hedging
currency risks associated with operating activities.

The hypothetical effect on profit of minus €4,530 thousand (plus
€5,537 thousand) is attributable to the following sensitivity to
exchange rates:

IFRS 7 requires entities to present risk on the basis of sensitivity
analyses. These analyses show how profit or loss and equity
would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk variable
that were reasonably possible at the end of the reporting date.
Exchange rate movements may occur in the case of primary financial instruments that are beyond the hedged parameters or that
are hedged by means of financial derivatives in the form of forward foreign exchange transactions or currency options.
If, as at 31 December 2017, the euro had appreciated (depreciated) by 10 per cent against all other currencies, earnings before
taxes would have been €3,932 thousand lower (€4,806 thousand
higher).
The hypothetical effect on profit of minus €3,932 thousand (plus
€4,806 thousand) is attributable to the following sensitivity to
exchange rates:
in € ’000

Effect on profit before taxes

EUR/USD

–1,350

(1,650)

EUR/GBP

–144

(176)

EUR/CHF

–395

(483)

EUR/CZK

414

(–507)

EUR/PLN

–97

(119)
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EUR/SGD

–4

(5)

–3,932

(4,806)

If, as at 31 December 2016, the euro had appreciated (depreciated) by 10 per cent against all other currencies, earnings before
taxes would have been €4,530 thousand lower (€5,537 thousand
higher).

in € ’000

Effect on profit before taxes

EUR/USD

–2,913

EUR/GBP

–72

(3,560)
(88)

EUR/CHF

–391

(478)

EUR/CZK

776

(–949)

EUR/PLN

–83

(102)

EUR/HKD

–810

(991)

EUR/CNY

–865

(1,057)

EUR/RUB

–95

(116)

EUR/INR

–77

(94)

–4,530

(5,537)

Credit risk
SIMONA AG is exposed to credit risk as part of its operating activities. Financial assets outstanding – principally trade receivables
– are monitored on a decentralised basis, i.e. by each legally
separate company within the Group, and reports are issued as
part of monthly statements. Depending on the credit rating of the
customer, receivables are subject to the risk of default, which is
mitigated with the help of trade credit insurance. On average,
around 60–70 per cent of sales revenue generated by SIMONA AG,
having factored in a deductible, is safeguarded by a trade credit
insurance policy.
Receivables exposed to probable credit risk are identified and
monitored on a regular basis; credit risk relating to such items is
accounted for by means of specific allowances on an item-by-item
basis. Impairments are mainly determined on the basis of past-

due receivables (>90 days) as well as information available with
regard to financial difficulties of specific business partners. The
maximum potential credit risk is limited to the net carrying amount
(less value-added tax) of the financial assets. Credit risks relate
primarily to receivables (in the segment encompassing Europe) for
which a loss allowance was made, totalling €2,335 thousand
(previous year: €2,113 thousand). Given the scope of sales markets and the diversified structure of the Group’s customer base,
there were no significant concentrations of risk in the reporting
period.
Liquidity risk
In order to ensure solvency and maintain financial flexibility, the
Group continuously monitors liquidity levels associated with operating activities as well as anticipated payments attributable to
commitments arising from capital investment orders of the
respective companies. The state of liquidity is monitored and
reported daily within SIMONA AG and once a week within the
Group.
Alongside cash and cash equivalents amounting to €68.0 million
(previous year: €74.8 million), the SIMONA Group has undrawn
borrowing facilities of €18.6 million (previous year: €18.9 million).
The Group’s objective is to maintain a well-judged balance
between ongoing coverage of cash requirements and sustained
flexibility through the utilisation of bank overdrafts and loans.
Credit risk relating to cash exists solely as a result of business
relationships with banks, which have the following long-term issuer
rating:
ISSUER RATING CASH
in € ’000

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

A1

3,753

4,387

A2

516

4,388

Aa2

3,856

9,844

Aa3

21,987

16,736

Baa1

10,293

9,300

Baa2

13,080

6,030

Baa3
No rating

—

11,951

14,537

12,123

68,022

74,759

in € ’000

Up to
1 year

2–5 years

More than
5 years

Total
22,130

Financial liabilities

3,425

13,700

5,005

Other financial liabilities

1,764

231

0

1,995

11,116

0

0

11,116

16,305

13,931

5,005

35,241

Trade payables

As at 31 December 2016, the maturity structures of payment
obligations relating to the financial liabilities of the Group were as
follows.
in € ’000

Up to
1 year

2–5 years

More than
5 years

Total

Financial liabilities

3,444

13,776

8,335

25,555

Other financial liabilities

3,358

58

0

3,416

Trade payables

15,152

0

0

15,152

21,954

13,834

8,335

44,123

As in the previous financial year, at 31 December 2017, there
were no foreign exchange forward contracts or currency options
that would result in amounts due to the entity or payment obligations.
Capital management
As at 31 December 2017, the equity ratio was 56 per cent (previous year: 53 per cent). The level of debt stood at 75 per cent
(previous year: 89 per cent). Among the key financial goals of the
SIMONA Group are objectives to raise enterprise value in a sustainable manner, ensure solvency at all times and achieve an
equity ratio of at least 50 per cent. At the same time, safeguarding
sufficient cash reserves is considered particularly important. The
Group manages its capital structure primarily on the basis of the
equity ratio and makes adjustments in response to changing economic conditions where such action is deemed appropriate.
External financing is mainly conducted via short- and long-term
bank borrowings and bank loans. Additionally, the return on operating assets is reviewed annually as part of the forecasting process and is an important criterion when it comes to managing the
Group’s investment budget. Return on capital employed (ROCE) is
used as a performance indicator with regard to profitability.

As at 31 December 2017, the maturity structures of payment obligations relating to the financial liabilities of the Group were as
follows.

99

[34] FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values
of all financial instruments recognised by the Group.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

CARRYING AMOUNT

in € ’000

FAIR VALUE

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

Non-current financial assets
Financial assets

AfS

340

340

340

340

Investments accounted for using the equity method

AfS

483

293

n/a

n/a

52,186

Current financial assets
Trade receivables

LaR

56,461

52,186

56,461

Other financial assets

LaR

692

836

692

836

Cash and cash equivalents

LaR

68,022

74,759

68,022

74,759

Loans

FLAC

–18,705

–22,111

–18,705

–22,111

Other financial liabilities

FLAC

–231

–58

–231

–58

Non-current financial liabilities and other financial liabilities

Current financial liabilities and other financial liabilities
Loans

FLAC

–3,425

–3,444

–3,425

–3,444

Trade payables

FLAC

–11,116

–15,152

–11,116

–15,152

Other financial liabilities

FLAC

–1,764

–3,358

–1,764

–3,358

Total by measurement category
AfS

823

633

340

340

LaR

125,175

127,781

125,175

127,781

FLAC

–35,241

–44,123

–35,241

–44,123

AfS = Available for Sale, LaR = Loans and Receivables, FLAC = Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

The non-current financial assets classified as available for sale
are interests in affiliated companies. No active market exists for
these instruments and the fair value cannot be otherwise reliably
determined. The interests are measured at cost of purchase.
There are no plans to dispose of interests in the near future.
Trade receivables, other current financial assets and cash and
cash equivalents as well as current loans, trade payables and
other current financial assets mainly have short-term maturities.
Therefore, their carrying amounts at the reporting date approximate their fair values.
Short-term deposits held as Loans and Receivables (LaR) include
time deposits with a maturity of three months at most.
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The fair value of loans was determined by discounting the expected future cash flows on the basis of the prevailing market rate of
interest as well as by applying option pricing models. Within this
context, the calculation takes into account that the loans are subject to floating or fixed interest rates on the basis of standard
market terms and conditions.
The following table presents the net gains and losses from subsequent measurement of financial instruments recognised in the
statement of financial position, listed according to the respective
measurement categories.

[35] OTHER INFORMATION

2017: NET GAINS AND LOSSES BY MEASUREMENT CATEGORY
in € ’000

Interest

Fair Value

Currency
Impairment
translation loss/
Disposal

Total

AfS

0

0

0

0

0

LaR

132

0

–1,386

–465

–1,719

FLAC

–316

0

92

1

–223

–184

0

–1,294

–464

–1,942

Interest

Fair Value

Currency
Impairment
translation loss/
Disposal

OWNERSHIP INTEREST
in %

2016: NET GAINS AND LOSSES BY MEASUREMENT CATEGORY
in € ’000

Subsidiaries
Alongside SIMONA AG as the parent, the consolidated financial
statements include the following entities. Unless otherwise speci
fied, the ownership interest in the previous year was identical to
that of the financial year under review.

Total

AfS

0

0

0

0

0

LaR

163

0

1,543

–642

1,064

FLAC

–152

0

–177

5

–324

11

0

1,366

–637

740

The Group uses the following hierarchy for the purpose of determining and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments per
measurement method:
 Level 1:
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities
 Level 2:
methods for which all inputs with a significant effect on the
recognised fair value are observable either directly or indirectly; and
 Level 3:
methods that use inputs which have a significant effect on
the recognised fair value and are not based on observable
market data
With the exception of derivative financial instruments, no fair value
hierarchy is disclosed for financial assets and liabilities, as the
carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Hedging transactions
Cash flow hedging instruments
As at 31 December 2017, as was the case in the previous financial year, the Group held no forward currency contracts or currency options.

SIMONA Beteiligungs-GmbH, Kirn, Germany

100.0

SIMONA Produktion Kirn GmbH & Co. KG, Kirn, Germany

100.0

SIMONA Kirn Management GmbH, Kirn, Germany

100.0

SIMONA Produktion Ringsheim GmbH & Co. KG, Ringsheim, Germany

100.0

SIMONA Ringsheim Management GmbH, Ringsheim, Germany

100.0

SIMONA Immobilien GmbH & Co.KG, Kirn, Germany

100.0

SIMONA Immobilien Management GmbH, Kirn, Germany

100.0

SIMONA UK Ltd., Stafford, United Kingdom

100.0

SIMONA S.A.S., Domont, France

100.0

SIMONA S.r.l. Società UNIPERSONALE, Cologno Monzese (MI), Italy

100.0

SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L., Barcelona, Spain

100.0

SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Wrocław, Poland

100.0

SIMONA-PLASTICS CZ s.r.o., Prague, Czech Republic

100.0

SIMONA FAR EAST LIMITED, Hong Kong, China

100.0

SIMONA AMERICA Inc., Archbald, USA

100.0

Laminations Inc., Archbald, USA

100.0

Boltaron Inc., Newcomerstown, USA

100.0

DANOH, LLC, Akron, USA

100.0

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO. LTD.
Shanghai, China

100.0

SIMONA ASIA LIMITED, Hong Kong, China

100.0

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS (Guangdong) Co. Ltd.,
Jiangmen, China

100.0

64 NORTH CONAHAN DRIVE HOLDING, LLC, Hazleton, USA

100.0

DEHOPLAST POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Kwidzyn, Poland

51.0

SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o., Litvinov, Czech Republic

100.0

OOO SIMONA RUS, Moscow, Russian Federation

100.0

SIMONA INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED, Mumbai, India

100.0

SIMONA ASIA PACIFIC PTE. LTD., Singapore, Singapore

100.0

The following entities were newly founded during the 2017 financial year and have been fully consolidated for the first time:
SIMONA Produktion Kirn GmbH & Co. KG, Kirn; SIMONA Kirn
Management GmbH, Kirn (general partner of SIMONA Produktion
Kirn GmbH & Co. KG); SIMONA Produktion Ringsheim GmbH &
Co. KG, Ringsheim; SIMONA Ringsheim Management GmbH,
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Ringsheim (general partner of SIMONA Produktion RIngsheim
GmbH & Co. KG); SIMONA Immobilien GmbH & Co. KG, Kirn;
SIMONA Immobilien Management GmbH, Kirn (general partner of
SIMONA Immoblien GmbH Co. KG); and SIMONA ASIA PACIFIC
PTE. LTD., Singapore. There were no changes to the ownership
interests held in subsidiaries in the financial year under review.

Average number of staff employed in the financial year:
GROUP
2017
Industrial staff

736

694

Clerical staff

495

543

1,231

1,237

Employees

Financial assets
SIMONA AG holds at least a one-fifth interest in the following
entities, without being able to control or significantly influence
the financial and operating policies of the entities in question.
Unless otherwise specified, the ownership interest in the previous year was identical to that of the financial year under review.
COMPANY
Ownership
Equity Profit/loss
Interest 31/12/2016
2016
in %

in € ’000

in € ’000

SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH, Kirn,
Germany

50.0

12,344

–69

SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungs
gesellschaft der Belegschaft
mbH, Kirn, Germany

50.0

2,843

495

SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft
mbH is not included in the consolidated financial statements
because the assets of this entity may be utilised solely for funding
purposes in respect of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and thus
remain outside SIMONA AG’s scope of economic control.
The interests in SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH are accounted
for at book value, as the fair value is not reliably determinable. The
book values of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH are €10 thousand and €13 thousand respectively.
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School-leavers (apprentices)
Total number of employees

54

46

1,285

1,283

Contingent liabilities and other financial commitments
Contingent liabilities relate in particular to extended warranty
periods regarding the sale of plastic products. No information on
the financial implications and uncertainties relating to the amount
or timing of any outflow has been disclosed as it is not practicable
to do so. At present, SIMONA does not expect any outflow from
contingent liabilities.
OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
in € ’000

Owing to its classification as a pension fund, SIMONA Sozialwerk
GmbH is not included in the consolidated financial statements, as
specified in IAS 19.8.

2016

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

Commitments from operating rental and
lease agreements
Due within:
1 year
2 – 5 years
after 5 years

777

633

1,661

1,309

381

520

2,819

2,462

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

ORDER COMMITMENTS
in € ’000
Investment projects

6,690

15,107

Raw material orders

14,171

12,870

20,861

27,977

The share of intangible assets in total commitments is negligible.

Declaration of Conformity regarding the German Corporate
Governance Code
In accordance with Section 161 AktG, the company filed a Declaration of Conformity for 2017 on 23 February 2018. It has been
made permanently available to shareholders on its corporate
website at www.simona.de.
Directors’ holdings – Shares held by members of the
Management Board and Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG
As at 9 June 2017 (date of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders) the members of the Management Board reported a total
holding of 70,860 shares; this corresponds to approx. 11.81 per
cent of the share capital of SIMONA AG.
As at 9 June 2017 (date of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders) the members of the Supervisory Board reported a total
holding of 1,300 shares; this corresponds to approx. 0.22 per
cent of the share capital of SIMONA AG.

Responsibility Statement
To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applicable reporting principles, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Group, and the Group management report
that has been combined with the management report of SIMONA
Aktiengesellschaft, Kirn, includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the Group,
together with a description of the principal opportunities and risks
associated with the expected development of the Group.
Kirn, 29 March 2018
SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft
The Management Board
Wolfgang Moyses

Dirk Möller

Fredy Hiltmann

In accordance with Section 15a of the Securities Trading Act
(Wertpapierhandelsgesetz – WpHG), the members of the Supervisory Board and the Management Board, as well as related parties, are legally obliged to disclose all significant acquisitions or
disposals of shares in SIMONA AG.
Audit fees
The total fees invoiced by the independent auditor of SIMONA AG
and subsidiaries were €233 thousand. These fees were attribu
table to the following items: year-end audit services €197 thousand, tax consulting services €36 thousand and other services
€0 thousand. Tax consultancy services provided by our independent auditor encompass the preparation of tax returns and the tax
treatment of specific circumstances.
Events after the Reporting Period
No significant events occurred after the reporting date that would
necessitate a change to measurements or recognised amounts.
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Reproduction of the auditor’s report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft, Kirn
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND OF THE GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT
Audit Opinions
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft, Kirn, and its subsidiaries (the Group),
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at December 31, 2017, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the financial year from January 1 to
December 31, 2017, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. In addition, we have audited the group management report
of SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft, which is combined with the Company’s management report for the financial year from January 1
to December 31, 2017. We have not audited the content of those
parts of the group management report listed in the “Other Information” section of our auditor’s report.
In our opinion, on the basis of the knowledge obtained in the
audit,
 the accompanying consolidated financial statements comply,
in all material respects, with the IFRSs as adopted by the EU,
and the additional requirements of German commercial law
pursuant to § [Article] 315e Abs. [paragraph] 1 HGB
[Handelsgesetzbuch: German Commercial Code] and, in
compliance with these requirements, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, and financial position of the
Group as at December 31, 2017, and of its financial performance for the financial year from January 1 to December 31,
2017, and
 the accompanying group management report as a whole provides an appropriate view of the Group’s position. In all material respects, this group management report is consistent
with the consolidated financial statements, complies with
German legal requirements and appropriately presents the
opportunities and risks of future development. Our audit
opinion on the group management report does not cover the
content of those parts of the group management report listed in the “Other Information” section of our auditor’s report.
Pursuant to § 322 Abs. 3 Satz [sentence] 1 HGB, we declare that
our audit has not led to any reservations relating to the legal com-
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pliance of the consolidated financial statements and of the group
management report.
Basis for the Audit Opinions
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements
and of the group management report in accordance with § 317
HGB and the EU Audit Regulation (No. 537/2014, referred to subsequently as “EU Audit Regulation”) and in compliance with German Generally Accepted Standards for Financial Statement
Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer [Institute
of Public Auditors in Germany] (IDW). Our responsibilities under
those requirements and principles are further described in the
“Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements and of the Group Management Report” section of
our auditor’s report. We are independent of the group entities in
accordance with the requirements of European law and German
commercial and professional law, and we have fulfilled our other
German professional responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. In addition, in accordance with Article 10 (2) point
(f) of the EU Audit Regulation, we declare that we have not provided non-audit services prohibited under Article 5 (1) of the EU Audit
Regulation. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the group
management report.
Key Audit Matters in the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year from January 1 to
December 31, 2017. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our audit opinion thereon; we do not provide
a separate audit opinion on these matters.
In our view, the matters of most significance in our audit were as
follows:
1. Recoverability of goodwill
2. Pension provisions
Our presentation of these key audit matters has been structured
in each case as follows:
1. Matter and issue
2. Audit approach and findings
3. Reference to further information

Hereinafter we present the key audit matters:
❶
1. Recoverability of goodwill
1. Goodwill amounting in total to EUR 24.6 million (representing
6.8 % of total assets and 12.2 % of equity) is reported under the
“Intangible assets” item in the Company’s consolidated statement of financial position. Goodwill is tested for impairment by
the Company once a year, and when there are indications of
impairment, to determine any possible need for write-downs.
Impairment testing is carried out at the level of the groups of
cash-generating units to which the relevant goodwill has been
allocated. The carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating
units, including goodwill, is compared with the corresponding
recoverable amount in the context of the impairment test. The
calculation of the recoverable amount generally employs the
value in use. The present value of the future cash flows from the
respective group of cash-generating units normally serves as the
basis of valuation. The present values are calculated using discounted cash flow models. For this purpose, the Group’s one-year
financial plan prepared by the executive directors and adopted by
the Supervisory Board forms the starting point for future projections. It is supplemented by detailed forecasts for a further three
planning years based on assumptions about long-term rates of
growth. Expectations relating to future market developments and
assumptions about the development of macroeconomic factors
are also taken into account. The discount rate used is the weighted average cost of capital for the relevant group of cash-generating units. The impairment test determined that no write-downs
were necessary. The outcome of this valuation exercise is
dependent to a large extent on the estimates made by the executive directors with respect to the future cash inflows from the
respective group of cash-generating units, the discount rate used,
the rate of growth and other assumptions, and is therefore subject to considerable uncertainty. Against this background and due
to the complex nature of the valuation, this matter was of particular significance in the context of our audit.
②	
2. As part of our audit, we reviewed the methodology employed for
the purposes of performing the impairment test, among other
things. After matching the future cash inflows used for the calculation against the Group’s approved one-year plan and the forecasts for the second to fourth planning year, we assessed the
appropriateness of the calculation, in particular by comparing it
with general and sector-specific market expectations. We discussed supplementary adjustments to the planning projections
for the purposes of the impairment test with the members of the

Company’s staff responsible, and reviewed these. We also
assessed whether the basis for including the costs of Group functions was accurate. In the knowledge that even relatively small
changes in the discount rate applied can have a material impact
on the value of the entity calculated using this method, we
focused our testing on the parameters used to determine the
discount rate applied, and verified the calculation procedure. We
reproduced the sensitivity analyses performed by the Company, in
order to reflect the uncertainty inherent in the projections. Taking
into account the information available, we determined that the
carrying amounts of the cash-generating units, including the allocated goodwill, were adequately covered by the discounted future
net cash inflows. We verified that the necessary disclosures were
made in the notes relating to the “SIMONA America Inc.”
cash-generating unit for which a reasonably possible change in an
assumption would result in the recoverable amount falling below
the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit including the
allocated goodwill. Overall, the measurement inputs and assumptions used by the executive directors are in line with our expectations and are also within the ranges considered by us to be reasonable.
3. The Company’s disclosures on goodwill are contained in note
17 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
❷
2. Pension provisions
1. Pension provisions totaling EUR 99.2 million (27.3 % of total
assets) are reported under the “Provisions for pensions” item in
the Company’s consolidated statement of financial position. The
pension provisions comprise obligations from defined benefit
pension plans amounting to EUR 145.8 million less plan assets of
EUR 46.6 million. The obligations from defined benefit pension
plans were measured using the projected unit credit method. This
requires assumptions to be made in particular about long-term
rates of growth in salaries and pensions, average life expectancy,
and staff turnover. The discount rate must be determined by reference to market yields on high-quality corporate bonds with
matching currencies and consistent maturities. This usually
requires the data to be extrapolated, since there is an insufficient
number of long-term corporate bonds. The plan assets are measured at fair value. In our view, these matters were of particular
significance in the context of our audit because the recognition
and measurement of this item – which is significant in terms of its
amount – are based to a large extent on estimates and assumptions made by the Company’s executive directors.
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2. Our audit included evaluating the actuarial expert reports
obtained and the professional qualifications of the external
experts. We also examined the specific features of the actuarial
calculations and reviewed the numerical data, the actuarial
parameters and the valuation methods on which the valuations
were based for compliance with standards and appropriateness,
in addition to other procedures. In addition, we analyzed the
changes in the obligation and the cost components in accordance
with actuarial expert reports in the light of changes occurring in
the valuation parameters and the numerical data, and verified
their plausibility. For the purposes of our audit of the fair value of
plan assets, we obtained bank confirmations and securities
account statements as of the balance sheet date. Based on our
audit procedures, we satisfied ourselves that the estimates and
assumptions made by the executive directors were justified and
adequately documented.
③
3. The Company’s disclosures relating to pension provisions are
contained in notes 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
Other Information
The executive directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the following non-audited parts
of the group management report, we obtained prior to the date of
our auditor’s report:
 the statement on corporate governance pursuant to § 289f
HGB and § 315d HGB included in section 5.1 of the group
management report
 the non-financial statement pursuant to § 289b Abs. 1 HGB
and § 315b Abs. 1 HGB included in section 6 of the group
management report
The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of the auditor’s report.
Our audit opinions on the consolidated financial statements and
on the group management report do not cover the other information, and consequently we do not express an audit opinion or any
other form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in so doing, to consider whether the other information
 is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements, with the group management report or our knowl-
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edge obtained in the audit, or
 otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the Executive Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements and the Group Management Report
The executive directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that comply, in all material
respects, with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the additional
requirements of German commercial law pursuant to § 315e Abs.
1 HGB and that the consolidated financial statements, in compliance with these requirements, give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position, and financial performance of
the Group. In addition the executive directors are responsible for
such internal control as they have determined necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the executive
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. They also have the responsibility for
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern. In
addition, they are responsible for financial reporting based on the
going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or there is no realistic
alternative but to do so.
Furthermore, the executive directors are responsible for the
preparation of the group management report that, as a whole,
provides an appropriate view of the Group’s position and is, in all
material respects, consistent with the consolidated financial
statements, complies with German legal requirements, and
appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future development. In addition, the executive directors are responsible for
such arrangements and measures (systems) as they have considered necessary to enable the preparation of a group management
report that is in accordance with the applicable German legal
requirements, and to be able to provide sufficient appropriate
evidence for the assertions in the group management report.
The supervisory board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements and of the group management report.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements and of the Group Management Report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and whether the group management report as a whole provides an appropriate view of the Group’s position and, in all material respects, is
consistent with the consolidated financial statements and the
knowledge obtained in the audit, complies with the German legal
requirements and appropriately presents the opportunities and
risks of future development, as well as to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our audit opinions on the consolidated financial
statements and on the group management report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with § 317 HGB
and the EU Audit Regulation and in compliance with German Generally Accepted Standards for Financial Statement Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer (IDW). Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements and this group management report.
We exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements and of the group management report, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit of the consolidated financial statements and of
arrangements and measures (systems) relevant to the audit
of the group management report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an audit opinion on the effectiveness of these systems.
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used by
the executive directors and the reasonableness of estimates

made by the executive directors and related disclosures.
 Conclude on the appropriateness of the executive directors’

use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
and in the group management report or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our respective audit opinions. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to be able to continue as a going concern.
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
present the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance of the Group in compliance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU and the additional requirements of
German commercial law pursuant to § 315e Abs. 1 HGB.
 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express audit opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the group management
report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinions.
 Evaluate the consistency of the group management report
with the consolidated financial statements, its conformity
with German law, and the view of the Group’s position it provides.
 Perform audit procedures on the prospective information
presented by the executive directors in the group management report. On the basis of sufficient appropriate audit evidence we evaluate, in particular, the significant assumptions
used by the executive directors as a basis for the prospective information, and evaluate the proper derivation of the
prospective information from these assumptions. We do not
express a separate audit opinion on the prospective information and on the assumptions used as a basis. There is a substantial unavoidable risk that future events will differ materially from the prospective information.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with the relevant independence requirements, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, the related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter.

Other legal and regulatory requirements
Further Information pursuant to Article 10 of the EU Audit
Regulation
We were elected as group auditor by the annual general meeting
on June 9, 2017. We were engaged by the supervisory board on
September 21, 2017. We have been the group auditor of the
SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft, Kirn, without interruption since the
financial year 2013.
We declare that the audit opinions expressed in this auditor’s
report are consistent with the additional report to the audit
committee pursuant to Article 11 of the EU Audit Regulation (longform audit report).
German Public Auditor responsible for the engagement
The German Public Auditor responsible for the engagement is
Christian Kwasni.
Frankfurt am Main, April 5, 2018
PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft
Christian Kwasni
Wirtschaftsprüfer
(German Public Auditor)
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ppa. Christopher Schlig
Wirtschaftsprüfer
(German Public Auditor)

Other Information

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTIONS
297(2), 315(1) HGB
“To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applic
able reporting principles, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the SIMONA Group, and the Group manage
ment report, which has been combined with the management
report of SIMONA AG, includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the SIMONA
Group, together with a description of the principal opportunities
and risks associated with the expected development of the SIMO
NA Group.”
Kirn, 29 March 2018
SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft
The Management Board
Wolfgang Moyses

Dirk Möller

Fredy Hiltmann
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SHAREHOLDINGS
OF SIMONA AG
SIMONA AG, KIRN

SIMONA Beteiligungs-GmbH
Kirn, Germany

100.0 %

SIMONA-PLASTICS CZ, s.r.o.
Prague, Czech Republic

100.0 %

SIMONA S.A.S.
Domont, France

100.0 %

SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o.
Litvínov, Czech Republic

100.0 %

SIMONA S.r.l. Società UNIPERSONALE
Cologno Monzese (MI), Italy

100.0 %

SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o.
Wrocław, Poland

100.0 %

SIMONA UK Ltd.
Stafford, United Kingdom

100.0 %

DEHOPLAST POLSKA Sp. z o.o.
Kwidzyn, Poland

SIMONA IBERICA
SEMIELABORADOS S.L.
Barcelona, Spain

100.0 %

OOO SIMONA RUS
Moscow, Russian Federation

100.0 %

SIMONA AMERICA Inc.
Archbald, USA

100.0 %

SIMONA INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Mumbai, India

51.0 %

0.01 %

SIMONA Produktion Kirn GmbH & Co. KG
Kirn, Germany

100.0 %

64 NORTH CONAHAN DRIVE HOLDING, LLC
Hazleton, USA

SIMONA Kirn Management GmbH
Kirn, Germany

100.0 %

Laminations Inc.
Archbald, USA

100.0 %

SIMONA Produktion Ringsheim GmbH & Co. KG
Ringsheim, Germany

100.0 %

Boltaron Inc.
Newcomerstown, USA

100.0 %

SIMONA Ringsheim Management GmbH
Ringsheim, Germany

100.0 %

DANOH, LLC
Akron, USA

100.0 %

SIMONA Immobilien GmbH & Co. KG
Kirn, Germany

100.0 %

SIMONA Immobilien Management GmbH
Kirn, Germany

100.0 %

CARTIERWILSON, LLC
Marietta, USA

SIMONA FAR EAST LIMITED
Hong Kong, China

SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH
Kirn, Germany

50.0 %

SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft
der Belegschaft mbH
Kirn, Germany

50.0 %

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING
(SHANGHAI) CO. LTD.
Shanghai, China

SIMONA ASIA LIMITED
Hong Kong, China
SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS
(Guangdong) Co. Ltd.
Jiangmen, China

As at: 31 Dec. 2017
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100.0 %

25.0 %

100.0 %
100.0 %

100.0 %
100.0 %

SIMONA ASIA PACIFIC PTE. LTD.
Singapore, Singapore

100.0 %

SIMONA INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Mumbai, India

99.99 %
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Financial Calendar 2018

Publication of SIMONA Group Consolidated Financial Statements and SIMONA AG Financial
Statements for FY 2017
Press Release for Q1 2018

26 April 2018

SIMONA Annual Press Conference in Frankfurt

26 April 2018

SIMONA Annual General Meeting at 11 a.m.,
Gesellschaftshaus der Stadt Kirn,
Neue Straße 13, 55606 Kirn

08 June 2018

Publication of Group Interim Report for the First Half of 2018
Press Release for Q3 2018

01 August 2018
24 October 2018
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SIMONA Products
At a glance
SHEETS

RODS AND PROFILES

WELDING RODS

FINISHED PARTS

PIPES

Extruded sheets

Solid rods

Welding rods

Chain guides

Pressure pipes

Pressed sheets

Hollow rods

3D printing filaments

Cable runners

Sewer pipes

Foamed sheets

U-profiles

Steel channels

Multilayer pipes

Multilayer sheets

Square pipes

Sliding rails for chains

Double-containment pipes

Guide rails

Drainage pipes

Cross-ribbed
twin-wall sheets

Lengthways-ribbed
twin-wall sheets

Interconnecting modules

TWS corners

Coils

Ovoid pipes
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FITTINGS

DOUBLE-CONTAINMENT
PIPE FITTINGS

CUSTOMISED FITTINGS

VALVES & FLANGES

Elbows

Fixing points for pipe clamps

SIMODUAL² bends

Connectors

Valves

Bends

Electrofusion sockets

SIMODUAL² tees

Double sockets

Flanges

Stub flanges

Tapping saddles

SIMODUAL² reducers

Pipe collar wall seals

Tees, standard

External saddles

SIMODUAL² electrofusion
sockets

Inspection boxes

Tees, reduced

Branches

SIMODUAL² transition fittings

Shaft connections

Reducers, concentric

SIMODUAL² spacers

Shaft liners

Reducers, eccentric

SIMODUAL² fixing points

Coned flanges

End caps

SIMODUAL2 leak adaptor
pieces

Adaptors

SIMODUAL2 fixing points for
pipe clamps
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This document is published in German and as an English translation.
Only the German original shall be deemed authoritative.

SIMONA AG
Teichweg 16
55606 Kirn
Germany

Phone +49 (0)67 52 14-383
Fax
+49 (0)67 52 14-738
ir@simona.de
www.simona.de

